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CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
September 10, 2025 ~ 5:00 p.m. ~ Frazee Event Center
Z0OOM LINK

1. Call the Meeting to Order
2. Roll Call

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Approve Agenda

5. 2024 Audit Recap

6. Open Forum - The City of Frazee welcomes you to this meeting. We have the desire to provide an
opportunity to hear from members of the public. This portion of the agenda will be limited to a total of not more
than 30 minutes, unless otherwise determined by the council. Individual speakers are asked to limit their
comments to not more than 10 minutes, unless otherwise determined by the council. The council requests that
all comments be in keeping with, and contribute to, an atmosphere of civil, courteous, thoughtful, and respectful
public discourse. The council will not respond to comments at the time of the guest’s spot on the agenda;
however, if the council feels there needs to be a discussion, comments, or a decision it will be taken up at the
New Business part of the agenda with a possibility of future council agenda items. Thank you for attending.

a. Mackenzie Hamm — CornerStone Update

7. Consent Agenda
a. Meeting Minutes — August 27, 2025
b. Income Statements
c. Approval of Claims

8. Committee & Liaison Reports

a. Parks & Recreation Committee — August 27, 2025
Wannigan Regional Park Committee — No meeting
Planning & Zoning — August 26, 2025
Personnel Committee — August 5, 2025
Finance Committee — No meeting
Economic Development Authority — August 19, 2025
Lakeside Cemetery Liaison
Frazee School District Liaison
Frazee Area Action Fund Liaison
Frazee-Burlington-Silver Leaf Joint Powers Board Liaison
k. Lake Agassiz Regional Library Liaison
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9. Old Business
a. Mural Concept Approval

10. New Business

SafeAssure Renewal

AET Material Testing Proposal
Gaming Attendant Job Description
Hiring of Gaming Attendants
Janitor Job Description & Posting

©ao o

11. Council Member Comments

12. Addendum
a. Approval of Additional Claims
b. Rescue ATV Purchase

13. Adjournment
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2024 Audit Recap

CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

\}

Hoffman, Philipp, & Martell, pL.c
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Hoffran, Philipp, & Martell, puc

1541 Highway 59 South | Thief River Falls, MN 56701 | Phone: 218-681-4078 | choffman@hpmaudit.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

City Couneil
City of Frazee

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opiniens
We have andited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,

the discretely presented component vnit, each major fond, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Frazee, Minnesota, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the City”s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In cur opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatien of the City of Frazee, as of December 31, 2024, and the
respective changes in financial position, and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended i
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Aundit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
the City of Frazee and to meet our other ethical responsibilities. in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements
relating to our andit. We believe that the andit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our andit opinions.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control over financial reporting relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events that
raise substantial dovbt about the City of Frazee s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the
financial statement date, including any corrently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Anditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or emror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Feasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 1s not a guarantee than an
andit conducted in accordance with generally accepted anditing standards and Govarnment Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
frand is higher than for one resulting from error, as frand may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that individually they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an andit in accordance with generally accepted anditing standards and Government Auditing Standards,
we

+  Exercise professional jndgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the andit.

s  Identify and assess the nisks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to frand or
error, and design and perform aundit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
ofn a test basis. evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the finaneial statements.

s  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinicn on the effectiveness of the
City of Frazee's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

# Evalupate the appropriateness of accounting policies used in the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management. as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

+ Conclude whether. in our judgment. there are conditions or events considered that raise substantial doubt
about the City of Frazee’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the aundit, significant andit findings. and certain internal control related matters that we identified
in our andit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Amnalysis and the Fequired Supplementary Information. as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and. although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of managzement
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inguinies, the basic financial statements, and other imowledge we obtained during owr audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information becanse the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinien or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information
Our andit was conducted for the purpose of formung opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
City of Frazee’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining nonmajor fund financial are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlving accounting and other records used to prepare the basic finaneial statements or to
Page 3
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the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with anditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinicn, the combining nonmajor fund financial statements
are faurly stated, in all matenial respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the anmmal report. The other information comprises the
introductery section and other schedules, as listed in the table of contents, but does not include the basic finaneial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our andit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the
other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work performed, we conclude that an
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Anditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issned our report dated Aungpst 15, 2025, on our
consideration of the City of Frazee's internal control ever financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Frazee’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That repert 1s an integral part of an andit performed in accordance with Government
Auditfing Standards in considering the City of Frazee's mternal control over financial reporting and compliance.

47,& I /é’? Ay

Hoffiman, Philipp, & Martell PLLC
Apgust 15, 2025
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| =n City Of
@ Frazee
‘ B MINNE SOTA P.O. Box 387, 222 Main Ave. W., Frazee, MN 56544

hops City Phone: 218-334-4991 | City Fax: 218-334-4992

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaundited)

The management of the City of Frazee offers readers of the City’s Financial Statements this narrative overview
and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Frazee for the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2024, The
Management's Discussion and Analysis provides comparisons with the previous year and is designed to focus
on the current year's activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts, and should be read in conjunction
with the City’s basic financial statements that follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The total net position of governmental activities iz $7.515.246 of which $3.349 483 is the net investment in
capital assets, $1,194 362 is restricted for economic development and debt service, and $971,399 is unrestricted.
The total net position of governmental activities decreased by $82 830 for the vear ended December 31, 2024,
mainly as a result of debt service costs in excess of assessments collected and capital outlay in excess of budget.

The total net position of business-type activities is $6,080,276, of which 54446 673 is the net investment in
capital assets, $300.047 is restricted for infrastructure replacement, and $1.333,536 is unrestricted. The total net
position of business-type activities increased by $949 929 i 2024, as a result of operating income in excess of
operating expenses, and a state grant receqved for a water infrastructure project.

At the close of 2024, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $1.446 967, a
decrease of $144.191 from the prior yvear. Of the total fund balance amount, $513,945 is legally or contractually
restricted, $316.967 iz formally committed for specific purposes, $65.064 is assigned for public safety and
culture and recreation, and $348 991 is noted as unassigned fund balance. Maintaining an adequate fund balance
iz necessary to provide City services throughout the year.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and anmalysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements,
which are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fond financial
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information
in addition to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
businesses. All of the current year's revenues and expenses are considered regardless of when cash 15 received
or paid
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The Statement of Net Posifion presents information on all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources,
and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. with the difference reported as net position. Owver fime, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City 1s
improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during the
most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the vnderlyving event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this
statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g.. uncollected taxes).

In the Stafement of Net Posifion and the Stafement of Activities, we divide the City into three kinds of activities:

* Governmental activities—Most of the City’s basic services are reported here including general government.
public safety. highways and streets. sanitation. culture and recreation, and economic development. Property
taxes and intergovernmental revenues finance most of these activities.

+ Business-type activities—The City charges fees to cover the costs of certain services it provides. Included
here are the operations of the Events Center, liquor store, and the utilities — sewer, water, and storm water.

+ Component vnit—The City includes a separate legal entity in its report. The Economic Development
Authority is presented in a separate column. Although legally separate, this “component unit” is mimportant
becanse the City is financially accountable for it.

The government-wide financial statements can be found as Exhibits 1 and 2 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated
for specific activities or objectives. The City of Frazee, like other state and local governments. wses fund
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
City can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary fonds.

Governmental Funds Governmental funds are vsed to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, fund-level financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal yvear. Such
information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term finaneing requirements.

Becanse the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the zovernment-wide financial statements
it i3 useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so. readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s short-term financing decisions. Both the Balance Sheeat
— Governmental Funds and the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
Governmental Funds provide a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between governmental funds and
governmental activities.

The City reports three governmental fund types: General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service. Information 13
presented separately in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheef and in the Governmental Funds Statement of

Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances for the General Fund and the Lake Street Debt
Service Fund, both of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other nommajor governmental
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funds are combined in a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
funds is provided in the combining statements after the notes to the financial statements.

The City of Frazee adopts anmmal budgets for its General Fund. A Budgetary Comparison Schedule has been
provided for this fund to demonstrate compliance with budgets.

Proprietary Funds The City of Frazee maintains five proprietary funds. 1) The Events Center Enterprise
Fund is nsed to account for the cperations of the City’s Events Center. Financing is provided by concession
sales and space rental for events. 2) The Liguor Enterprise Fund 1s used to account for the operations of the
City’s liguor store. Financing is provided through the liquer store’s sale of on and off-sale liquer. 3) The
Sewer Enterprise Fund is uvsed to account for the operations of the City's sewer system. Financing is
provided by charges to residents for services. 4) The Water Enterprise Fund is wsed to account for the
operations of the City’s water system. Financing is provided by charges to residents for services. (3) The
Storm Water Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City's storm water system.
Financing is provided by charges to residents for services. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, and are included in the Stafement of Net Position
and the Statement of Activifies as business-type activities. The Events Center, Liguer. Sewer, and Water
Enterprise Funds are considered to be major funds. Data from the non-major Storm Water Enterprise Fund
has been presented with the major funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full vnderstanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The Notes to the Financial Statements
can be found beginning on page 24 of this report.

Other information—In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain Reguired Supplementary Information, as listed in the table of contents. The City also provides
Suopplementary and Other Information including combining statements. and a Schedule of Intergovernmental
Revenue.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Orver time, net position serves as a pseful indicator of the City’s financial position. The City's assets exceeded
liabilities by $13,595. 522 at the close of 2024. The largest portion of the City’s net position (approximately 72
percent) reflects its net investment in capital assets (ie. land, constuction in progress, infrastructure. buildings
and improvements, and machinery and equipment). It should be noted that this amount 13 not available for futre
spending. Approximately 11 percent of the City’s net position is restricted, and 17 percent of the City’s net
position is unrestricted. The vnrestricted net position amount of $2.304.955 as of December 31, 2024, may be
used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to cifizens.

The City’s overall financial position increased from last year. Total assets increased by $1.409 293 from the prior
vear due to infrastructure improvements and construction in progress. Deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions decreased by $135 698, Total liabilities increased by $339.154 from the prior vear due to the issnance of
debt. and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions increased by $47.344. This resulted in an increased net
position of $867 099 from the prior year.
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NET POSITION Govemmentsl Artivities Business- Tvpe Artivities ‘Total Primary Governmest
1014 023 2024 2023 2024 b 2]
Current and other ssets H ¥ LALLM ¥ 1,B96,061 5 1425926 L] 4,335,749 § 4037372
Capiral sssets 6.993.274 7,162,225 6,201 964 14,401 553 13,290,240
Totel aszets 3 967,121 ¥ 9610220 § O0O05B2BE 5 TTITAM § 18737407 § 17,323,112
Dieferred outflows - pension 1 361864 3 433.313 i 36136 3§ 43.373 i 303000 i 533.693
Other Eahilities § 0,147 ] 67,443 ¥ 20m 3 4 3 112,24 § 113,022
Long-tems fizhifities matstending 1940 317 1935384 2,875,671 1 4315933 4,460,136
Tote] Hsbilities 3 1010464 3 10002331 3 10T 5§ 1376036 § 4.933.111 b 4570058
Deferred inflows - pension 1 515.275 i 404,833 i Bi3NE 3§ v § 1673 i 554.329
Mgt position
et investment in cepitel asses 5 5340485 ¥ oiMam I 44660 5 4003117 ] 9,796,153 § 9,451,518
Resmicted 1,184 362 1.315,799 300,047 148,463 1484 409 1,565,262
Unrestricied B7L.500 133.876 1.333.556 377767 L304.955 L7163
Totel et position 5 7515246 ¥ T5%076 5 60BD2M 5 5130347 § 13,595,511 § 12,723,413
CHANGES IN NET POSITION Govemmentsl Activities Buzimes:-Type Artivites Total Frimary Governmest
04 023 2024 023 0 pLnx]
Flevemes
Program Fevemmes and Transfers
Fees, cherpes, fines and other i 4] 336,131 §OL5B60E 5 1340012 § 1917910 § 1477,043
Opersting sramts snd comiribetions 5 - - 170 056 43,258
Capital grant= and contdbutions 417622 433,044 751,084
Froperty mxes 24,523 557,143
Framchize x Lin ENE]
Grant= and comributions mot
resricted fo specific prosems 501,640 503,733 501,640 503,733
Payments in liew of tawes 20,96 19,472 - - 10,396 19,472
Tovesmuent eamings 31,856 44,335 15,693 5] 47,549 45,0M
Transfers (236,603) 236,603 - - -
Tote] revennes and fransfers 3 1774400 3 1363274 §  21BRSM 0§ 1ML § 106292 & 1.T04.571
Experses
(Genenal grvemment 5 348,023 ] 558,60 H 5 § 303 § 550,060
Public safety 71,739 426,120 71,739 424,120
Highways snd stmeets 334,438 363,234 334,433 363,234
Sanitation 191,761 125,933 191,781 125,953
Cubrre snd recrestion 58178 48,030 51T 49,030
Conzervation of nanmal resources 68,433 3357 3,433 s
Inferest 55,426 43,340 - - 55426 43,340
Events Center IRE] 116,311 LR 114,311
Liquor 663,408 381,317 53,493 531,317
LawEr 196,676 179,753 194,676 179,753
Water 286,809 133,335 134,309 133,335
Sioem Water 1,568 - 1563 -
Totel expences 3 1720EW i 5 L2BST 5 1166271 § 1963496 & 1737314
Increase (demesse) n net position 3 44,501 3 791721 i papaM 3 173.326 i 443 % 867047
Net position - Famery 1, a5 previously reporied 5 THRE076 ¥ 606335 ¥O513037 0§ 48500 L] 11,728,423 § 11,761,376
Pricr perind sdfostment (127331} - - {127.331) -
Met position, Tameary 1, a5 restated § TAW45 ¥ 6306335 § 5130347 0§ 4835001 4 11601,092 i 11,761,376
Mgt posiion, Diecember 31 5 7515246 ¥ TR0 §O60BD2M  § 3130347 § 13,595 511 § 12,723,413
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT S FUNDS

As noted earlier. the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements, with a focus on short-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable
resowrces. In particolar, vorestricted fund balance may serve as a vseful measure of the City's net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal vear.

Governmental Funds

At the end of 2024, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$1.446 967. Of this amount, approximately 36 percent constitutes legally or contractually restricted fund
balance, approximately 22 percent constitutes formally comumitted fund balance, four percent constitates
specifically assigned fund balance, and 38 percent constitntes unassigned fund balance.

The General Fund is the operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the General
Fund's total fund balance was $1.218.814. The General Fund's committed fond balance was $316,967,
and the unassigned fund balance was $901,847. The General Fund has no restricted or assigned fund
balance. As a measure of the General Fund’s liguidity, it 15 vsefol to compare total fund balance to total
fund expenditures for 2024. Total fund balance represents 72 percent of total General Fund expenditures.
In 2024, the fund balance amount in the General Fund increased by $10,948, mainly due to proceeds from
wssuance of debt for the Town Lake Beach House and the East Main Street project.

The fund balance of the Lake Street Debt Service Fund decreased by $22 836 as a result of principal and
mnterest payments in excess of special assessments collected.

Proprietary Funds

The Events Center Enterprise Fund reported an operating loss in 2024 of $28,799, primarily due to cost
mcreases in excess of sales and rental income.

The Liquor Enterprise Fund reported an operating mcome in 2024 of $102,492, indicating that sales are
sufficient to cover operating costs.

The Sewer Enterprise Fund reported an operating income in 2024 of $59028, indicating that it is
collecting fees for services at a rate higher than expenses.

The Water Enterprise Fund reported an operating income in 2024 of $177 861, indicating that it is
collecting fees for services at a rate well above expenses.

The non-major Storm Water Enterprise Fund reported an operating income in 2024 of $11_ 568, indicating
that fees for services are adequate to cover the cost of operations.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

There were no amendments to the eriginal budget as approved for 2024,
Actual revenues were more than overall final budgeted revenues by $114.985, with the largest positive
wvariance in intergovernmental revenue and actual expenditures were more than overall final budgeted

expenditures by $426.169, with the largest variance in underbudgeted capital outlay for highways and
streets.

Page 11
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TEREM DEET
Capital Assets

The City's net investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of
December 31, 2024, amounted to $14 488 881 The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets
for the current fiscal year was approximately 9 percent. This increase was primarily due to infrastructure
improvement projects and construction in progress.

Governmental Activites Busimess-Tvpe Actvides Tofal Primary C-overnment
214 23 1024 201 044 1023
Land ] 74,881 b 674,881 i - i - ] 74,581 i 474,831
Comstmuction in progress 430,931 778,109 675,101 1,268 B34 1106172 1 046 DE3
Infirasmmuctare 4030214 4174398 5,797,801 4 64 432 10,757,115 8941 050
Buildings snd improvements 172095 126,123 618,285 283086 TH 381 468 Mg
Machinery and equipment 1,089 434 1,084,563 70,348 73,574 1,160,332 11358 137
Total capital szsets i 7324458 i 6,900 174 3 7162215 3 62001068 5 14,483,881 § 13294 240

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
Long-Term Debt

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had a total debt outstanding of $5,935.741, net of bond
discouats, which is backed by the full faith and credit of the government.

Governmental Activities Eiusiness-Tvpe Activities Total
2024 2013 024 L] 04 1023
G.0. Bomds IoO306L200  § l4:000 3 - § - % 106140 % 1454004
MM EFA - - 2,663,551 2215420 1,665,551 11540
Bevenme Bonds - - 50,000 0,000 50,000 70,008
Capital Motes 58,789 25873 - EL-} 58,788 80844
32188 3 154907 § 2715551 0§ 2200301 § 5935741 % 3.830 1454

Minnesota Statutes limit the amount of debt the City may have to three percent of its total market value,
excluding revenue bonds. At the end of 2024, overall debt of the City is below the three percent debt
limmit.

Additional information on the City’s leng-term debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S EUDGET

- The City depends on financial resowrces flowing from, or associated with, both the Federal
Government and the State of Minnesota. Because of this dependency, the City is subject to changes
in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on modifications to Federal and State laws and
Federal and State appropriations. It is also subject to changes in investment earnings and asset values

associated with 115, Treasury Securities becanse of actions by foreign governments and other holders
of publicly held U.S. Treasury Securities.

Page 12
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- Specific vnemployment statistics for the City of Frazee are not available. However, according to the
Minnesota Department of Employment & Economic Development. the vnemployment rate for Becker
Counaty was 3.8 percent as of December 31, 2024 This is higher than the statewide rate of 2.7 percent
and the same as the national average rate of 3.8 percent.

- Frazee's 2024 population according to the League of Minnesota Cities was 1,318, a dectease of 17
since the 2020 census of 1,333,

- On December 11, 2024, the City of Frazee set its 2025 revenue and expenditure budgets.

- The City centinues to work towards foture development to accommeodate the needs of residents by
consistently exploring and wotking towards more programming and grant opportunities as a best
practice.

- To lock towards futuwre economic, business, tourism, beautification, arts. and culture opportunities,
the City continues to levy for debt associated with reconstruction projects, including the East Main
Street Project, the Wannagan Fegional Park Project. and the Town Lake Beach Bathhouse Project.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This annpal financial report 15 designed to provide a general overview of the City of Frazee for all those
with an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this
report or requests for additional finaneial information should be addressed to the City of Frazee
Administrator, City Hall, P.O. Box 387, Frazee, Minnesota 56544,

Page 13
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FRAZEE, MINNESOTA
EXHIBIT 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
DECEMEER 31, 2024
Discretely
Primary Government FPresented
Governmental  Buosimess-Type Component
Activities Activities Total Unit
Ansels
Cash and pooled investments ¥ 1,073,349 § 1.580,538 § 2654087 § 608,658
Inwestments 467.528 80,319 347,847 -
Tames receivable
Current 11452 - 12,452 -
Prior 3.789 - 3,780 -
Special assessments receivable
Current 3488 - 3428 -
Prior 46,511 - 44,511 -
Accounts receivable 7,846 87.035 24 881 -
Due from other govermments 214044 - 24,064 -
Inventary - 58,339 58339 -
Motes receivable - - - 274354
Internal balances (89.830) E0.830 - -
Special assessments raceivable - noncurrent 605,522 - 603,522 -
et pension asset 184,759 - 184,750 -
Capital aszets
HNon-depreciable 1,105,842 §75,191 1.781.053 151421
Diepreciable - net of acoumulated depreciation 6,133,571 5,487,034 12,520,605 1,173,339
Total Assets § RATRIZ] & 9058286 % 18737407 & 21130874
Deferred Optflow: of Resources
Pelated to pensions § 161,864 § 6136 % o000 § -
Lizbiliti
Agcounts payahle ¥ 44340 % 3141 0§ 75581 § 1.341
Salaries payahla 5243 3.037 9,280 -
Due o other povemments 1.547 5382 6,938 -
Arcmed interest payable 18.017 12,407 3042 42413
Long-term liabilitias
Diue within one year 303.259 174,605 477,955 -
Drae in more than ons vear 1409078 1,568,369 3077447 1,589,332
Wet pension Liability 127.080 132, 604 360,586 -
Total Liabilities § 1010464 § 1017748 & 49387111 § 1,633,084
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to pensions § 515275 § 56308 % #1673 § -
Het Position
et invesmment in capifal assets ¥ 5340485 % 2446,673  § 2.796,158 % (164.572)
Amounts restricted for
Economic development 181.435 - 181,435 -
Dieht service 1,013,927 - 1.012,927 -
Infrastracnare Feplacemant - 300,047 300,047 -
Unrestricted amounts 071399 1,333,556 2,304,955 662,350
Total Net Position 8 TS15M6 § 6080276 § 13805512 § 407788
The notes to the financial statements are an integral par of this statement. Page 14
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2024

FProgram Fevenues
Operating
Fees, Charges, Grants and
Expenses Fines and Orther Contributions
FunctionsPrograms
Primary Government
Governmental activities
(General povemnment H 348023 % #2117 § 1.756
Public safety 671,739 140,885 134,107
Highways and strests 334438 11,1246 19,771
Sanitation 191,761 188,397 -
Culfure and recreation 50179 557 15312
Economic development 68,433 - -
Interest 55426 - -
Total governmental activities 5 1729899 3 i § 2170 956
Buosimess-type activities
Events Center H M 3§ 61,247 § -
Liguor 643,498 755,170 -
Sewer 196,676 155,253 -
Water 186,800 444,038 -
Storm watsr 1,568 - -
Total business-type activites 5 1238507 4§ 1518608 & -
Total Primary CGovernment 5 1068496 4§ 192179010 § 170956
Component Unit
Economic Development Awthority 5 6506 3 TEesd § 39 941
Cemeral revennes and tramsfers
Franchise fax
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Payments in lisn of taxes
Inwesmment earmings
Transfers
Total general revenues and tramsfers
Change in nef posifion
Net Position - Jannary 1, as previsusly reported
Priog perind adfostment
Met Position - Jannary 1, as restated
Net Position - December 31
The notes to the financial stitements are an intesral part of this statement. Page 15
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EXHIBIT ?

Net (Expensze) Bevenne and Changes in Net Postion

Discretely
Capital Primary Government Fresentfed
Grants and Governmental Business-Type Component
Contributons Activifies Auctivities Total Unit
¥ - (3029500 § H (3029500 §
14205 (283 451) (283450
51,267 (252.174) 251174
- (3.364) (3,348
4,862 (23.418) (23418
(58.433) (68.433)
(35.426) (55.428)
5 70,424 (938217} § H (P89.217) § -
b - H H (2879, §
- AL6T2
- 58,577
417,622 - 577.751
- (1.568)
5 417,622 - H 697633 % 7633 3 -
§ 488,044 (PE0.21T) § 697633 § (291.384) 3§ -
5 - - H H b (127, 630)
G34.528 § H 624,628 §
1301 1301
501,640 SAL640 43,033
10,806 - 20,894 -
I1LB56 5,693 47,540 189
(236,603) 236,603
1033718 3§ 1510106 5 1286014 & 43,112
44501 % D40020  § 4 5 (84, 408)
TAE0TE 5 E130347 § 12728423 § 454 565
(127.331) (127.331) 127,331
TATOT4E  § 5130347 5 12,601,002 3§ 581194
TA1546 5 6080276 § 13505521 § 497,788

The notes to the financial shiements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FRAZFE, MINNESOTA
EXHIBIT 3
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 21, 2024
Nonmajor
Orther
Gaovernmental Total
Lake Street Funds Covernmental
Ceneral Diebit Service (Statement 1) Funds
Azstz
Assets

Cash and pooled investments 3 402401 § - H 689280 3 1,183,771

Imvestments 464,516 - 1011 467,528

Tames receivable

Current 12313 - 368 12,590

Prrior 3,789 - - 3,789

Spedal assessments receivabls
Current - 138 3300 3488

Prrior - 1579 44032 44,511

Accoumrs recenvable 7.846 - - 1,846

True from other fands 375071 - 131,530 504,501

Cne from other governments 19,202 - 4 862 14,064

Special assessments receivabls -

Honcument - 320,913 1B4.600 05,522
Total Assets 3 1379137 § 312 680 8 L1sp803 & 1861710
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Eezources apd Fund Balagce

Accoumts payable H 37055 § - H G385 § 44340

Salaries payable 4116 - 17 4§43

Thue o other fimds 111,00 7.067 SRE.TM 046,791

D to other governments 1443 - &4 1,347
Total Liabilities 3 15653 § 06T 3§ 505310 3 758,911

Deeferred Inflows of Fesonrces

Tames H NG - H - 3 3,789

Special assessments - 311402 319,541 §52,033
Total Deferred Inflows
of Resources - 37ae 3 an4an i esl 3 655 812

Fund Balance

Restricted for

Dbt service H - ¥ - H 3450 0§ 334,510

Economic development - - 181,435 181,435

Conmiitted o -

Fire equipment 144370 - - 144370
(Gensral govermment 84233 - - 84,133

Parks 30,947 - - 30,967

Police equipment 8,658 - - 8658
Sireet equipment 48,730 - - 48,730

Aszizned to -

Puhlic afery - - 1,146 61,146
Culhare and recreation - - jms ERIH]

Unassigned 200,847 [5.5379) (345.97T) 548,991
Total Fund Balance - 1218814 3§ (68T § 135032 % 1 446 967
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows

of Resources, and Fund Balance 5 1379137 3§ inam  § 1158 3 1 861 T10
The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statemert Page 17
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FRAZFE, MINNESOTA
EXHIEIT 4

RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO
THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION-GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
DECEMBER 31, 2024

Fund balance - total governmental funds (Exhibit 3) £ 1,446 967

Armounts reported for governmental activities in the
Statement of MNet Position are different becanse:

Capital assets, net of ascommulated depreciafion, nsed in governmental achvities
are not financisl resources and therefore. are not reported in the govermmensal fimds. 7,239,433

Cither long-temm assets are not available to pay for omment period expendinures
angd, therefore, are deferred in the povernmental fumds. 655 822

Long-term lisbilities are not due and payasile in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental fimds.

Conmpensated absences pavable ¥ (58,148)
Accrusd inserest payable (18,017)
Capital notes payable (58,7800
Greneral obligation bonds paysble (1,585 400) (1,730,354

et pension liability and related ousflowsinflows of resources represent the
allocation of the pension oblizations of the statewide plans to the City. Such
balances are not reported in the governmental fionds:

Diefarred outflows of resouzces related to pensions 3 361,864
Defarmed inflows of resounces related to pensions (515,275)
Iet penzion asset 284760
et pension lishility (227 580) (96,627)

Net position of governmental activities (Exhibit 1) 5 7515246

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement Page 18
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CITY OF FEAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

EXHIEBIT 5

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVEENMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 1024

Nonmajor
(Ot
Covermmental Total
Lalke Sireet Funds Govermmental
Cremeral Debi Service (Statement 1) Funds
Eevennes
Taxzes 3 400727 § - ¥ 12733 § G27.019
Special assessments 1325 40,790 76,112 118,236
Licenses and permits 27798 - - 27,798
Intergovernmental &B3,007 - 102434 TB3 441
Charges for services W0.717 - 120105 32p042
Fines and forfeinres 5.001 - - 5.001
Investment samings 31.8535 - 1 31856
Gifts and conmritations 25,9835 - 151,650 1774635
Miscellanagus 18.019 - 13,200 31219
Toital Revennes - 1493434 § 40790 § 014§ 1134147
Expenditures
Current
(renera) povermment 3 soeRe  § - ¥ a5 358618
Public safety 418.202 - 112840 §31.4851
Higtmays and strests 158.481 - - 158,481
Samitation 191,761 - - 191,761
Culture and reqeation 46,852 - 1,801 43753
Economic development §8.433 - - G8.433
Debit service -
Principal refirement 387 24,000 130,113 178.084
Inemest 6.703 18,635 18,923 45241
Capital eutlay -
Public safery - - 16,615 16,615
Higtmays and sirests 263,701 - - 263,101
Culture and reqeation 165446 - - 165,446
Toital Expenditures - 1685130 § 636 5 543030 § 1 196,804
Excess of Revennes Cver
(Under) Expenditures 3 (191705 § (12.838) § 51584 3§ (162,65T)
Crther Financing Sources (Tses)
Transfers in ¥ - H - H 110350 § 1103480
Transfers out (170.747) - (167216) (346.043)
Total Cither Financimg Somrces (Tses) § Nlea § - 5 (56.854) 35 145,797
Net Changze in Fund Balance 5 10948 § (22.834) § 4y 5 (16.560)
Fund Balance - Janmary L as
a5 previonsly reported i 107866 5 15957 § T 3aE 0§ 1591158
Prior period adjustment - - {127.331) {127.331)
Fund Balance - Janmary 1, as
restated 5 L7866 § 15857 § 4004 5 1 463 8527
Fund Balance - December 31 5 1718814 § H8™ 5 B2 5 L6 0aT

The notes 1o the fnancisl statements are an integral part of this staremens.
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CITY OF FRAZFE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

EXHIBIT 6
REECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF EEVENUES, EXFENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES—COVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2014
Net chamge in fond balance - total govermmental fumds (Exhibic 5) ] {16,860)
Amoumts reporied for govemmental activities m the
Statament of Activities am difforsat becanse:
Goweme=sntal funds report capital outlay as expenditres. However, in
the Statemsent of Actvities, the cost of thowe aumets s allocaiesd over
their estimated nsefnl lives and reported as depreciation sxpemss.
Expsenditures for geneml capital asset: and infrastucms H 303,782
Crurrunt ysar depraciation {264,603) 141,159
Eevenues in the Statement of Activities that do not prowids curment financial
TenOUrCes are not reported as revenmes in the griemmental fimds.
Change in
Taxws receivzhle H {0,050
Specizl assssaments recaivable {89, 728)
Mot recaivabls 37,6709 (128, 48:5)
Tha issnance of long-turm debt provides cument financial resouroes o govemmantal
funds, but incresses lomg-tarm lisbilities in the Statensent of Met Positon, whils the
regayment of the principal of long-tarm debt consmmes the corment financial resonrees
of goverzmmental fonds, bowsver, nedther tansaction has amy effect on net position.
Procesds from issmancs of debt H (382,200)
Principal repaymweat co debt 278,084 (104,318
Some sxpenses reported in the Stvement of Activites do not requins the we
of curreat financial revomroes and, thorednrs, 2re not reparted as sxpemditimes in
govemmental fumds.
Changs in
Accreed interest payable £ (18,165)
Compemated absances payable 3,666 {6,4549)
Met pansion aswet and Lishility do not reprevest an impending soures or nse of currest resoerces.
Tharsfors, the changs in the asset, liabilty, and related dafemmals of msources am not
reported m the govermmental fends.
Change in
Mut pansion msat 1 107,683
Mot pezsica Eakility 93,717
Daferred outflowrs of rerources related to pansions (123,43%)
Daferred xflows of msources mlated to peamsions {20,640 39,503
Change in met pesiten of povernmental activities (Exkibit 1) % 4,501
The notes to the fzancial smbepsents are an integral past of this statement. Page 20
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FRAZEE, MINNESOTA
EXHIBIT 7
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FROFRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMEER 31, 2024
Nonmajor
Events Center Liguor Sewer Water Storm Water
Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Enterprise Total
Assets
Cuorrent Assets
Cash and pooled investments H - 3 149,062 408,898 B65438  § 67,120 § 1,580,538
Invesments - 80319 - - 80,312
Accounts receivable - 8177 57,554 13 87,035
Crue from other fimds - 162,744 - - 162,744
Inventory 3820 34.519 58,339
Total Current Assets H ism 3 166 315 607,394 1301 % 63424 % 1,968 975
Nomcurrent Assets
Capital assets
Mon-depreciable 5 - 3 263.807 411384 % 3 675,191
Depreciable - pet of
acoumulated depreciatdon 462,304 164,144 1,166,311 4,684,075 6,487,034
Total Noncurrent Assets H 462304 3§ 164,144 1430318 5105459 § - 3 7162225
Total Assets H 466124 3 530 469 1,037,712 6028471 § 68424 % 2131100
Deferred Ouiflows of Resources
Felated to pensions i 1331 § 15,737 5,743 9315 3§ 3 36,1348
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 5 040§ 15,583 bog4 2654 § 3
Salanies payahble e 1.245 628 1091
Compensated absences payable - 1712 1128 2,102
Cnue to other funds 51,744 - 10,720 10,450
Crue to other govemments 4 5351 - -
Accred inferest payabls - 1.220 4 885 5,302
Bonds payahls - 51661 105,082
Total Current Liabilities § 51898 % 31111 78,987 134601 § - 3
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences payable 5 - 3 - - 93570 § - 3 9.370
et pension Hability B.555 57,748 31,082 34111 132,606
Bonds payahls - 120,600 B33.309 1,504,800 1,558,709
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 5 8555 3§ 178,348 D65.481 1548501 § - 3 1THATS
Total Liabilities § 62453 3§ 110 459 1,044 468 168328 § - 3 1000662
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Felated to pensions i 5574 3 37.625 20,903 1220 § 3 85,3098
Net Positi
Net investment in capitl asssts 5 462,304 3§ 43544 445,258 3485567 § 3 4,444,673
Resmcted far
Infrasrucnare Feplacement - - 111.840 188,207 - 300,047
Unrestricted amounts (61.878) 154,578 4130846 548444 68,424 1,333,556
Total Net Position 5 Ho4E 3§ 208112 981084 413218 § 68424 3 6.080.276
The notes to the financial statements are an intagral part of this statement. Page 21
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FRAZEE, MINNESOTA
EXHIEIT &
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXFENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET FOSITION
FROFRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2024
Nonmajor
Events Center Liguor Sewer Water Storm Water
Enterprise Enferprise Enterprise Enterprize Enterprise Taital
Sales and Cost of Goods Sold
Sales H 358298 % 751473 3§ - H - 5 TES3T]
Cost of goods sold 13,152) (424.719) - [457.871)
Cross Profit H 13746 % T4 % - H - § - L3500
Operating Eevenne:
Charges for services - - 10619 45340 13,136 600,005
Miscallanenus 14340 - - - 14340
Insurance reimbursement - 1697 1,408 1,598 5,793
Total Gross Profit and
Operating Fevemnes H 4805 5 An4E1 § M111T 5 446938 5 13136 1,060,737
Operating Expenses
Persomne] services H 15108 3§ 123084 3 122460 § er.e2n § 378,573
Advertizing 1454 ] - - 1331
Insurance 1385 11,383 11,584 B339 - 38,613
Fepairs and maintenance 12,443 11,353 3,848 9,705 1,090 38451
Supplies 8148 0,663 4,562 15,360 44 39137
TUtilities 12,194 12570 18,575 11.047 - 4 487
Miscellanaous 3423 T.346 137 7.581 74 18,651
Depreciation 15,528 1,771 21,920 118,024 157,344
Total Operating Expenses H TaEd 5 WTeEr % 183080 5 180T & 1568 T8 587
Operating Income (Loss) H (28,709 § Wr4e? % 50018 3 177861 § 11,568 311150
Nonoperating Fevenues (Expenses)
Intergovernmental H - 5 - 3 - H 417,622 § 417,622
Investment samings 325 650 1154 13,554 15,693
Interest expense - (10,320 (13.58T) (17.73%) (42,139
Total Nonoperating Fevennes
(Expenses) H s % a1ty 3 (12433 3 413454 § - W17
Imcome (Loss) Before Tramsfers  § (X8ATH 5 0min 3 46505 § ERla1s & 11,568 713,316
Trmsfers m 179,747 - - 56,856 136,603
Change in Net Position H 151173 & 913§ 46,505 § 501315 % 68414 040,009
Net Position - Jamnary 1 249,155 205,800 034,489 3,740,902 - 5,130,347
Net Postion - December 31 H 400428 § 05112 § BE1L0E4 5 4332118 § 68424 6,080,276
The potes to the financial smtements are an inteeral part of this satement. Page 2
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZFF, AMINNESOTA

EXHIEIT 9
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PFROFEIETARY FUNDS
FORE THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Nonmajar
Event: Ceater Ligmor Sewer Water Storm Warter
Enterprize Enterprize Enterprize Enterprize Enterprize Total
Cash Flows from Operating Acovides
Raceipts from covmmer 1 62045 % TIT4T4 & 240402 % 419842 & 11934 % 1,501,797
Paymants to smployess (16,645) (143.821) (143.879) {110,047 - (416,2582)
Paymants to supplisrs (36,564) {34,111 (33,385) {H072) (L670) {632,212)
et cazh provided by (used in) operadng sctivities 3 (11,564) % lig74: 5 59018 § 165813 § 10,26 § 433,193
Cask Flows frem Noncapital and Related Finascing Acthige:
Trznfars from other finds i 127508 % i % - ] - 5 6B % 257,636
Trazafars to other fands (+8.161) - - - (48,161}
et cazh provided by (used in) operadng actvites 3 78§ (45.289) % - § - $ 56856 % 130 ATE
Cash Flows frem Capitsl and Related Financing Activides
Trzafan in i - ] 111000 % - ] - 5 - ] 111,000
Capital mants mecaived - - - 417622 - 417,622
Procesds from fsmance of debt - - 339,360 111,972 - 431,332
Parchase of capital awets (RL6,669) (135.743) (263,807) (4113849 - (1.027,603)
Ravamms bond payments - (120,500 (30,000) {82,000 - (242,600)
Capial note payments - - (3.871) - - 3870
Inforast pasd - (5.500) (13.054) {17.59E) - (20.350)
Net cask provided by (msed iz) capital
azd relaced Bnamcing activities ] (216,669} § 14843 £ BT § £51 £ - § (334,371)
Cask Flow: from Investing Activities
Investmant samings received 3 33 % [ 1154 % 13,3 & - - 15,653
et Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalenes  § - ] (B8540) % BESID % 18788 § 67120 % 334,089
Cash and Cask Equivalents at Jannary 1 - 138 802 400,307 577,559 - 1,306,768
Cash and Cash Equivaleats at December 31 $ - § 148062 § 51,217 § 865458 § 67120 § 1,660,857
Eecomciliation of eperating income (lozz) to
met cach provided by (used in) operatdng activides
Operating ncoms (lous) ] (28,79%) % 12492 % 908 % 177861 % 11,568 % 312,150
Adjusments to recomdile net operating income (Joss)
o net cash provided by (used in) operating activitie:
Diepraciztion sxpszse i 1588 % 1711 % 180 % 118024 % - ] 13734
Diecrease (increass)) in assets
Arcounts recsivabls 1188 £11 17 {15187 {13049 {14,708)
Imvembory 164 (B.789) - - - (B.637)
Incrwas (decrsasa)) in labibtes
Accomat payable 1,181 1003 7283 (B4 - 10.42¢
Salaries pryable T3 (3.515) (3.670) 3373 - (10,384)
Dhua 1o cther fonds - (LE7D) - - - (2.871)
Due to other goverzmeats - 2 - {201y - 141
Compemsated absances payahbls - 7203 (17,337) (6,309 - (16,661)
Mt pemnion bility (1,010} 9,504 (7.761) (4.043) - (33100
Total adjusoments 3 17,035 § TIH 0§ - § 87962 % L3y % 111,143
et cash provided by (used in) operacng acrivities 3 (11,564) § L4 3§ 59,028 § 165813 § 10264 § 433,193
Tha notos to the: financisl staicments aro an integral part of this statement. Pag223
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF AND FOR. THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBEE. 31. 2024

I, Swmmary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (statements
and interpretations). The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City are
discussed below.

A, Financial Reporting Entity

The City of Frazee was established on February 10, 1891, and has the powers, duties, and privileges
granted by state law, codified in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 412, As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements present the City of Frazee
(primary government) and its component unit for which the City is financially accountable.

The City operates under a Mayor-Covncil form of government and provides services such as general
government, public safety, highways and streets. sanitation, culture and recreation. economic
development, Events Center, liquor store, and sewer, water, and storm water wtilities, as authorized by
its charter.

The Frazee Fire Belief Association is organized to provide pension and other benefits to its members in
accordance with Minnesota statutes. The Fire Belief Association 15 a defined benefit plan type and as
requited by GASB Pronouncement No. 68 is included in the financial statements of the City.

The City participates in a joint venture as described in Note VI-C.

Discretelv Presented Component Unit

While part of the City of Frazee, the discretely presented component vnit is presented in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the
City. The Frazee Economic Development Authority (EDA) 1s a component unit of the City of Frazee
and is discretely presented. The EDA was created to enhance economic development for the City.
Board members are appointed by the City Couneil.

The component unit does not issue separately andited component unit financial statements. Additional
financial information about the EDA can be cbtained from the City of Frazee
Administrator/Clerk/ Treasurer, City Hall, P.O. Box 387, Frazee, Minnesota 56544,

E. Basic Financial Statements

1. Government-Wide Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e.. the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) include the financial activities of the overall City government. Eliminations have been
made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities. Governmental activities, which
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

I Suvmmary of Significant Accounting Policies

B. Baszic Financial Statements
1. Government-Wide Statements (Continued)

business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges to external parties for
SUpport.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type
activities columns: (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column; and (b) are reported on a
full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and recervables as well
as long-term debt and cbligations. The City's net position is reperted in three parts: (1) net
imvestment in capital assets; (2) restricted net position; and (3) varestricted net position. The City
first utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of each function
of the City’s governmental activities and different business-type activities are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or activity.
Program revenues include: (1) fees, charges. and fines paid by the recipients of goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or activity; and (2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or activity.
Bevenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general
revenues and transfers.

2. Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds. Separate statements for
each fund category—governmental and proprietary—are presented. The emphasis of governmental
and proprietary fund financial statements is on major individual governmental and enterprise funds,
with each displayed as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining
governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services. result from exchange
transactions associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in
which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as
property taxes, grants, domations, subsidies and mvestment earmngs, result from nonexchange
transactions or incidental activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund 15 the City's primary operating fond. It accounts for and reports all
financial resources of the general government not accounted for in another fund.

The Lake Street Debt Service Fund is nsed to account for, and report debt associated with the
General Obligation Improvement Notes, Series 2022B for public improvements associated
with the Lake Street Project.

Page 23

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 33 of 147



CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE. MINNESOTA

I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

B. Basic Financial Statements
2. Fund Financial Statements (Continmed)

The City reports the following major enterprise funds:

The Events Center Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s Events
Center. Financing is provided by concession sales and space rental for events.

The Liguor Enterprise Fund is wsed to account for the operations of the City’s liguor store.
Financing is provided through the liquor store’s sale of on and off-sale liquor.

The Sewer Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s sewer systeny
Financing is provided by charges to residents for services.

The Water Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City's water system.
Financing is provided by charges to residents for services.

Additionally, the City reports the following non-major fund types:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenme
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt

service or capital projects.

Debt Service Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

The Storm Water Enterprise Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’'s storm
water system. Financing is provided by charges to residents for services.

C. Meazurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed,
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes and special assessments are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. The City considers tax and special assessment revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days after the end of the cument period. Intergovernmental revenues,
charges for services, and interest are all considered to be susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are
recorded when the related fund liability is incwred, except for principal and interest on general long-
term debt and claims and judgments, which are recognized as expenditures to the extent that they have
matured. Proceeds of general long-term debt are reported as other financing sowrces.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE. MINNESOTA

I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements.

D.  Assets. Liabilities. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position or Equity

1. Caszh and Cazh Equivalents

The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand and demand deposits.
Additionally, each fund’s equity in the City’s deposits is treated as a cash equivalent becaunse the
funds can deposit or effectively withdraw cash at any time without prior notice or penalty. Cash
and cash equivalents are valued at fair value.

2. Deposits and Investments

The cash balamces of the funds are invested by the City Administrator/ClerkoTreasurer for the
purpose of increasing earnings through investment activities. Pooled and fuond investments are
reported at their fair value at December 31, 2024, based on market prices. Investment earnings on
cash and pooled investments are allocated to the funds with deposits. City funds also participate in
a pooled checking account for operating purposes. Pooled investment eammings for 2024 were
$44,142. Total investment earnings for 2024 were $47 549,

3. Receivables and Pavables

Property taxes are levied as of January 1 on property values assessed as of the same date. The tax
levy notice is mailed by Becker County in March with the first half payment due on May 15 and
the second half due on October 15.

Taxes and special assessments receivable consist of uncollected taxes and special assessments
payable in the years 2018 through 2024 and deferred special assessments collectible in 2025 and
beyvond. Taxes and special assessments receivable are offset by deferred inflows of resources for
the amount not collected within 60 days of December 31 to indicate they are not available to
finance current expenditures. WNo provision has been made for an estimated vacollectible amount.

Accounts receivable consist primarily of charges for services for sewer, water, and storm water
utilities.

WNotes receivable consist of housing rehabilitation and business development notes of the Economic
Development Authority.

Activity between funds that are representative of lendingborrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds™ (1.e., the current portion
of interfund loans) or “advances from/to other funds™ (ie.. the non-current portion of interfund
loans).
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FEAZEE, MINNESOTA

I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

D.  Assets. Liahilities Deferred Outflows Inflows of Resources. and Net Position or Equity

3. Receivables and Pavables (Continned)

All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other fonds.™ Any
residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”™

All receivables are shown net of an allowance for vncollectible amounts, if applicable.

4 Inventory

All inventories are valued at cost using the First-In, First-Out (FIFO) methed. Inventories in the
proprietary funds are recorded as expenses when consumed.

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, construction in progress, infrastructure (e.g., sewers and water
mains), buildings and improvements, and machinery and equipment, are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements.
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individeal cost of more than
$5,000 and an estimated vseful life in excess of two years, except land and construction in progress
which are capitalized regardless of cost. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated
historical cost when purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition
value at the date of acquisition.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extended the life of the asset are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements
are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Infrastructure, buildings and improvements, and machinery and equipment are depreciated using
the straight-line method over the following estimated nseful lives:

Assets Years
Infrastructure 30-40
Buildings and improvements 20-40
Machinery and equipment 3-30

6. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position reports a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This element represents a consumption of net position that applies to future periods,
and therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until that time. The City
repotts deferred outflows of resources in the government-wide and the proprietary funds Statement
of Net Position in relation to the activity of the pension funds in which City employees participate.

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position and Balance Sheet report a separate section
for deferred inflows of resources. This element represents an acquisition of net position or fund
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

I  Sommary of Significant Accounting Policies

D Assets. Liabilities. Deferred Outflows Inflows of Resonrces. and Net Position or Equity

6. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Rescurces (Continued)

balance that applies to future periods, and therefore, will not be recogmized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) vntil that time. The City reports delingquent property tax and special assessment
receivables, and special assessments levied for subsequent years as deferred inflows of resources in
the governmental fonds, in accordance with the modified acerval basis of accounting. In addition,
the City reperts deferred inflows of resources in the government-wide and proprietary funds
Statement of Net Position in relation to the activity of the pension funds in which City employees
participate. Accordingly, such amounts are deferred and recognized as inflows of resources in the
period that they become available.

Compensated Absences

The liability for compensated absences reported in financial statements consists of unpaid,
accumulated annval vacation and sick and safe leave balances. The liability has been calculated
using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to
receive termunation payments and other employvees who are expected to become eligible in the
future to receive such payments upon termination are included. Compensated absences are accrued
when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for
these amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example. as a
result of employee resignations and retirements. Compensated absences are generally liquidated by
the General Fund and the Liguor, Sewer, and Water Enterprise Funds.

8. Long-Term Oblizations

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities and business-
type activities. Bond discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond discount. Bond
issuance costs are immediately expensed. In the fond financial statements, governmental fund types
recognize the face amount of the debt as other financing sources when issued.

9 Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and
pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement
Aszociation (PERA) and additions to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by PEPA except that PERA’s fiscal year end i3
June 30. For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and
benefit payments, and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. For the governmental activities, the pension lability
is liguidated by the General Fund, and for business-type activities, the pension liability is liquidated
by the Events Center, Liguor, Sewer, and Water Enterprise Fonds.

For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and
expense associated with the City’s requirement to contribute to the Frazee Firefighters Relief
Asszociation Plan, information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

I.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

D.  Assets. Liabilities, Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources. and Net Position or Equity

9.  Pensions (Continued)

from the Frazee Firefighters Relief Association Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refonds of contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. The net pension asset is recorded in the General Fund.

10. Net Position and Fund Balance

Net position in the government-wide statements is classified in the following categories:

Net wvestment in capital assets — represents capital assets, net of accummulated depreciation,
and reduced by outstanding debt attributed to the acouisition, construction, or improvement of
the assets.

Bestricted net position — the amount of net position for which external restrictions have been
imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments and
restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position — the amount of net position that does not meet the definition of
restricted or net investment of capital assets.

In the fund financial statements, the City classifies governmental fund balances as follows:

Non-spendable — mncludes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent becanse it is either not in
spendable form or legally or contractnally required to be maintained intact. The City reports
no non-spendable fund balance at December 31, 2024,

Bestricted — includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific pwposes which
are either externally imposed by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or
laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.

Committed — inclodes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
imposed by resolution of the City Council and do not lapse at year-end. To remove the
constraint on specified use of committed resources the City Council shall pass a resolution.

Assigned — includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes
that are neither restricted nor commmitted. The City Council has delegated the anthority to
assign and remove assignments of fund balance amounts for specified purposes to the City

Administrator/Clerk/ Treasurer.
Unassigned — includes positive fund balance within the General Fund, which has not been

classified within the above-mentioned categories, and negative fund balances in other
governmental funds.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

I.  Sommary of Significant Accounting Policies

D.  Assets. Liahilities Deferred Outflows/ Inflows of Resonrces and Wet Position or Equity

10. Net Position and Fund Balance {Continued)

The City will maintain an vorestricted fund balance in the General Fund of an amount not less than
35 to 30 percent of next year's budgeted expenditures of the General Fund. Unrestricted fund
balance can be “spent down”™ if there is an anticipated budget. If spending vworestricted fund balance
in designated circumstances has reduced vorestricted fund balance to a point below the minimum
targeted level the replenishment will be funded by taxes.

Stabilization arrangements are defined as formally setting aside amounts for vse in emergency
sitnations or when revenue shortages or budgetary imbalances arise. The City Council will set aside
amounts by resclution as deemed necessary that can only be expended when unforeseen
emergencies exist as the need for stabilization arises. The need for stabilization will only be
utilized fior situations that are not expected to occur routinely. The City does not identify an amount
for stabilization at December 31, 2024.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then vnrestricted resources as they are needed. When committed, assigned
or unassigned resowrces are available for use, it is the City's policy to use resources i the
following order: 1) committed, 2) assigned, and 3) vnassigned.

11. Usze of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and deferred outflows/inflows of resources,
and disclosure of contingent amounts at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

0. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A Deficit Fund Balances

The following funds had deficit fund balances as of December 31. 2024, which will be eliminated with
future special assessments and revennes:

Lake Street Debt Service Fund: £ 6879
Cemetery Special Revenue Fund: § 4280
Fire Special Reverme Fund: 3 87

2016 Improvements and Refunding Debt Service Fund:  $176,083
Southeast Area Streets and Utilities Debt Service Fund:  $165.518
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

I Stewardship. Compliance, and Accountability (Continued)

B. ERestatements

As of Janvary 1, 2024, the Revelving Loan Special Revenve Fund and the Small Cities Development
(SCDP) Special Revenne Fund were moved into the Economic Development Component Unit to more
accurately reflect their purpose. Fund Balance and Net Position were restated to reflect the change.

Prior Period Adjustment

Soall Crties
Revohing Loan Development
Special Revenue {SCDPF) Special
Fund Fevenue Fund
Fund Balance - Jammary 1, 2024, as previously reported 5 19,818 5 107,513
Prior pened adjustment (19, 818) (107.513)
Fund Balance - Jammary 1, 2024, as restated 5 - 5 -
Economic Development
Govermnmental Authonty
Activities Component Uit
Net Posifion - Jamuary 1, 2024, a5 previously reported 5 7,598,076 5 454 865
Prior pened adjustment {127,331 127331
et Poniion - January 1, 2024, as restated 5 TATO, 745 1 582196

III. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A Assets

1. Deposits and Investments

Reconciliations of the City's total deposits and investments to the basic financial statements. as of
December 31, 2024, are as follows:
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

II. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A Assets

1.  Deposits and Investments (Continned)

Governmental Activities

Cash and peeled investments 5 1073349

Imvestments 467 528
3 1541077

Business-Type Activities

Cash and pooled investments 5 1,580,338

Iowestments 50,319
5 1,660,857

Component Unit

Cash and peeled investments 3 §08.558

Total Cash and Investments 3 3ElI0 302
Checking Accounts 5 1318
Savings Accoumts 1,032,454
Certificates of Deposit 413,045
4M Fund 12

Tatal Deposits 3 3ElI0 302

Deposits

Minnesota Statutes, §§ 118A 02 and 118A 04 autherize the City to depesit its cash and to invest in
certificates of depesit in finanecial institutions designated by the Board Minnesota Statute, §
118A 03 requires that all City deposits be covered by insurance, surety bond, or collateral. The
market value of collateral pledged shall be at least ten percent more than the amount on deposit
plus accrned interest at the close of the financial institotion’s banling day, not covered by
insurance or bonds.

Authorized collateral includes treasury bills, notes, and bends; 1ssues of ULS. government agencies;
general cbligations rated “A”™ or better, revenue obligations rated “AA™ or better; irrevocable
standard letters of credit issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank; and certificates of deposit.

Minnesota statutes require that securities pledged as cellateral be held in safelkeeping in a restricted
account at the Federal Reserve Bank or in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or
other financial institution not owned or controlled by the financial institution fimishing the
collateral.

Custodial Credit Rask

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the City’s deposits
may not be returned to it. The City’s policy is to comply with Minnesota statotes in establishing
authorized collateral for deposits. As of December 31, 2024, the City's deposits were not exposed
to custodial credit risk.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FEAZEE, MINNESOTA

III. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A Assets (Continmed)
2. Receivables

Receivables as of December 31, 2024, for the City's governmental activities and business-type
activities, including any applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Amowmnts Mot Schedualed
for Collection Dharing
Total Becervables the Subsequent Year

Governmental Activities

T axes recervable 5 16,241 5 -
Special assessments receivable 655,521 605,522
Accownts receivable 7.8446 -
Dnue from other governments 24 064 -

T otal Governmental Activities 5 T03.672 5 505,522

Business-Type Activities
Accownts recervable 5 87,035 5 -

T otal Business-T ype Activiiies 5 87,035 5 -

3. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the governmental and business-type activities for the yvear ended
December 31, 2024, was as follows:

Governmental Activities Baginning Ending
Balance Increases Derreases Balance

Capital assets, not being depreciated

Land 3 674,281 3 - H - § 674,801

Construction in proeress TIE 109 406,752 753,880 430,981
Total capital assets not depreciated 3 1,452,900 3 406,752 H 753,280 § 1105862

Capifal assets being depreciated

Infrasmacure 3 6,190,033 3 753,880 H - 6824013

Buildingz and improvements 745,600 - - 745,600

Machinery and equipment 1,724,451 20,010 - 1,323 461
Todal capital assets being depreciated 3 B.641,084 3 B52.890 5 - 5 0513974

Less: accummlated depreciation for

Infrastmacture 3 1,820,212 3 156,487 H - § 1,083 500

Buildings and improvements 550477 14.027 - 573,504

Machinery and equipment 630,288 04,089 - 7338077
Total accummlated depreciation 3 3028577 3 264,603 5 - § 3.293.180
Total capital assets, depreciated, net 3 5,632,507 3 588.287 5 - §  6.220,704
Gowemmental Activities
Capital Assats, Net 3 7085487 3 205,030 H 753,280 §  7.326.658
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A Assets
3. Capital Assets (Continned)

Business-Type Activities
(Capital assefs, not being depreciated
Construction in progress

(Capital assefs being depreciated
Infrastmicume
Tiotal capital assefs being depreciated
Less: acoummilated depreciation for
Infastnacture
Buildings and improvements
Total accummilated depreciation
Tiotal capital assefs, deprecated, net
Business-Type Activites
Capital Assets, Met

Depreciation Expense

CITY OF FRAZEE

Depreciation expense was charged to functions of the City as follows:

Governmental Activites
General government
Public safety

Highways and streets
Culture and recreation

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities
Events Center

Liquor

Sewer

Water

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activifies

FRAZEE. MINNESOTA
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Diacreases Balance

H 1,258,854 3 675,191 5 1,268,854 575,191
H 5,591,608 3 1268854 5 - 5,860,552
1,146,410 352412 - 1,408,522
456,035 - - 436,055
H 7,194 163 3 1,621,256 i - B.B15,420
H 025245 5 137,405 5 1,062,651
853,324 17213 880,537
381,481 1,726 385,207
H 2,171,051 5 157,344 5 1,328,395
H 5,023,112 5 1,463,822 5 5,487,034
H 5,291,065 5 2139113 5 1,268,854 T.162,225

5 6,639

72446

175,092

10426

5 264,603

5 15,629

1,771

21,920

118.024

5 157,344

Page 35

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 43 of 147



CITY OF TRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

III. Detailed Notes on All Funds

B. Interfund Receivables. Pavables. and Transfers

The compesition of interfund balances as of December 31, 2024, 15 as follows:

Due To/From Other Funds
Feceivable Fund Payable Fumd Amoumt
Greneral Fund Cemetary Special Fevenue Fund ¥ 4280
Wannazan Fegienal Park Specal Pevenne Fund 044
2008 Street Improvements Special Revenwe Fund 197,253
Spruce Avemne Debt Senice Fund 165,518
Lake Street Diebt Sarvice Fund 7,067
Total Due To General Fund ¥ 375,071
Liquor Enterprise Fund (General Fund 3 111.000
Event Center Enterprise Fund 51744
Total Due To Liguor Enterprise Fund ¥ 162,744
2016 Street [nprovements
Special Fevenne Fund ‘Water Enterprise Fund 3 10,450
Sewer Enterprise Fund 10,720
Total Due To 20146 Street Improvements
Spedal Feverme Fund 3 21,170
2006 Fed Willow Heights I
Dight Zarvice Fund TTF Special Revenues Fumd ¥ 110,360
Total Due ToFrom Cther Funds ¥ 60 345

Operating Transfers

To cover cash defidits
To cover cash deficits
To cover cash deficits
To cover cash deficits
To cover cash deficits

Bond proceeds wrong fumd
To cover cash deficit

Diebt paid wrong fund
Dbt paid wrong fund

TIF assessments for debt services

Interfund transfers for the vear ended December 31, 2024, consisted of the following operating

transfers:

Transfer to Storr Water Enterprise Fund

from Stom Water Special Revenue Fond § 36,836

Transfer to 2006 Bed Willow Heights [T Debt Service Fund

from TIF 1-3 Red Willow Heights Special Bevenue Fund § 110,360
Transfer to Event Center Enterprise Fund
from General Fund § 178,747

Total Interfond Transfers § 346,963
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IT. Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued)

. Liabilities

Compensated Absences

Under the City's personnel policy, for full-time employees, vacation leave accrual varies from 40-120
hours (5 to 15 days) per year. After one year of service, vacation leave may be used as it is earned.
Emplovees may accrue vacation leave up to a maximum of 280 hours. Vacation leave can only be
converted to a cash payment at termination. All employees earn sick leave at the rate of 1.38 howrs for
every 30 hours wotked. Sick leave may be accummlated to 800 hours. Sick days uoused over 40 days
may be socld back to the City in December of any given year or paid out at termination at 2 the
compensation rate. Part-time employees may camy over earned sick leave up to 80 howrs. Unwvested sick
leave, approximately $36.436 at December 31, 2024, is available to emplovees in the event of illness-
related absences and is not paid to them at termination. Compensated absences are generally liquidated
by the General Fund and the Sewer and Water Enterprise Funds.

Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities

City of Frazee General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012A (Rural Water MIDI Loan) represent
debt incurred to refund the General Obligation Street Improvement Bonds of 2006 and the General
Obligation Red Willow Heights Improvement Bonds of 2006, These bonds have an original issue
amount of $810,000. They carry a net interest rate of 3.0 percent and are due in annual installments
from the Fed Willow Heights II Debt Service Fund of $35.000 to $70,000 through Febroary 1. 2026. As
a result of the refonding, the City of Frazee realized an economic gain of $63.333 with a present value
of $72.012. The balance outstanding at December 31, 2024 is $115.000.

City of Frazee General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2013 represent debt mcurred for street and
utility improvements. These bonds have an original issne amount of $333,000. They carry a net interest
rate of 2.20 percent and are due in anmnal installments from the Southeast Area Street and Utilities
Improvement Debt Service Fund of $21.000 to $22,000 through February 1, 2024, These bonds were
paid off in fill by the end of 2024.

City of Frazee General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2014 A represent debt incurred for street and
utility improvements. These bonds have an original issne amount of $393,000. They carry a net interest
rate of 3.10 percent and are due in annual installments from the County Foad 118 Debt Service Fund of
$33,000 to $39,000 thromgh Febmary 1, 2027. The balance outstanding at December 31, 2024, =
$113,000.

City of Frazee General Obligation Improvement and Refunding Bonds of 2016A represent debt iﬂq:urred
to refond the General Obligation Street Improvement Bonds of 2008 and provide for 2017 s
improvements. These bonds have an original issve amount of $288.000. They camv a net interest rate
of 2.40 percent and are doe in annual installments from the 2016 Improvements and Refunding Debt
Service Fund of $19.000 to $39.000 through Febmary 1. 2027. As a result of the refunding, the City of
Frazee realized an economic gain of $22 834 with a present value of $13 641 The balance outstanding
at December 31_ 2024, is $38,000.
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities
Long-Term Debt
Governmental Activities (Continued)

City of Frazee General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2017A represent debt incurred for
infrastructure improvements to the Southeast Area and Main Avenme West. These bonds have an
original issue amount of $404,000. They carry a net interest rate of 3 percent and are due in anmmal
installments from the Southeast Area and Main Avenue West Debt Service Fund of $39.000 to 47,000
through Febrary 1, 2028, The balance outstanding at December 31, 2024, is $175.000.

City of Frazee Capital Note Installment Purchase represents debt incurred for the purchase of a Massey
Ferguson tractor. This capital note installment purchase has an original izsve amount of $63 2835 and
carries a net interest rate of 3.60 percent and is due in combined annmal installments from the General
Fund (streets share) and the Sewer Enterprize Fund of $3.979 to 86,651 through 2024, Thiz note was
paid off in full by the end of 2024.

City of Frazee Capital Note Installment Purchase represents debt incurred for the purchase of a 2021
Freightliner M2 fire truck. This capital note installment purchase has an original isswe amount of
$199.777 and carries a net interest rate of 2.50 percent and is due in combined annuval installments from
the General Fund of 531,177 to 568,933 through 2025. The balance outstanding at December 31, 2024,
iz $38 780

City of Frazee General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2022B represented debt 1ssued to provide for
public improvements associated with the 2022 complete street project in collaboration with MNDOT.
These bonds have an original issue amount of $792,000. They carry a net interest rate of 2.55 percent
and are due in annual installments from the General Fund of $44.000 to $63,000 through Febmary 1,
2038. The balance outstanding on December 31, 2024 is $742.000.

City of Frazee Town Lake Beach General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2024D represented debt
issued to provide for the construction of a beach house. These bonds have an original issue amount of
$80,400. They carry a net interest sate of 4.60 percent and are dve in annual installments from the
General Fund of $9,000 to $18.000 through Febmary 1, 2041 The balance outstanding on December
31, 2024, i= $80.400.

City of Frazee East Main General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2024D represented debt issued to
provide financing for improvements to East Main Street. These bonds have an criginal issue amount of
$302,000. They carmry a net interest rate of 4.60 percent and are due in anmwal installments from the
General Fund of $14.000 to $27.000 through Febmary 1, 2041. The balance outstanding on December
31, 2024, is $302.000.

Business-Tvpe Activities

City of Frazee General Obligation Improvement and Refunding Bonds of 2016A represent debt incurred
to refund the General Obligation Utility Bevenue Bonds of 2010. These bonds have an original issue

amouvnt of $215,000. They carry a net interest rate of 2.40 percent and are due in annual installments
from the Water and Sewer Enterprise Funds of $20,000 to $25.000 through Febmary 1, 2026. Az a
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II. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liahilities
Leng-Term Debt

Business Type Activities {Continued)

result of the refunding, the City of Frazee realized an economic gain of $12.455 with a present value of
$11,178. The balance outstanding at December 31, 2024, iz $50,000.

City of Frazee Minnesota PFA Clean Water and Drinking Water Revelving Loans of 2017 represent
debt incwred for wastewater and drinking water improvements. These loans have an original issue
amount of $393, 040, They carry a net interest rate of 1 percent and are dve in annual installments from
the Water and Sewer Enterprize Funds of $20,000 to $23,000 through Auwgnst 20, 2036, The balance
outstanding at December 31, 2024, is $264.500.

City of Frazee Minnesota PFA Drinling Water Revelving Loans of 2019 represent debt incurred for
water infrastructure improvements, This loan has an original issue amount of $87.742, with an
additional $1,117,589 added in 2020 and $220,780 in 2022, and carries a net interest rate of 1 percent
and is due in annual installments from the Water Enterprise Fund of $69.000 to $81,000 through 2035,
The balance outstanding at December 31, 2024, is $1,146.000.

City of Frazee Capital Note Installment Purchase represents debt incurred for the purchase of a Massey
Ferguson tractor. This capital note installment purchase has an original issue amount of $63.285 and
camries a net interest rate of 3.60 percent and is due in combined annual installments from the General
Fund (streets share) and the Sewer Enterprize Fund of $3.979 to $6,416 through 2024, Thiz note was
paid off in full by the end of 2024.

City of Frazee Minnesota PFA Clean Water Revolving Loans of 2022 represent debt incurred for sewer
infrastructure improvements. These loans have an original isswe amount of $373.624 with $310,714
received 1n 2022, They carry a net interest rate of 2.117 percent and are due in annval installments from
the Sewer Enterprise fund of $24.000 to $36.600 through August 20, 2042. The balance outstanding at
December 31, 2024, is $538.000.

City of Frazee Minnesota PFA Drinling Water Revelving Loans of 2022 represent debt incurred for
sewer infrastructure improvements. These loans have an original isspe amouant of $155.536 with

$140.665 received in 2022, They camy a net interest rate of 2.117 percent and are due in annual
installments from the Water Enterprise fund of $7,000 to 510,000 through August 20, 2042, The balance
outstanding at December 31, 2024, is $145.000.

City of Frazee Minnesota PFA Clean Water Bevolving Loans of 2024 represent debt incurred for sewer
infrastructure improvements. These loans have an original issve amount of $348.161 with $339, 360
received in 2024, They carry a net interest rate of 1 404 percent and are due in annval installments from
the Sewer Enterprize fund of $16,000 to $20,000 through Avgust 20, 2044, The balance outstanding at
December 31, 2024, is $339 560.

City of Frazee Mimnesota PFA Drinking Water Revolving Loans of 2024 represent debt incurred for
drinking water infrastructure improvements. These loans have an original isswe amount of $113.242
with $111.892 received in 2024. They carry a net interest rate of 1.428 percent and are due in annual
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IMI. Detailed Notes on All Funds

C. Liabilities
Long-Term Debt

Business-Type Activities (Continned)

installments from the Sewer Enterprise fond of $3,000 to $7,400 through August 20, 2044. The balance
outstanding at December 31 2024 is $111.892.

City of Frazee Minnesota Ligquor Store Improvement Bonds of 2024D represent debt incwrred for repairs
to the ligquor store roof and HVAC system. These loans have an original issue amount of $120,600. They
carry a net interest rate of 4.600 percent and are due in anmmal installments from the Ligquor Enterprise
Fund of $9,000 to $18,000 through Febrary 1, 2041, The balance outstanding at December 31, 2024, is
$120,600.

Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements for governmental activities and business-type activities at December 31,
2024, are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Year End December 31 Principal Imierast Principal Interest

2025 3 261,788 3 #4717 5 156,753 5 37717

2026 202,000 41,682 171,000 30,180

2027 168,600 36,270 154,400 36,860

2028 115,000 31,070 155,000 34,654

2029 59,000 20138 157,000 32432
2030-2034 383,000 111,010 828 000 127,505
2035-2039 387,800 45313 817,700 45,853
2040-2044 47,000 3,114 275,699 12287

Total debt service requirsments: § 14654189 3 34522 § 2715352 3 384,597

Governmental Activities

Long-term liabality activity for the governmental activities for the year ended December 31, 2024, was
as follows:
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C. Liabilities

Governmental Activities {Continued)

Beginning Ending Drae Within
Balance Additions Eeductons Balance Ome Year
Covernmental Activities
Befunding, Series 20124 1 180,000 7 - 1 655,000 £ 115,004 1 60,000
Improvement of 2013 22,000 - 12,000 - -
Imprevement of 20144 145,000 - 35,000 113,004 36,000
Improvement Refunding of 20164 92000 - 34,000 58,000 18,000
Improvement of 2017 230,000 - 41,000 179,004 43,000
Capital Notes - installment purchasas 95873 - 37084 58,789 58,789
Improvement of 2022 TA2.000 - 44,0040 745,004 44,000
Beach House Bond of 20240 - BO,400 - E0,400 -
East Main Improvement Bond of 20240 - 302,000 - 302,000
Total ¥ 1340873 7 382,404 ¥ 278084 5 14834189 ¥ 260,789
Compenzated Absences 37,302 100,403 80,557 58,148 41470
Wet Pension Liability 323,507 - 05,717 227,980
(rovernmental Activities
Lonz-Term Liabilities ¥ 1910872 ) 483,803 § 454338 5 1940317 ¥ 302259

Business-Tvype Activities

Long-term liability activity for the business-type activities for the year ended December 31, 2024, was
as follows:

Besinning Ending Dhae Within
Balance Additions Beductions Balance Cne Year
Business-Type Activities
Genenal Chlipadon Bands
Improvement and Refinding Bonds H 70,000 3 - H 20,000 5 50,000 15000
PFA Fevolving Loan:z 221540 451,532 122,000 25448352 131,753
Capital Notes - installment purchase 3971 - imm - -
Liguor Store Improvement of 20240 - 120,600 - 120,500
Total §  22893M 3 571132 5125871 5 2715352 ¥ OL16T53
Compensated Absances 51,746 31848 57.082 17513 17,544
Het Pension Liability 187,214 - 54,610 132,604
Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities § 2528353 3 604,081 5 157683 5 21875471 POIT487

D. Deferred Inflows of Fesources

Deferred inflows of resources consist of taxes and special assessments, not collected soon enough after
vear-end to pay ligbilities of the current period. Deferred inflows of resources at December 31, 2024,
are summarized below by fund:
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D. Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continned)

Special
Taxes Ascasmmants Totzl
Major sovernmental fumds
General 5 3,789 3 - ¥ 3,788
Debt Service Funds
Lake Strest - 322 402 372 400
Non-major governmental fumds
Dbt Service Funds
County Foad 118 - 25,705 25,705
2004 Feed Willow Heighes 1T - 141,792 141,700
Sowheast Ares and Main Aveme West - 162,037 162,037
Totzl Defamred Inflows of Fesoures: 3 3,789 § 652033 3 6358212

IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

A Plan Description

The City of Frazee participates in the following cost-sharing nmitiple-emplover defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). These pan
provisions are established and administered according to Minnesota Statutes chapters 353, 353D, 353E,
353G, and 356. Minnesota Statutes chapter 356 defines each plan’s financial reporting requirements.
PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are tax quoalified plans under Section 401(a) on the Internal
Revenue Code.

General Emplovees Retirement Plan (General Plan)

Membership in the General Plan includes emplovees of counties, cities, townships, schoels in non-
certified positions. and other governmental entities whose revennes are derived from taxation fees, or
assessments. Plan membesship is required for any employee who is expected to eam more than $425 in
a month wnless the employee meets exclusion criteria

Public Emplovees Police and Fire Plan (Police and Fire Plan)

Membership in the Police & Fire Plan includes full-time, licensed police officers and firefighters who
meet the membership criteria defined in Minnesota Statutes section 353.64 and who are not earning
service credit in any other PERA retirement plan or a local relief association for the same service.
Employers can provide Police & Fire Plan coverage for part-time positions and certain other public
safety positions by submitting a resolution adopted by the entity’s governing body. The resolution must
state that the position meets plan requirements.

E. Benefits Provided
PERA provides retirement, disability. and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state to
benefits, but are not receiving them yet., are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last

terminated their public service. When a member is “vested”, they have earned enough service credit to
statue and can only be modified by the state Legislature. Vested, terminated emplovees who are entitled
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

B. Benefits Provided (Continned)
to receive a lifetime monthly benefit after leaving public service and reaching an eligible retirement age.
Members who retire at or over their Social Security full retirement age with at least one year of service

gualify for a retirement benefit.

1. General Emplovees Plan Benefits

General Employees Plan requires three years of service to vest. Benefits are based on a member’s
highest average salary for any five snccessive years of allowable service, age, and vears of credit at
termination of service. Two methods are uwsed to compute benefits for General Plan members.
Members hired prior to July 1, 1989, receive the higher of the Step or Level formmlas. Only the
Level formmula is used for members hired after June 30, 1989, Under the Step formula, General Plan
members receive 1.2 percent of the highest average salary for each of the first 10 years of service
and 1.7 percent for each additional year. Under the Level formula, General Plan members receive
1.7 percent of highest average salary for all vears of service. For members hired prior to July 1,
1989, a full retirement benefit is available when age plus years of service equal 90 and normal
retirement age iz 65. Members can receive a reduced requirement benefit as early as age 55 if they
have three or more years of service. Early retirement benefits are redoced by 25 percent for each
menth onder age 65. Members with 30 or more vears of service can retire at any age with a
reduction of .25 percent of each month the member is younger than age 62. The Level formmla
allows General Plan members to receive a full retirement benefit at age 63 if they were first hired
before July 1, 1989, or at a age 66 if they were hired on or after July 1, 1989 Early retirement
begins at age 535 with an actrarial reduction applied to the benefit.

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each Janunary, The postretirement increase is
equal to 50 percent of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) ampnounced by the SSA, with a
muinimum increase of at least 1 percent and a maxmimum of 1.5 percent. The 2024 annual increase
was 1.5 percent. Becipients that have been recetving the annuity or benefit for at least a full vear as
of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the fioll increase. Recipients
receiving the annnity or benefit for at least one month but less than a full vear as of the June 30
before the effective date of increase will receive a prorated increase.

2. Police and Fire Flan Benefits

Benefits for Police and Fire Plan members hired before July 1, 2010, are vested after three vears of
service. Members hired on or after July 1. 2010, are 50 percent vested after five years of service
and 100 percent vested after ten years. After five years, vesting increase by 10 percent each full
vear of service until members are 100 percent vested after ten years. Police and Fire Plan members
receive 3 percent of highest average salary for all years of service. Police and Fire Plan members
receive a full retirement benefit when they are age 55 and vested, or when their age plus their years
of service equals 90 or greater if they were first hired before July 1, 1989 Early retirement starts at
age 30, and early retirement benefits are reduced by 0.417 percent each month members are
younger than age 53.
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continmed)

C. Comntributions

Minnesota Statufes Chapter 353, 333E. 353G, and 356 set the rates for emplover and emplovee
contributions. Contribution rates can only be modified by the state Legislature.

1. General Emplovees Fund Contributions

Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.30 percent of their anmal covered salary
in fiscal year 2024 and the City of Frazee was required to contribute 7.50 percent for General Plan
members. The City of Frazee’s contributions to the General Employees Fund for the year ended
December 31, 2024, were $40.481 The City of Frazee's contributions were equal to the required
contributions as set by state statute.

2. Police and Fire Fund Contributions

Police and Fire Plan member’'s members were required to contribute 11 .80 percent of their annual
covered salary in fiscal vear 2024 and the City of Frazee was required to confribute 17.70 percent
for Police and Fire Plan members. The City of Frazee's contributions to the Police and Fire Fund
for the vyear ended December 31, 2024, were $29,805 The City of Frazee's confributions were
equal to the required contributions as set by state statute.

D. Pension Costs

1. General Emplovees Fund Pension Costs

At December 31, 2024, the City of Frazee reported a liability of $213 880 for its proportionate
share of the General Employees Fund’s net pension liability. The City of Frazee’s net pension
liability reflected a reduction due to the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million. The State
of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing entity and the state’s contribution meets
the definition of a special funding situation. The State of Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net
pension liability associated with the City of Frazee totaled $3,531.

City of Frazee's
proportionate share of the net pension lability 213,880

State of Minnesota's proportionate share of
the net pension hability associated with

the Citv of Frazee 5,531
Total % 2 19‘i=l-l 1

The net pension liability was measored as of June 30, 2024, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valoation as of that date. The City
of Frazee's proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City of Frazee's
contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates
from July 1, 2023, through June 30, 2024, relative to the total employer contributions received
from all of PERA’s participating employers. The City of Frazee's proportionate share was (0058
percent at the end of the measurement period and 0054 percent for the beginming of the period.
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

D. Pension Costs

1. General Employvees Fund Pension Costs (Continued)

There were no provision changes during the measurement period.

For the year ended December 31, 2024, the City of Frazee recognized a pension expense of
$16,322 for its proportionate share of the General Employees Plan’s pension expenze. In addition,
the City of Frazee recognized an additional $148 as pension expense (and grant revenue) for its
proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million to the General
Employees Fund.

During the plan vear ended June 30, 2024, the State of Minnesota contributed $170.1 million to the
General Emplovees Fund. The State of Minnesota is not included as a non-employer contributing
entity in the General Emplovees Plan pension allocation schedules for the $170.1 million in direct
state aid becanse this contribution was not considered to meet the definition of a special funding
sitwation. The City of Frazee recognized $9 340 for the vear ended December 31, 2024, as revenue
and an offsetting reduction of net pension liability for its proportionate share of the State of
Minnesota’s on-behalf contributions to the General Employees Fund.

At December 31, 2024, the City of Frazee reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following resources:

Dieferred Cutflowrs  Diefarred Inflows

of Flesources of Fesources
Difference between expected and acmsl econondc experience 5 19,666 5 -
Changes m actuanal assumpaon o074 Tr013
Difference between projected and actual mestment eammes - 62338
Changes m proportion 16,161 -
Contriutions paid to PEFA subiequent to the measurement date 21,483 -
Total 5 58284 % 132351

The $21.483 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City
of Frazea"s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of
the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2025, Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and deferred nflows of resources related to pensions will be recogmzed in pension
expense as follows:

Vear ended December 31: Pension Expense Amaumnt

025
26
27
28

[38,056)

(6.754)
(20,348)
(16.302)

e e
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

D. Pension Costs (Continmed)

2. Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs

At December 31, 2024, the City of Frazee reported a liability of $146.706 for its proportionate
share of the Police and Fire Fund’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as
of June 30, 2024, and the total pension ligbility vsed to calenlate the net pension liability was
determined by an actparial valuation as of that date. The City of Frazee's proportionate share of the
net pension hiability was based on the City of Frazee’s contributions received by PERA during the
measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1. 2023, through June 30, 2024,
relative to the total employer contributions received from all of PEFA’s participating employers.
The City of Frazee's propertionate share was 0112 percent at the end of the measurement period
and 0121 percent for the beginmng of the period.

The State of Minnesota contributed $37 4 million to the Police and Fire Fund in the plan fiscal year
ended June 30, 2024, The contribution consisted of $9 million in direct state aid that meets the
definition of a special funding situation, additional one-time direct state aid confribution of $19.4
million, and $9 million in supplemental state aid that does not meet the definition of a special
funding situation. Additionally, 39 million supplemental state aid was paid on October 1, 2024
Thereafter, by October 1 of each year. the state will pay $9 million to the Police and Fire Fund until
full funding iz reached or July 1, 2048, whichever is earlier. The %9 million in supplemental state
aid will continue until the fund is 90 percent funded. or until the State Patrol Plan (administerad by
the Minnesota State Retirement System) is 90 percent funded, whichever occurs later. The State of
Minnesota’s proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the City of Frazee
totaled $5.592.

City of Frazee's
proportionate share of the net pension hability 3 146,708

State of Minnesota's proportionate share of
the net pension lability associated with

the City of Frazes 5,502
Total 5 152,208

For the yvear ended December 31, 2024, the City of Frazee recognized pension expense of $15.427
for its proportionate share of the Police and Fire Plan’s pension expense. The City of Frazee
recognized $343 as grant revenve and pension expense for its proportionate share of the State of
Minnesota’s pension expense for the contribution of $9 million to the Police and Fire Fund special
finding situation

The State of Minnesota is not included as a non-emplover contributing entity in the Police and Fire
Pension Plan pension allocation schedules for the $28.4 million in supplemental state aid because
this contribution was not considered to meet the definition of a special funding sitnation. The City
of Frazee recognized $1,004 for the year ended December 31, 2024, as revenue and an offsetting
reduction of net pension liability for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s on-behalf
contributions to the Police and Fire Fund.
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

D. Pension Costs

2. Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs (Continued)

There were no provisicn changes during the measurement period.

At December 31, 2024, the City of Frazee reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Drefred Ouiflows Deferred Inflows

of Pesourcas of Blesources
Differences between expected and acmal economic experiance 1 65,083 5 -
Changes in actmarial assumptions 231,303 134,533
Drifference betwesn projected and scmeal investment eamings - 40,792
Changes in proportion 3,055 128574
Conmributions paid to PERLA subsequent to the measurement date 15,617 -
Total ¥ 317,048 § 403,899

The $15.617 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City
of Frazee’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a redoction of
the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2023, Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows and iflows of resonrces related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Vear endad Pension Expensa
Drecember 31 Amoumnt:
2025 b (18.448)
2026 3 4T 487
027 3 {40.075)
028 3 {¥2,081)
2029 3 540
Apggregate Pension Expense

The total pension expense for all plans recognized by the City of Frazee for the vear ended December
31. 2024, was 5(3.814).

E. Long-Term Expected Feturn on [nvestment

General Emplovees Fund - Police and Fire Fund

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA. prepares an analysis of the
reasenableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return nsing a building-bleck method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighing the expected
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plans

E. Long-Term Expected Betwrn on Investment

General Emplovees Fund - Police and Fire Fund (Continued)

future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best estimates
of geometric real rates of refurn for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Lomg-Term Expected Feal
Aszer Clazs Target Allocaton Bate of Betm
Domestic Equiry 335% 5.10%
Intemationsl Equity 16.5% 5.30%
Fixed Income 2500 0.75%
Private Markets 25.0% 5.00%

Total 100.0%

F. Acmarial Methods and Assumptions

(reneral Emplovees Fund — Police and Fire Fund

The total pension liability for each of the cost-sharing defined benefit plans was determined by an
actearial valuation as of June 30, 2024, using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. The long-term
rate of return on pension plan investments used to determine the total lability is 7%. The T
assumption is based on a review of inflation and investment return assumptions from a mumber of
national investment consulting firms. The review provided a range of investment return rates considered
reasonable by the actuary. An investment refurn of 7% is within that range.

Inflation is assumed to be 2.25 percent for the General Employees Plan and Police & Fire Plan.

Benefit increases after retirement are assumed to be 1.25% for the General Employees Plan and 1% for
the Police & Fire Plan.

Salary growth assumptions in the General Employees Plan range in annunal increments from 10.25%
after one year of service to 3% after 27 years of service. In the Police & Fire Plan. salary growth
assumptions range in annual increments from 11.75% after cne yvear of service to 3% after 24 vears of
service.

Mortality rates for the General Employees Plan are based on the Pub-2010 General Mortality Table.
Mortality rates for the Police & Fire Plan are based on the Pub-2010 Public Safety Employee Mortality
tables. The tables are adjusted slightly to fit PERA s experience.

Actuarial assumptions for the General Employees Plan are reviewed every four vears. The General
Employees Plan was last reviewed in 2022 The assomption changes were adopted by the board and
became effective with the July 1. 2023, actuarial valuation. The Police & Fire Plan were reviewed in
2024, PEFA anticipates the experience study will be approved by the Legislative Commission on
Pensions and Retirement and become effective with the July 1. 2025, actarial valuation

The following changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions ocenred in 2024:
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IV. Defined Benefit Penzion Plans

F. Actarial Methods and Assumptions

General Emplovees Fund — Police and Fire Fund (Continued)
General Emplovees Fund

Changes in Actoarial Assumptions:

o Rates of ment and seniority were adjusted, resulting in slightly higher rates.

o  Assumed rates of retirement were adjusted as follows: increase the rate of assumed unreduced
retirements, slight adjustments to BEule of 20 retitement rates. and slight adjustments to early
retirement rates of Tier 1 and Tier 2 members.

Minor increase in assumed withdrawals for males and females.

Lower rates of disability.

Continned use of Pub-2010 general mortality table with slight rate adjustments as recommended
in the most recent experience study.

o Minor changes to form of payment assumptions for male and female retirees.

Minor changes to assumptions made with respect to missing participant data.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
s The workers’ compensation offset for disability benefits was eliminated. The actuarial
equivalent factors updated to reflect the changes in assumptions.

Police and Fire Fund

Changes in Plan Provisions:

o The State contribution of $9.0 million per year will continue until the earlier of 1) both the
Police & Fire Plan and the State Patrol Retirement Fund attain 90 percent fonded status for three
consecutive years (on an actuanal valoe of assets basis) or 2) July 1, 2048, The contribution was
previously due to expire after attaining a 90 percent funded status for one vear.

o The additional %9.0 million contribution will continme until the Police & Fire Plan is finlly
funded for a minimmam of three consecutive years on an actuarial value of assets basis, or July 1,
2048, whichever is earlier. This contribution was previously due to expire npon attainment of
fully funded status on an actuarial value of assets basis for one year (or July 1, 2048 if earlier)

G.  Discount Eate

The discount rate nsed to measure the total pension liability in 2024 was 7.0 percent. The projection of
cash flows psed to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and
emplovers will be made at rates set in Minnesota Stamtes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net
position of the General Employees and Police and Fire Plans were projected to be available to malke all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of
retn on pensien plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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IV. Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)

H.

Pension Liability Sensitivity

The following presents the City of Frazee’ proportionate share of the net pension lability for all plans it
participates in calculated vsing the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what
the City of Frazee proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate one percentage peint lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

Sensitivity Analvsis

et Pension Liamiity {Asset) at Different Discowmt Fates

eneral Emplovee: Fund Folice and Fire Fund
1% Lower 6.00% 5 467,149 6.00% 3 346,695
Cwrrent Dhscomnt Bat 7.00% 5 213,880 T00% 5 136,706
1% Higher B.OD% 5 554 8.00% 5 (17527

Pension Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued
PERA financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That
report may be obtained on the internet at waw.mnpera org.

V. Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Firemen's Belief Association

A

B.

Plan Description

The Frazee Firefighters Felief Association participates in the Statewide Velonteer Firefighter
Retirement Plan (accounted for in the Volonteer Firefighter Fund), an agent multiple-emplover lnmp-
sum defined benefit pension plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement Association of
Minnesota (PERA). The Volunteer Firefighter Plan covers volunteer firefighters of municipal fire
departments or independent nonprofit firefighting corporations that have elected to join the plan. As of
December 31, 2024, the plan covered 22 active firefighters and § vested terminated firefighters whose
pension benefits are deferred. The plan iz established and administered in accordance with Minnesota
Statutes, Chapter 353 G.

Benefits Provided

The WVolunteer Firefizshter Plan provides retirement, death, and supplemental benefits to covered
firefighters and survivors. Benefits are paid based on the number of years of service multiplied by a
benefit level approved by the City of Frazee. Members are eligible for a lnmp-sum retirement benefit at
50 years of age with either five or ten years of service, depending on the vesting schedule selected. Plan
provisions include a pro-rated vesting schedule that increases from 5 years at 40 percent through 20
years at 100 percent.

Contributions
The Volunteer Firefighter Plan is funded by fire state aid, investment earnings and, if necessary,
employer confributions as specified in Minnesota Statutes. and volmtary City of Frazee contributions.

The State of Minnesota contributed 535,602 in fire state aid to the fund for the year ended December 31,
2024,
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V. Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Firemen's Belief Association (Continued)

D. Pension Costs

At December 31, 2024, the City reported a met pension liability of $423 411 for the Volunteer
Firefighter Fund. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2024, The total pension
liability wsed to calculate the net pension liability in accordance with GASE 68 was determined by
PERA applying an actuarial formula to specific census data cerfified by the fire department. The
following table presents the changes in net pension hiability during the year.

Inereaze (Diecrease)

Total Pension Flan Fidnciary Met et Pension Liability
Liahility (&) Position (k) {Asset) (a-1HTb)
Balances at Jammary 1, 2024 B 450,676 § 617 5460 5 (176 854)
Changes from the priar year:
Service Cost H 27027 3 - 5 27,017
Interest Cost 24,413 - 14413
Assumption Changes (16,598) - (16,598)
Nonemployer Contrbutions - 35,602 (33,5020
Projected Investment Fenmm - 33,215 (33,215)
Gain or Less {34,508) 37,203 (73,508
Benefit Payments (25,4000 (25,400) -
Total Net Changes 3 (27.265) § 30,620 5 (107.885)
Balances at December 11, 2024 3 423 411 ] 708,180 5 (284, T6%)

There were no benefit provision changes during the measurement period.
For the vear ended December 31, 2024, the City of Frazee recognized pension expense of $(35.563).

At December 31, 2024, the City of Frazee reported deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows
of resonrces related to pensions from the following sources:

Deforred Cutflows Deferred Inflows
Description of Resources of Besources
Dhfferences between expected and actuzl hiability 5 - 5 43 580
Change of assumphons - 14 843
Het difference between projected and actual mvestment eamings 22,668 -
Total 5 22 668 5 58423

Other amovats reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:
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V. Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Firefighters Belief Association

D. Pension Costs (Comtinmed)

Year Ended Pension Expenze
December 31: Amount:
2025 (B.569)
2026 4,210
2027 11,534
2028 (14.900)
029 (7.551)
Thereaftar (20.,381)

E. Actuarial Assumptions and Plan Provisions

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension lability at December 31, 2024, was determined using the entry age normal actnarial
cost method and the following actuarial assumptions:

- Retirement eligibility at the later of age 50 or when fully vested.
- Investment rate of return of 6.50 percent.

F. Discount Eate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.3 percent. The projection of cash
flows vsed to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions to the Velunteer Firefighter Fund
will be made at a rate equal to the actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on these assumptions,
the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of refurn on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

H. Pension Liabilitv Sensitivity

The following presents the City of Frazee's net pension liability for the Volunteer Firefighter Fund,
calculated nsing the assumed discount rate as well as what the City of Frazee's pension liability would
be if it were calenlated using a discount rate one percent lower or one percent higher than the current

discount rate:
1% Daczanse (3.5%) Discomnt Rats (6.5%) 1% Inereaza (7.5%)
Proportionate share of
Met Pension (Asset) Lishility § an4sn % 284769 % (297.482)

I.  Investment Policy

The Minnesota State Board of Inwvestment (SBI) is established by Article XI of the Minnesota
Constitution to invest all state funds. Its membership as specified in the Censtitution is comprised of the
governor (who is designated as chair of the board), state auvditor, secretary of state and state attorney
general

Page 52

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 60 of 147



CITY OF FRAZEE
FERAZEE, MINNESOTA

V. Defined Benefit Pension Plan — Firefizhters Belief Association

I  Inwvestment Policy (Continned)

All investments undertaken by the SBI are governed by the prudent person mle and other standards
codified in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 11A and Chapter 353G.

Within the requirements defined by state law, the SBIL with assistance of the SBI staff and the
Investment Adwvisory Council, establishes investment policy for all funds under its confrol. These
investments policies are tailored to the particular needs of each fund and specify investment objectives,
risk tolerance, asset allocation, investment management structure and specific performance standards.
Studies guide the on-going management of the funds and are npdated periodically.

I Asset Allocation

To match the long-term nature of the pension obligations, the SBI maintains a strategic asset allocation
for the Volunteer Firefighter Plan that includes allocations to domestic eqguity, international equity,
bonds and cash equivalents. The long-term target asset allocation and leng-term expected real rate of
return is the following:

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected Real Rate of
Return

Domestic stocks 5% 5.10%

International Stocks 15% 5.30%

Bonds 45% 0.75%

U nallocated Cash % 0.00%

The six percent long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method. Best estimates for expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of
inflation) were developed for each asset class uvsing both long-term historical retorns and long-term
capital market expectations from a mumber of investment management and consulting organizations.
The asset class estimates and the target allocations were then combined to produce a geometnic, long-
term expected real rate of return for the portfolio. Inflation expectations were applied to derive the
nominal rate of retum for the portfolio.

K. Significant investment policy changes duning the vear

The SBI made no significant changes to their investment policy duwring calendar year 2024 for the
Volunteer Frrefighter Fund.

L. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the Volunteer Firefighter Fund’s fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2024,
is available in a separately-issued PERA financial report that includes financial statements and regquired
supplementary information. That report may be obtained at www . mnpera org .
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VI Summary of Significant Contingencies and Other Items

A Claims and Litigation

The City. in connection with the normal conduct of its affairs, may be involved in various claims,
judzments. and ltigation. The City Council estimates that the potential claims against the City not
covered by insurance resulting from such litigation would not materially affect the financial statements
of the City.

B. ERizk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage. or destruction of assets;
errors of omissions; injuries to employees; emplovee health coverage: or natural disasters. The City has
entered into a joint powers agreement with other Minnesota cities to form the League of Minnescta
Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT) to cover workers’ compensation and property and casualty liabilities.

There were no significant reductions in insuwrance from the prior vear. The amount of settlements did not
exceed insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years.

The League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust 1s a public entity nisk pool currently operated as a
commeoen risk management and insurance program for its members. The City pays an annpal preminm
based on its annual payroll and an experience modification factor for workers’ compensation coverage.

C. Joint Venture

Frazee Burlington Silverleaf Joint Powers Board

The Frazee Burlington Silverleaf Joint Powers Board was formed on November 18, 1991 under the
authority of the Joint Powers Act, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes. § 471.39, and includes the City of
Frazee and the Towns of Burlington and Silverleafl The puwrpose of the Board is to create and operate a
facility for solid waste composting and recycling.

Control of the Board i1s vested in the Frazee Burlington Silverleaf Jomnt Powers Board, which 1s
composed of two governing members from each participating city and town. In the event of dissolution
of the Frazee Burlington Silverleaf Joint Powers Board, the net assets at the time shall be distributed to
the respective participants in proportion to the contributions made by each.

Funding is provided by participants in amounts determined by the Board on an annual basis. The City
made no contributions i 2024, Complete financial information can be obtained from the City of Frazee
Administrator/Clerk/ Treasurer. City Hall, P.O. Box 387, Frazee, Minnesota 56544,

VII Component Unit Disclosures

A, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the discretely presented component unit is prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental
Accounting Standards Beard (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local
governments through its pronouncements (statements and interpretations). The meore significant
accounting policies established in GAAP and vsed by the component unit are discussed below.
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VIL Component Unit Disclosures

A, Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

1. Financial Reporting Entity

The Economic Development Authority (EDA) was created pursnant to Minnesota Statotes §
469.090 through 469.108 to camy owt economic and induostrial development and redevelopment

within the City in accordance with policies established by the Council. The five-member board
consists of two Council members and three other Council-appointed members. The EDA may
exercise any of the powers enumerated by the avthorizing statute without prier approval of the
Council (does not include power to issue bonds).

The Economic Development Awthority is an enterprise fund. This entity 15 a component unit of the
City of Frazee becaunse the City 1s financially accountable for it and 1t 15 discretely presented in the
City of Frazee's financial statements.

2. Basis of Presentation

The component unit does not issue separately andited component wpnit financial statements.
Additional financial information can be obtained from the City of Frazee Administrator/
Clerk/Treasurer. City Hall. P.O. Box 387, Frazee, Minnesota 56544,

The discretely presented component unit is accounted for an enterprize fund, with a set of self-
balancing accounts that comprise its assets, habilities, revennes, and expenses (1e.. the combining
statement of net position and the combining statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position). Enterprise funds are used to account for (1) operations that provide a service to citizens
financed primarily by charging users for that service; and (2) activities where the periodic
measurement of net income 1s considered appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy,
management control, accountability. or other purposes.

3. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The component unit is reported using the economic resowrces measurement focus and the acorual
basiz of accounfing. FRevenues are recorded when eamned. and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

When both restricted and unrestricted resovrces are available for use, it is the component unit
policy to use restricted resources first, then vnrestricted resources as they are needed.

4. Assets. Liabilities and Net Position

a. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The component unit has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand and demand
deposits.
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VI Component Unit Disclosures

A Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

4. Assets. Liabilities. and Net Position {Continved)

b. Deposits and [nvestments

The cash balances of the funds are invested by the City Administrator/Cletk/Treasurer for the
purpose of increasing eamnings through investment activities. Pooled and fund investments and
are reported at their fair value at December 31, 2024, based on market prices. Investment
earnings on cash and pooled investments are allocated to the funds with depeosits. Compeonent
vt Investment earnings in 2024 were $189.

c. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, improvements other than
butldings, and machinery and equipment, are reported in the applicable component unit column
in the financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an
nitial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years,
except land and construction in progress which is capitalized regardless of cost. Capital assets
are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost when purchased or constrocted.
Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of acquisition.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
matesially extended the life of the asset are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incuwmred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Buildings and improvements. improvements other than buildings. and machinery and
equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated nsefol

lives:
Assets Years
Buildings and improvements 30-39
Improvements other than buildings 30
Machinery and equipment 15

d. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term cbligations are reported as hiabilities in the component wnit activities.
e. Use of Fstimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America reguires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent amounts at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revennes
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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VI Compenent Unit Disclosures (Continned)

B. Detailed Notez on All Funds

1. Assets

Deposits and Investments

All cash and investments of the component vnits are on deposit with the City of Frazee
Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer and included within its cash and investments.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the component unit for the year ended December 31 2024, was as

follows:
HBegimning Ending
Balance Incresses Diarreases Halance
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land - Economic Development Anthormty 5 251421 ] - 3 - 5 251421
Total capital assets, not being deprecizted 5 251411 ¥ - 3 - ] 251,421
Capital asset: being deprecisted
Buildings and improvemsnts
Economic Development Authority 5 1373694 3 - 3 - § 17273 604
Les:: sconmulated depreciation for
Buildings and improvemsnts
Economic Development Authority 3 58,513 ] 31,842 3 - L] 100,335
Total capital assets, depreciated, nat 5 1,205181 ¥ (31841 § - § 1173339
Total Capita] Aszets, Net 5 1456602 F (3lEan 5 - ¥ 1424760

Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense of $31.842 was charged to the Economic Development Authority.

[

Liabilities
Long-Term Debt

City of Frazee Economic Development Awvthority Temporary General Obligation Tax Increment
Bonds, Series 2021A represent debt incurred for construction of the Downtown Infill Project.
These bonds have an original isspe amount of $1 518,000, They carry a net interest rate of 3.23
percent and are due in semi-annual interest-only payments of $24.667, with the full principal
amount due on February 1. 2024, from the Economic Development Authority Fund. These bonds
were paid in full by the end of 2024.

City of Frazee Economic Development Awvthority Temporary General Obligation Tax Increment
Bonds, Series 2024A represent debt incurred for repayment of the Temporary General Obligation
Tax Increment Bonds, Series 2021A. and for construction of the Downtown Infill Project. These
bonds have an original issue amount of $1,566.000. They carry a net interest rate of 6.50 percent
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VIL Component Unit Disclosures

B. Detaled Notes on All Funds

2. Liabilities
Long-Term Debt (Continued)

and are doe in semi-annual interest-caly payments of $50,893, with the full principal amount due cn
February 1, 2027, from the Economic Development Authority Fund. The balance cutstanding at
December 31, 2024 is 1,566,000

Debt Service Fequirements

Debt service requitements the City of Frazee Economic Development Authenty at December 31,
2024, are as follows:
Genersl Obligation Tax crement
Bonds, Seres 20244

Year End December 31 Principal Interest
2025 5 - 5 101,700
2026 - 101,700
2027 1,566,000 50,895
Total debt service requirsments: 5 1,566,000 3 254475

Changes in L ong-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the City of Frazee Economic Development Authority for the year ended
December 31, 2024, was as follows:

City of Frazee EDA Beginning Ending Tae Within
Activities Halance Additions Peductions Balance One Year

General Oblisation Bonds

Tax Increment Bonds, Semes 20214 5 131800 H - 5 1518000 3 - 3 -
General Obliration Boods

Tax Incremant Bonds, Serfes 20244 - 1,564,000 - 1,565,000 -
Economic Development Authority

Lonz-term Liabilites 5 L518.000 § 1366000 5 1518000 5 L365.000 3 -

C. Summary of Significant Contingencies and Other ltems

Eisk Management

The discretely presented component unit 15 exposed to various nisks of loss related to torts: theft of
damage, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees; or natural disasters. The
component vt 15 covered vnder the City of Frazee's membership in the Leagpe of Minnesota Cities
Insurance Trust (LMCIT) to cover workers’ compensation and property and casvalty liabilities. There
were no significant reductions in insurance from the prior vear. The amount of settlements did not
exceed insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years.
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FRAZFE, MINNESOTA
Schedule 1
BUDGETARY COAMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
Variance with
Final Budget
Budzeted Amounts Actual Positive
Origimal Final Amounts (Negative)
Eevenues
Tames 3 498304 3 408304 5 400727 § 1423
Specizl assessments - - 1325 1325
Licenses and pemmits 21,795 21,785 17,798 5,003
Intergovermmental G38,640 638,640 683,007 44,367
Charges for services 156,710 156,710 200,717 44,007
Fines and forfeinres 7.500 7,500 5,001 (2.499)
Tvestment exmings 4,000 4,000 31,855 27,855
Gifts and contributions 16,000 16,000 25985 9585
Miscellansons 35,500 35,500 18,019 (17.481)
Total Revennes 3 1375449 & 1378440 8§ 1493434 § 114 985
Expenditures
Current
General government
Mayor ‘comcil 3 42107 % 42107 § 17402 3 14,705
Financial administration 327,666 327,666 198,007 29,568
Elections - - 7,035 (7.035)
Building inspector 17,380 17,380 19,272 (1.892)
(Orther peneral govermment - - 0,183 (9,183)
Total general government 3 387153 % IBTI53  § 360980 3 26,164
Police 3 400583 % 40583 § 418802 % (9,219)
Highways and streets
Sireet deparmment 3 170275 % 170275 % 130,157 § 40,118
Snow remonval 14,000 14,000 5625 8375
Sireet lighting 22,350 22,350 12,400 (349
Total hishways and streets 3 206,625 % 2625 8 158481 3§ 48144
Samitation
Recycling 3 1245 % 1.5 § o0 § 1,145
Solid waste 150,000 150,000 191,661 (41,661)
Total samitation 3 151245 % 151 245 § 191761 % (40,5146)
Culture and recreation
Parks 3 M58 3 34564 3 4307 3 10,257
Library 3,300 3,300 1475 825
Fecreatonal programs 15,1044 15,000 15,000 -
Orther cultme and recrestion 4,500 4,500 5070 (5T0)
Total culture and recreation 3 57364 % 57364 § 46852 3 10,512
The notes to the required supplemsntary information are an integral pert of this statement Page 59
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Schedule 1
{Continued)
BEUDCGETARY COAMPARISON SCHEDTLE
GENERAL FUND
FOE THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgzeted Amounnts Actual Positive
Origimal Final Amounts (Megative)
Expenditures
Current (contimoed})
Economic Development Authority 5 - 9 - 5 43033 3§ (43,033)
Rezource Camter - - 15,400 (25,400
Total economic development 3 - 5 - 5 GE433 3 (68.433)
Total current 5 1211970 % 1211970 S 1245318 & (33,348)
Dbt service
Principal retirement 3 4024 § 404§ 3971 § 53
Interest - - 6,703 (6,703)
Total debt service 3 4024 % 4024 5 a4 & (6,650
Capital outlay
Public safiety 3 20000 § 20,0060 F - 3 20,000
Highways and streets 10,974 10,876 263,701 (252,725)
Culhare and recreation 12,0040 12,000 165446 (153, 444)
Total capital cutlay 3 42976 8§ 42976 8§ 429147 & (386,171)
Total Expenditures 5 1258970 % 1258070 5 Lags 13  § (426,169
Excess of Revennes Over (Under)
Expenditures 5 119470 % 118470 & 191,705) % (311,184)
(Oither Financing Sources (Uses)
Procesds from issusnce of debt 3 - 3 - 5 JEZ4N 3 382 400
Transfers out - - (179.747) (179,747
Total other financing sources {oses) 3 - 5 - 5 Wresr % 202 653
Net Change in Fund Balance 5 119470 % 118470 & a4y 5 (108,531)
Fund Balance - Janmary 1 1,207 866 1,207 866 1,207 866 -
Fund Balance - December 31 ] 1317345 8§ 1327345 3 1218814 % (108,531)

The notes to the reguired supplementary infirmation are an integral part of this staberment
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SCHEDULE OF CONTEIBUTIONS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCTATION OF MINNESOTA
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2024

GENERAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT FUND PENSION PLAN

Schedule 2

Contributions in Contributions as a
Statutorily Relation to the Contribution Percentage of
Fizeal EBequired Statutorily Required Deficiency Covered- Covered
Year Ending Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
Drecember 31, 2024 L 40,481 5 40481 5 - L 535,747 T.5%
December 31, 2023 - 34554 5 34554 3 - £ 460,716 T.5%
December 31, 2022 § 30,693 § 30,893 i - § 409 247 T.5%
Drecember 31, 2021 L 30,032 5 30,032 3 - . 400,420 7.5%
December 31, 2020 - 0247 5 27247 3 - - 363,293 7.5%
December 31, 2019 5 29,798 5 28,798 3 - . 397 306 1.5%
Decermnber 31, 2018 § 28,121 § 25,111 i - § 374947 7.5%
December 31, 2017 $ 26,293 5 26,293 i - $ 352,801 7.5%
December 31, 2016 5 25675 5 25675 L - 5 342 333 7.5%
December 31, 2015 5 24,883 % 24893 3 - . 331,909 1.5%
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND PENSION PLAN
Contributions in Contributions az a
Statutorily BEelation to the Contribution Percentage of
Fizcal Bequired Statutorily Required Deficiency Covered- Covered
Year Ending Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll Payroll
December 31, 2024 5 29 805 5 20805 3 - £ 168,350 17.70%
December 31, 2023 b3 26,187 % 25,187 3 - £ 147950 17.70%
December 31, 2022 £ 33,007 % 33,007 3 - 5 186482 17.70%
December 31, 2021 $ 32,620 5 32,620 5 - 5 184, 294 17.70%
December 31, 2020 b3 32,380 5 32330 5 - 5 182,994 17.70%%
December 31, 2019 £ 29 262 % 20 262 5 - § 172,637 16.95%%
December 31, 2018 $ 27330 5 27,330 5 - 5 168,704 16.20%
December 31, 2017 5 25,156 5 25,156 5 - 5 155,254 16.20%
December 31, 2016 5 24540 5 24 940 5 - 5 153,951 16207
December 31, 2015 b3 25,553 § 25,553 % - £ 157,733 16.20%%
The notes to the required supplementary information zre an infegral part of this statement Page 61
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FPROPORTIONATE SHARE OF NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION
FOR THEYEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2024

GENERAL EMPLOYEES EETIREMENT FUND PENSION PLAN

Sehednle 3

Empleyer's Employer's
Propordomate Propordsnate
Share of the Share of the Net Pension Proportionate
Seate of Lishility and ke Share of the
Emplover's Empleyer's Minnesom's Empleyer's Proportionste et Pemsion Plan Fiduciary Net
Proportion Proportiozmate Propordomate Skare of the Liabillitraza Pozitien 2z a
of the Share of che Share of the State of Minnesota's Percentage of iz Percentage of the
Fizcal Net Pemsion Net Pension Net Pension Share of the Net Covered Covered Total Penzion
Year Ending Linbility Linbiliry Linbiliry Penzion Lishilire Payroll FPayroll Linbility
Juns 30, 2024 0O05E 1§ 213,560 5 5531 H 219,411 T #B5.TE4 436 B5.08%
June 30, 2023 0005+ 1§ 301262 5 5401 5 310,343 L I 1 69.59% B3.10%
June 30, 2022 00054 1§ 427,682 1 12407 1 440,089 § #0276 106.19% TEET
June 30, 2021 00054 8§ 230,504 1 7.087 L1 137,691 L 50.25% 87.00%
Juns 30, 2021 00054 & 230,504 5 7.087 H 137,691 §  3BT43 60.25% B7.00%
June 30, 2020 00053 1§ 317.73% 5 9,685 5 32744 L I T N B4.58% T9.06%
Juns 30, 2019 000F4% & 208,534 1 9,333 L1 307,887 £ ImIm TE9% BO23%
June 30, 2018 0o05se 8 310,565 1 10,219 L1 320,884 L BL7E% T503%
Juns 30, 2017 00053 1§ 338349 5 4,245 H 342,74 T 350993 D64 TEN
June 30, 2016 0o0iFe 8§ 446,57 5 3,862 5 452,435 § M3EN 129.88% G6E90%
June 30, 2013 0o0ise 1§ 280,121 1 - 1 190,221 35150 BT.5% TE20%
FUBLIC EMFLOYEES POLICE AND FIRE FUND FENSION FLAN
Empleyer's Employer's
FPropordomate Proportonate
Share of the Share of the Net Pension FProportionate
Seate of Lisbility and the Share of the
Emplover's Employer's Alinnesoda's Empleyer's Proporticnate Net Pemsion Plaz Fiduciary Net
Proportion FProportiomate Fropordomsie Share of the Liability a5 a Pozition a5 a
of the Share of the Share of the State of Minnesota's Percentage of itz Percentage of the
Fizeal Net Pemzien Net Penzion Net Penziom Share of the Net Covered Coversd Total Penzion
Year Ending Linbility Linbility Linbilicy Penzion Lisbiliy Payroll Payroll Linbility
June 30, 2024 001l % 146,706 1 5,592 1 132,156 £ 150,736 87.33% 01T
Jung 30, 2023 00121% % 2089351 1 415 L1 217,378 £ 139267 131.20% BEATH
Juns 30, 2022 o016 1§ 696,237 5 a4l H T26,673 T 203004 H1EI% TRL33%
June 30, 2021 o016 8§ 123,503 5 5579 5 129,082 § 193006 62.3T% 53.66%
Jung 30, 2020 00151% % 199034 1 4,672 L1 203,708 £ 170,538 116.63% B7.19%
June 30, 2019 00161% % 171,401 1 1173 L1 173,574 £ 168241 101.28% 89.26%
Juns 30, 2018 0015 3§ 164,148 5 1,386 H 163,334 160,506 102.21% BEE4%
June 30, 2017 0o15ee 8 202,518 1 1,350 1 203,868 T 138077 12731% BI40%
Jung 30, 2016 oo16R: % £42.108 1 1440 L1 643,548 £ 13811 +03.38% £3.90%
Juns 30, 20135 0O1TRe 8§ 193,160 5 1,530 H 154,690 f 135181 12447T% BE60%
The motess iy the requirsd supplementey sitrmencn e an integrad paet of this sesent nge 62
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

Schedule 4

VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTER RETIREMENT PLAN

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2024

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Contributions in

Contributions as a

Statuteriy ERelation to the Contributicn Covered- Percentage of
Fizcal Eequired Statutorily Required Deficiency Emploves Covered-Employee
Year Ending Contribution Contribution (Excess) FPayrell Payroll
Diecember 31, 2024 3 - 1 - 5 - NA HA
Diecember 31, 2023 3 - 1 - 5 - NA H/A
Diecember 31, 2022 3 - 1 - 5 - MNA H/A
December 31, 2021 3 - 1 - 5 - NA H/A
Diecember 31, 2020 3 - 1 - 5 - MNA H/A
December 31, 2019 3 - 5 - 5 - MNA H/A
Diecember 31, 2018 3 - 1 - 5 - MNA H/A
December 31, 2017 3 - 5 - 5 - MNA H/A
Diecember 31, 2016 3 - 5 - 5 - HA H/A

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHAEE OF NET PENSION ASSET

Froportionate Share

of the Net Fension Flan Fiduciary Net
Froportion Froportionate Assefasa FPosition as a
of the Share of the Covered- FPercentage of its Fercentage of the
Fiscal Net Pension Net Pension Emploves Covered-Employee Total Pension
Year Ending Assef Anuet FPayroll Favroll Aszet
Janmary 1, 2024 100% 5 284,769 HiA MiA 167.00%
Janmary 1, 2023 100% 5 176,834 HiA HNiA 139.00%
Japmary 1, 2022 100% ¥ 283,140 H/A HiA 182.07%
Janmary 1, 2021 100% 5 218,394 HiA HNiA 154.00%
Japmary 1, 2020 100% ¥ 162,631 H/A HiA 154.00%
Janmary 1, 2019 100% 5 106,377 WA NiA 139.00%
Japmary 1, 2018 100% ¥ 131,591 H/A HiA 136.00%
Japmary 1, 2017 100% 5 114,654 WA NiA 136.00%
Japmary 1, 2016 100% 5 05,304 HiA HiA 132.00%
This schedule is intended to present 10 years and will be updared as informarion becomes available.
Page 63

The notes to the required supplementary information are an mtegral part of this statement .
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE REQUIERED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
AS OF AND FOE. THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER. 31, 2024

I Budgetary Information

Budget Policy

Annnal bodgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

In September of each wyear, the City Council drafts a preliminary budget after giving interested
citizens a reasonable opportunity to be heard. The final budget is approved in December and a
certified levy is sent to Becker County. Truth in taxation requires that a final levy may not exceed a

preliminary levy.
The appropriated budget is prepared by fond. function, and department. The legal level of budgetary

control (ie., the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the
departmental level.

II. Excess of Expenditures Over Budoet

The following departments had expenditures in excess of budget for the vear ended December 31,

2024:
Expendifure: Budzet Excess

CGeneral Fund

Greneral government

Elections i 1035 3 - 1 (7,033)
Building inspector 19272 17,380 (1.892)
(ther general govermment 9183 - 9,183)
Public safery

Police 418,802 405 583 @.219)
Highways and sireers

Street hghtmg 22 699 212350 (34%)
Saniraton

Sobd waste 151561 150,000 (41,561)
Crlture and recreanon .

(rther culturs and recreation 5070 4,504 (3700
Economic Development

Economec Development Authonty 43033 - (43,033)
Resoures Cenfer 25,400 - (25,4000
Dby service

Inferest &,703 - (6,703}
Capital outlay

Highways and strests 263,701 10,976 (252,725)

Culture and recreation 165,446 12,000 (153, 446)

Page 64
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CITY OF YRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

III. Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabilities and Related Ratios

The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was vpsed in the actparial valuation for
purposes of determining the actarially determined contribution rates. Changes in actuarial assumptions
are described in the Notes to the Financial Statements. The assumptions and methods vsed for this
actuarial valuation were recommended by PERA and adopted by the City Council. The following changes
were reflected in the valuation performed on behalf of PERA for the fiscal year June 30:

General Employees Fund

2024 Changes
Changes in Acfuarial Assumpfions

The following changes in assumptions are gffective with the July 1, 2024 valuation, as recommended in
the most recent exparience study (dated June 29,2023);

s Rates of merit and seniority were adjosted, resulting in slightly higher rates.

* Assumed rates of retitement were adjusted as follows: increase the rate of assumed unreduced
retirements, slight adjustments to Rule of 90 retirement rates. and slight adjustments to early
retirement rates for Tier 1 and Tier 2 members.

Minor increase in assumed withdrawals for males and females.
Lower rates of disability.

+ Continued used of Pub-2010 general mortality table with slight rate adjustments as r recommended
in the most recent experience study.

Minor changes to form of payment assumptions for male and female retirees.
Minor changes to assumptions made with respect to missing participant data.

Changes in Flan Provisions
s The workers’ compensation offset for disability benefits was eliminated. The actuarial equivalent
factors updated to reflect the changzes in assumptions.

2023 Changes
Changes in Acfuarial Assumpfions

+ The investment return assumption and single discount rate were changed from 6.5 percent to 7.00
percent.

Changes in Plan Provisions

¢ An additional one-time direct state aid contribution of $170.1 million will be contributed to the Plan
on October 1, 2023,

s The vesting period of those hired after June 30, 2010, was changed from five years of allowable
service to three years of allowable service.
The benefit increase delay for early retirements on or after Januvary 1, 2024, was eliminated.

A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 2.5 percent minus the actual 2024 adjustment will
be payable in a lomp sum for calendar year 2024 by March 31, 2024,

2022 Changes
Changes in Acfuarial Assumpfions

s The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2020 to Scale MP-2021.

Page 63

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 74 of 147



CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

IIL. Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabilities and Related Batios

General Employees Fund

2022 Changes (Continuned)
Changes in Plan Provisions

There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation.

2021 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumpftions

The investment refurn and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to 6.50 percent, for
financial reporting purposes.

The mortality improvement scale was changed from Secale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020.

Changes in Plan Provisions
There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation.

2020 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

The price inflation assumpticn was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%.

The payroll growth assumption was decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%.

Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019, experience
study. The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.23% less than previous rates.

Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019, experience study.
The changes result in more uoreduced (normal) retirements and slightly fewer Eule of 20 and early
retirements.

Assumed rates of termination were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019, experience study.
The new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the previous for years 2-5 and
slightly higher thereafter.

Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019, experience study.
The change results in fewer predicted dizability retirements for males and females.

The base moertality table for healthy annmitants and employees were changed from the RP-2014 table
to the Pub-2010 General Mortality table, with adjustments. The base mortality table for disabled
anmuitants was changed from the RP-2014 disabled annuitant mortality table to the FUB-2010
General/ Teacher dizabled anmmitant mortality table, with adjostments.

The mortality improvement scale was changed from Secale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019.

The assuwmed spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one vear clder.
The assumed number of married male new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Swvivor option
changed from 35% to 45%. The assumed oumber of mamied female new retirees electing the 100%
Joimnt & Swrviver option changed from 13% to 30%. The corresponding number of marmried new
retirees electing the Life annuity option was adjosted accordingly.

Changes in Plan Provisions

Angmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the peried Tuly 1, 2020,

through December 31, 2023, and 0.0% after Augmentation was eliminated for privatizations
occurring after June 30, 2020.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

I Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabilities and Felated Eatios

General Employvees Fund (Continued)

2019 Changes
Changes in Acfuarial Assumpiions

& The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2015.

Changes in Plan Provisions
» The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from $31.0 million
to $21.0 million per vear. The State’s special funding confribution was changed prospectively,
requiring $16.0 million due per year through 2031.

2018 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

s The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017.
s The assumed benefit increase was changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2044 and 2 50 percent
per vear thereafter to 1.25 percent per year.

Changes in Plan Provisions

s The angmentation adjustment in early retirement factors is eliminated over a five-year period starting
Tuly 1, 2019, resulting in actvarial equivalence after June 30, 2024,

s Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent, beginning
Tuly 1, 2018.

# Deferred avgmentation was changed to 0.00 percent, effective Janvary 1. 2019, Augmentation that
has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.

Contribution stabilizer provisions were repealed.

+ Postretirement benefit increases were changed from 1.00 percent per year with a provision to
increase to 2.50 percent upon attainment of 90.00 percent funding ratic to 50.00 percent of the Social
Security Ceost of Living Adjustment, not less than 1.00 percent and not more than 1.50 percent,
beginning January 1, 2019,

# For retirements on or after January 1. 2024, the first benefit inecrease is delayed watil the retiree
reaches normal retirement age; does not apply to Bule of 90 retirees, dizability benefit recipients, or
SIVIVOLS.

o Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest assumptions.

2017 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

s The combined service annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.80 percent for active members and
60.00 percent for vested and non-vested deferred members. The revised CSA load are now 0.00
percent for active member liability, 15.00 percent for vested deferred member liability, and 3.00
percent for non-vested deferred member Lability.

s The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed for 1.00 percent per year for all vears
to 1.00 percent per vear through 2044 and 2 50 percent per year thereafter.

Changes in Plan Provisions
o The State’s confribution for the Minneapolis Emplovees Betirement Fund equals $16,000,000 in
2017 and 2018, and $6,000,000 thereafter.
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CITY OF FRAZELE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

II. Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabilities and Belated Ratios

General Employees Fund

2017 Changes
Changes in Plan Provisions (Continued)

# The Emplover Supplemental Contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund changed
from $21,000,000 to $31,000,000 in calendar vears 2019 to 2031. The state’s contribution changed
from $16,000,000 to $6,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031.

2016 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumpiions

» The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year through
2035 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter to 1.00 percent per vear for all years.

# The assumed mvestment refurn was changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent. The single discount
rate changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 percent.

» Other assumptions were changed pursuant to the experience study Jone 30, 2015, The assomed
future salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25 percent
for payroll growth and 250 percent for inflation.

Changes in Plan Frovisions
# There have been no changes since the prior valuation.

2015 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

» The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year through

2030 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter to 1.00 percent per year through 2035 and 2.50 percent per
year thereafter.

Changes in Plan Provisions
On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Emplovees Retirement Fund was merged into the General
Emplovees Fund, which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increaze the
fiduciary plan net position by $892 million. Upon consolidation, state and employer contributions
were revised; the State’s contribution of $6.0 million, which meets the special funding situation
definition. was due September 2015,

Police and Fire Fund

2024 Changes
Changes in Plan Provisions

» The State contribution of $9.0 million per vear will continme until the earlier of 1) both the Police &
Fire Plan and the State Patrol Retirement Fund attain 90 percent funded statuses for three
consecutive vears (on an actuarial value of assets basis) or 2) July 1, 2048, The contribution was
previously due to expire after attaiming a 90 percent funded status for one year.

¢ The additional $9.0 million contribution will continue until the Police & Fire Plan is fully funded for
a minimun of three consecutive years on an actoarial value of assets basis, or July 1, 2048,
whichever 15 earlier. This contribution was previously due to expire npon attainment of fully fonded
status on an actvarial value of assets basis for one year (or July 1. 2048 if earlier).
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III.

CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabilities and Belated Ratios

Police and Fire Fund {Continued)

2023 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions:

The investment return assumption was changed from 6.5 percent to 7.00 percent.
The single discount rate changed from 5.4 percent to 7.0 percent.

Changes in Plan Provisions:

Additional one-time direct state aid contribution of 19.4 million will be contributed to the Plan on
October 1. 2023,

Vesting requirement for new hires after June 30, 2014, was changed from a graded 20-year vesting
schedule to a graded 10-vear vesting schedule. with 50 percent vesting after five years. increasing
incrementally to 100 percent after 10 vears.

A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 3.0 percent will be payable in a lomp sum for
calendar year 2024 by March 31, 2024.

Psychological treatment is required effective July 1, 2023, prior to approval for a duty disability
benefit for a psychological condition relating to the member’s oconpation.

The total and permanent duty disability benefit was increased, effective July 1, 2023,

2022 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumpiions

The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2020 to Scale MP-2021.
The Single discount rate changed from 6.530 percent to .40 percent.

Changes in Plan Frovisions

There were no changes in the plan provisions since the previous valuation.

2021 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

The mnvestment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to 6.50 percent, for
financial reporting purposes.

The inflation assumption was changed from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent.

The pavroll growth assumption was changed from 325 percent to 3.0 percent.

The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-2014 table
to the Pub-2010 Public Safety Mortality table. The mortality improvement scale was changed from
MP-2019 to MN-2020.

The base mortality table for disabled annmitants was changed from the EP-2014 healthy annuitant
mortality table (with future mortality improvement according to Scale MP-2019) to the Pub-2010
Public Safety dizable annuitant moertality table (with future meortality improvement according to
Scale MP-2020).

Assumed rates of salary increase were modified as recommended in the July 14. 2020, experience
study. The overall impact 15 a decrease in gross salary increase rates.

Assumed rates of retitement were changed as recommended in the July 1, 2020, experience study.
The changes result in slightly more voreduced retirements and fewer assumed early retirements.
Assumed rates of withdrawal were changed from select and ultimate rates to service-based rates.
The changes result in more assumed terminations.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

II1. Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabilities and Pelated Fatios

Police and Fire Fund

2021 Changes
Changes in Aciuarial Assumpfions (Continued)

*  Assumed rates of disability were increased for ages 25-44 and decreased for ages over 49, Owerall,
proposed rates result in mere projected disabilities.

*  Assumed percent married for active female members changed from 60 percent to 70 percent. Minor
changes to form of payment assumptions were applied.

Changes in Plan FProvisions
# There have been no changes since the prior valuation.

2020 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

+ The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.

Changes in Plan Provisions
s There have been no changes since the prior valuation.

2019 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

s The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.

Changes in Plan Provisions
# There have been no changes since the prior valuation.

2018 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

+ The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2017.

Changes in Plan Provisions

s Postretirement benefit increases were changed to 1.00 percent for all years, with no trigger.

*  An end date of July 1. 2048, was added to the existing $9.0 million state contribution.

* New annual state aid will equal $4.5 million in fiscal years 2019 and 2020, and $9.0 million
thereafter until the plan reaches 100 percent funding, or July 1, 2048, if earlier.

+ Member contributions wete changed from 10.80 percent to 11.30 percent of pay, effective January 1,
2019, and 11.80 percent of pay, effective Janmary 1, 2020.

+ Emplover contributions were changed from 16.20 percent to 16.95 percent of pay, effective January
1, 2019, and 17.70 percent of pay, effective January 1, 2020.

+ Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent, beginning
Tuly 1, 2018.

# Deferred angmentation was changed to 0.00 percent. effective Janwary 1. 2019. Avgmentation that
has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.

+  Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest assumptions.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

. Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabilities and Eelated Ratios

Police and Fire Fund (Continued)

2017 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumpiions

¢  Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016, experience study.
The net effect is proposed rates that average (.34 percent lower than the previous rates.
Assumed rates of retitement were changed, resulting in fewer retirements.
The combined service anmuity (CSA) load was 30.00 percent for vested and non-vested, deferred
members. The CSA has been changed to 33.00 percent for vested members and 2.00 percent for non-
vested members.

s The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational
table to the BP-2014 fully generational table (with a base year of 2006), with male rates adjusted by
a factor of 0.96. The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-2016.
The base mortality table for disabled annuwitants was changed from the BP-2000 dizabled mortality
table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees.

¢  Assumed termination rates were decreased to 3.00 percent for the first thuee years of service. Bates
beyond the select period of three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected terminations
overall.
Assumed percentage of married female members was decreased from 65.00 percent to 60.00 percent.

*  Assumed age difference was changed from separate assumptions for male members (wives assumed
to be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to be fowr years older) to the
assumption that males are two years older than females.

* The assumed percentage of female members electing joint and swvivor annuities was increased.

s The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent for all years to 1.00
percent per year throwngh 2064 and 2.50 percent thereafter.

s The single discount rate was changed from 5.60 percent per annum to 7.50 percent per annum.

Changes in Flan Frovisions
¢ There have been no changes since the prior valuation.

2016 Changes
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

s The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year through
2037 and 2.50 percent per yvear thereafter to 1.00 percent per year for all fuhwre vears.

* The assumed investment refurn was changed from 7.90 percent to 7.50 perceat.
The single discount rate changed from 7.20 percent to 5.60 percent.

* The assumed foture salary increases, payroll growth, and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to
3.25 percent for payroll growth and 2.50 percent for inflation.

Changes in Plan Provisions
# There have been no changes since the prior valuation.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

III. Notes to Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liabilities and Belated Ratios

Police and Fire Fund (Continuad)

2015 Changes
Changes in Acfuarial Assumptions

# The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.00 percent per year through
2030 and 2.50 percent per vear thereafter to 1.00 percent per year through 2037 and 2.50 percent per
yeat thereafter.

Changes in Plan Frovisions
# The postretitement benefit increase to be paid after the attainment of the 90.00 percent funding
threshold was changed from inflation up to 2.50 percent, to a fixed rate of 2.50 percent.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

The Cemetery Special Fevenue Fund is used to account for and report activities of the cemetery.
Financing is provided by the sale of cemetery plots and charges for services restricted for perpetual care.

The Fire Special Bevenue Fund is wsed to account for and report the activities of the Fire Department.
Financing is provided by charges for services, gifis and contributions, and state and federal grants.

The Rescue Special Revenue Fund 15 used to account for and report the activities of the Rescue Squad.
Financing is provided by charges for services and gifts and contributions.

The TIF 1-3 Fed Willow Heights Special Revenue Fund is used to account for and report the activifies of
the Red Willow Heights project. Financing is provided by tax increment financing assigned to economic
development.

The TIF 1-4 Swuft Site Special Revenne Fund 1s used to account for and report the activities of the Swift
Site project. Financing is provided by tax increment financing assigned to economic development.

The TIF 1-5 Downtown Rencovations Special Bevenue Fund is used to account for and report the
activities of the Downtown Renovation project. Financing is provided by tax increment financing
assigned to economic development.

The Wannagan Park Special Revenme Fund is wsed to account for and report activities of the Wannagan
Park project. Financing is provided by charges for services and gifts and confributions.

Debt Service Funds

The 2016 Improvements and Eefunding Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report debt
associated with General Obligation Street Improvement and Refunding Bends of 2016 for street
improvements. Financing is provided by special assessments restricted for debt service.

The County Foad 118 Debt Service Fund is vsed to account for and report debt associated with the
General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2014 for street improvements. Financing is provided by
special assessments restricted for debt service.

The 2006 Fed Willow Heights II Debt Service Fund is used to account for, and report debt associated
with General Obligation Improvement Refunding Bonds of 2012 for the Fed Willow Heights IT project.
Financing is provided by special assessments restricted for debt service.

The Southeast Area Streets and Main Avenne West Service Fund is used to account for and report debt
associated with the General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2013, Financing is provided by special
assessments restricted for debt service.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Debt Service Funds

The Southeast Area Streets and Utilities Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report debt
associated with General Obligation Improvement Bonds of 2017 for street improvements. Financing is
provided by special assessments restricted for debt service.
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FRAZFFE, MINNESOTA
slatement 1
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERENMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2024
Total Mommajor
Special Diebit Covermmental
Fevenne Funds Service Funds Funds
(Statement 3) (Statement 5) (Exhibit 1)
Assets
Assets
Cash and poaled imvesmnents 5 460442 % 219838 § &80 280
Imvesmnents - 1,012 1012
Taxes recamvable
Corrent 368 - 368
Spectal assessments recaivable
Carrent - 3,300 3,300
Prior - 44 032 44932
Cme from other funds - 131,530 131,530
Cme from other govermments 4 842 - 4 8462
Spectal assessments recaivable - nonouTen: - 284,600 284 609
Total Assets 8 474672 § e 1,159 893
Besources, apd Fund Ealance
Liahilities
Arcoumnts payable 3 6385 § - 5 6,385
Salanas payzble 127 - 127
Cme to other fimds 225953 362,771 588,74
Cne o other govemments 24 - 24
Total Liabilities 3 132540 % 62771 8 505 3210
Deferred Inflows of Resonrces
Spectal assessments b - ] s § 320541
Fund Balance
Pestricted for
Dielot service 3 - ¥ 334510 § 334,510
Ecomomic development 181,435 - 181,435
Aczizmed to
Public zafary 61,144 - 61,144
Cnlture and recreation 3018 - 3918
Unassigmed 4.375) (341,601) (345,877}
Total Fund Balance 3 242123 § (7001 8 135032
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Eesources, and Fund Balance 3 47467 § G5 111§ 1,150 803
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FERAZFE, MINNESOTA
Statement
COMBINING STATEMENT OF EEVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAJOR GOVEENMENTAL FUNDS
FOE THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEEE. 21, 2024
Total Nonhlajor
Special Diebt Covermmental
Eevenne Funds Service Funds Fumnds
{Statement 4) (Statement 6) (Exhibit )
Fevennes
Taras § 127,292 § - 5 127,202
Special assessments - 76,112 76,112
Inter povermmental 102434 - 102,434
Charges for sarvices 120225 - 129,225
Imvestmient samings 1 - 1
Gifiz and conmributions 151,650 - 151,550
Mizcellaneons 13,200 - 13,20
Total Revenues 5 El1802 § 76,112 § 500014
Exmpenditures
Current
(reneral povernment 5 7628 § - 5 7524
Public safsty 212,840 - 111,544
Culrurs and recreation 1,001 - 1,901
Total corrent 5 11237 § - 3 1137
Dbt service
Drincipal retirement § EERVE . 107000 3§ 230,013
Intersst 1298 145,625 18,923
Total debt service 5 35411 & 113615 § 240 034
Capital outlay
Public safsty § 76,615 § - ] 746,615
Total Expenditures 5 440§ 113625 % 548,030
Excess of Revennes Over (Under)
Expenditnres 5 180,307  § {137.513) § 51 884
Orber Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in § - § 110350 3§ 110,360
Transfers out (167.214) - {147,214)
Total Other Financing Sonrces {Tses) 5 (167216 § 110,360 % {56 854)
Net Change in Fund Balance 5 11181 & (27153 § (4,972
Fuond Balance - Jannary 1, as previonsly reported 5 47273 5 0062 % 367 335
Prior period adjustment (127.331) - {127,331)
Fuond Balance - Janwary 1, as restated 5 218842 & 0062 % 240 004
Fund Balance - December 31 5 41113 § (1080 & 135042
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CITY OF FRAZEE

FRAZFE, MINNESOTA
slatement 3
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL EEVENTE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
TIF 1-3 TIF 1-5
Red Willaw TIF 14 Downtown Wannazan Total
Cemetery Fire Eescue Heights Swift Site Fienovations Park (Statement 1)
Aozetz
Cash and pooled investments H - ¥} 623 § 61421 5 110222 3 128763 § 51,580 % - H 469,442
Tames receivable
Courrent - - - 138 - B2 - 368
Crue from other govermments - - - - - - 4,852 4,862
Total Assets 3 - § 6234 3§ 61421 § 110360 § 123743 § 51672 § 486 § 474672
Liabiliti iF B
Liahbilities
Arcounts payable H - ¥ 6110 3 75§ - ] - ¥ - ¥ - H 5385
Salaries payable - 127 - - - - - 127
Drue to other fands 4,184 - - 110,350 - - 44 225,953
Crue to other govemments - 24 - - - - - 34
Total Liabilities 5 4289 % 6311 3 175§ 110360 § - 3 - § a4 5 131 549
Fund Balance
Bestricted for
Economic development H - ¥ - 5 - H - § 128763 % 51672 % - H 181.435
Aszizned ta
Pahblic safery - - 61,1445 - - - - 61,1445
Culhure and recreation - - - - - - 3918 3018
Unassigned (4,385 &7 - - - - - (4.375)
Total Fund Balance 5 (418 % (BT % 61146 3 - § 118763 § 5167 § 398 § 241113
Total Liabilities and Fund
Balance 5 - § 623 3§ 61421 5§ 110360 § 128743 § 5167 3§ 4862 § 474 672
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

COMEINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BATLANCE
NONMAJOR SPECTAL REVENTE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2024

Storm
Cemetery Fire Water Fezcue

Revolving

Loan Peol

Eevenues
Taxes 5 - 5 -
Intergovernmental - 97.572 - -
Charges for services - 128 603 - 140
Investment earmngs - - -
Gifts and contbufions - 19,168 - 131,545
Miscellaneous 4.695 8505 - -

Total Kevenues 3 4695 5 153,848 5 - 3 132,086

Expenditures
Current
(rensral govermment 5 7629 3§ -
Public afety - 200,935
Culture and recreation - -
Dbt service
Principal retwrement - 33,113 - -
Interest - 1398 - -
Capital outlay
Public safety - 17,589 - 59026

11,514

Total Expenditures b 7619 0§ 153938 0§ - b 70,940

Exces: of Revenues Over

(Under) Expenditures 5 (2934 S5 37 5 - 5 61,146

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Tramsfers out - - (56,856) -

Net Change in Fund Balance 5 2935 5 BT 5 (56.856) & 61,146

Fund Balance - January 1,
az previously reported 5 1355 § - 8 56,856 3 -
Prior period adjustment - - - -

19,513
(19.818)

Fund Balance - January 1
as restated ] 1355 8§ - o] fa856 % -

Fund Balance - December 31 5 (4.289) 5 8T S - 5 61,146
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Starement 4

Small Cities TIF 1-=
Development TIF 1-3 Red TIF 14 Dovmtown Wannagan Total
Project (5CDE) Willew Heights Swrift Site Eenovation: Park {Statement 1)
h - i 110360 § 732§ 2810 % - 1272492
- - - - 4,862 102434
- - - - 482 129225
- - - - - 1
- - - - 537 151,850
- - - - - 13200
5 - 5 110,360 5 7312 § 9,610 & 531 £13,502
Y - 5 - 5 - 5 - Y 7,629
- - - - - 212 849
- - - - 1,901 1,901
- - - - - 33,113
- - - - - 2,293
- - - - - 76,615
5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 1,901 334,405
5 - 5 110,360 § 7322 § 9610 % 1530 189,397
- (110 360) - - - (167 216)
5 - 5 - 5 7322 § 9.610 & 3080 11,181
5 107,513 S - 5 121441 S 43062 5 (62) 37,273
{107,513) - - - - (117.331)
5 - 5 - 5 121441 § 43,061 3 {62} 119,942
§ - 5 - 5 128.763 S 52671 &8 3918 242,123
Page 77

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 89 of 147



CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAFEE, MINNESOTA

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMATJOR DEBET SERVICE FUNDS
FOE THE YEAE ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2024

Somtheast Area

Sratement §

1016 Improvements 1006 Fed Willlow and Aain Avenune Sountheast Area Total
aed Eefonding County Boad 118 Hedghes IT West Streets and Udlde: [Statement 1)
Aszets
Cash and pocled investments % - i 16,400 1758 % 180,680 & - 219,838
Imventoscats - - 1,012 - - 1,002
Special rusessments recaivable -
Crurmant - 1,054 - 1,338 - 3,300
Prior - - 36,351 8,581 - H.m3z
Dmue from othar funds 21,170 - 110,360 - - 131,530
Special assesiments recaivabls - noncurmemt - 25,705 103,426 153 456 - 284 609
Total Azzets £ 1 8 44,060 Mzem § 403 % - 685,121
Liabilitves, Deferred Inflows of
Eescurce:, and Fusd Balamee
Liabilitie:
Due to other funds % 127253 € - - £ - £ 165,518 382,771
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Special ausessments % - i 35,705 141788 & 162037 % - 318,341
Fumd Balance
Basticted for debt sarvics % - 1 18384 134130 S 182018 & - 3345010
Unassigned (176,083) - - - [165,51E) (341,600
Total Fund Balance £ (176,083} 5 18,364 134130 § 182,016 & (165,518) (7.091)
Total Liabilisies, Deferred Inflow:
of Eesources, and Fund Balamce £ 11178 § 44 50 sere % 344053 % - 585171
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Eevemmes
Special assessments
Expenditure:

Diebt service
Principal retrsmsnt
Inturzst
Toral Expendiiures

Exge:s of Revennes Over (Under)
Expemdirures

Other Financing Somroes (Uzez)
Tramsfars in

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balamce - Jasmary 1

Fumd Balasce - Diecember 31

CITY OF FEAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

Statement §
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITUEES, AND CHANGES IN FUND EALANCE
NONMAJOR DEET SERVICE FUNDS
FOF. THE YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2024
Somcheast Area
1016 Improvements 1006 Eed Willow and Main Avenue Somrheast Area Total
and Refunding County Road 118 Hedghes IT West Sireets and Ulilities (Stwtemnent )
13 12 % 17,580 7354 % 31668 % 76,112
i 2 % 335,000 5000 8 41000 8 22,000 197,000
1,327 4,046 4525 3.0E3 242 16,623
£ 35527 % 38,046 60515 § 46385 § 11142 213,825
% (35515 % (21, 466) (62,471) % 4181 % (21242} 137,513)
110340 - 110,350
£ @5515) % (21 466) 47,589 § 4181 % 21,247) {27,153)
% (148.568) 3 39,830 BE,141 5 177835 § (143,276) 1,062
£ (176,083} % 18,364 134,130 % 182016 § ({165.518) (7091}
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZFFE MINNESOTA

Schedule 5
SCHEDULE OF INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENTE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024
Shared Eevenne
State
Fire Relief Association supplemental benafit 5 73,619
Fire state aid 2]
Local government aid 591,640
Small cities highwray assistance 22757
Police state aid 246,187
Total Shared Bevenne 3 T16203
Fayments
Payinents in liew of taxes 3 LI
Grants
State
Minnesota Department of
Police Officer Safaty Board 3 3,041
Namarz] Besources 21592
Secratary of State 1,754
Public Safaty 7,658
Public Facilifies Authority 417,622
Total State Grants 5 451 668
Federal
Deparmnent of
Homeland Security 14,295
Total Grants 3 455, 064
Total Intergovernmental Eevenne 3 1,203 063

Mot inclhwded as revenne ars §451,532 in Minnesots Public Facilities Awthority loans from the Environmental Protection
Agency's Clean Water and Drinking Water State Fevolving Fund which are recorded as liabilities in the Sewer and Water Enterprise Funds.
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Colleen Hoffman, Director
Crystelle Philipp, CPA
Marit Martell, CPA

Hoffman, Philipp, & Martell, puc

1541 Highway 59 South | Thief River Falls, MM 56701 | Phone: 218-681-4078 | choffman@hpmaudit com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City Council
City of Frazee

We have andited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Frazee as of and for the year ended December 31, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated Angust 15,
2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing cur audit of the financial statements, we considered the City of Frazee's internal control
over financial reporting to determine the andit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opimion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency i mternal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, ora combination of deficiencies,
in mternal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the City’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemnal control over financial reporting
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations. during our audit we did not identify any
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deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weakmesses may exist that have not been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting, described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Fesponses as items 2024-001,
and 2024-002, that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reascnable assurance about whether the City of Frazee’s finaneial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinicn on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our andit and, accordingly. we do not express soch an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Minnesota Legal Compliance

The Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities, pronmlgated by the State Aunditor pursuant to Minnesota
Statute, § 6.65, contains seven categories of compliance to be tested: contracting and bidding, deposits and
investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness claims and disbursements miscellaneons provisions, and tax
increment financing. Our audit considered all of the listed categories.

In connection with our andit, we noted that the City of Frazee failed to comply with provisions of the claims and
disbursements section of the Minnasota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cifies, promulgated by the State Anditor
pursuant to Minnesota Statute, § 6.63, insofar as they relate to accounting matters described in the Schedule of
Findings and Responses as item 2024-003. Also, in connection with our andit, nothing came to our attention that
cansed us to believe that the City of Frazee failed to comply with the provisions of the contracting and bidding,
conflicts of interest, deposits and investments, public indebtedness, miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment
financing sections of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cities, insofar as they relate to accounting
matters. However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining kmowledge of such noncompliance.
Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures other matters may have come to cur attention regarding the
City’s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions, insofar as they relate to accounting matters.

City of Frazee’s Response to Findings

The City’s responses to the findings identified in our audit have been incloded in the accompanying Schedule of
Findings and Responses. The City’s responses were not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the andit of
the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to deseribe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting,
compliance and the provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Cifies and the result of that
testing, and not to provide an opinien on the effectiveness of the City’s internal contrel over financial reporting or
on compliance. This report i3 an integral part of an aundit performed in accordance with Government Audifing
Standards in considering the City’s internal contrel over financial reporting and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

/7% ran, %’ﬁﬁ’/’ : ,'5;/‘7’.;;1‘;/;’

Hoffman Philipp, & Martell, PLLC
August 15, 2025
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR. THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024

FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDITED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INTERNATL CONTROL

PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ITEMS NOT RESOLVED

Finding Number: 2024-001

Prior Year Finding Number(s): 2023-001
Repeat Finding Since: 2006

Segregation of Duties and Internal Controls

Criteria: The financial statements are the responsibility of the City's management. Internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reliable assurance about the achievement of the City’s objectives with
regard to reliabality of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. These controls
mmst include a process for momtoring controls to ensure effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

Condition: Internal controls over financial reporting and the safegparding of assets agamnst vnavthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition include controls related to financial reporting and operational objectives. The City
does not have a process for monitoring to ensure the internal controls are effective. Due to the limited number of
personnel within the City of Frazee, segregation of the accounting fonctions necessary to ensure adequate internal
control and monitering is not possible.

Context: The small size and staffing of the City of Frazee limits the segregation of duties and internal control that
management can design and implement. Although the City of has some controls despite limited staff. they do not
have a documented process for menitoring those controls.

Effect: Without documented internal controls and a process for monitoring internal controls, the City cannot
provide assurance about the reliability of financial reporting or the effectiveness and efficiency of operations.
Errors or uregularities may occur and not be detected in a timely manner.

Cause: The City has never formalized its policies and procedures for internal controls and monitering of those
controls inte a written comprehensive document.

Recommendation: Management should continmally be aware of the lack of reliability of internal controls due to
limited segregation of duties. We recommend the City of Frazee formalize written documentation of their intemal
controls and the monitoring process to ensure the reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, and the effectiveness and efficiency of operations.

City Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer Response: The City Council is aware of the imability to segregate dufies
due to the lack of resources. The City staff does everything in their power fo identify any risks and involve other
employees or Council Members if there is potential for conflict. The City Council receives monthly updates on
[finances, quarterly budget, and actual expenditures, as well as very detailed bill lists monthly. The City is aware of
the need for internal control and continues to be diligent in management oversight of financial information.

Page 83

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 97 of 147



CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

Finding Number: 1024-002

Prior Year Finding Number: 2023002
Eepeat Finding Since: 2008

Finding Title: Audit Adjustments

Criteria: A good system of internal accounting control includes an adequate system for classification and
recording transactions material to financial reporting.

Condition: During owr audit, we identified adjustments in several fumds. These adjustments resulted in
reclassification of amounts originally reported in the City™s financial statements.

Context: City officials are aware that andit adjustments are made to revenues and expenditores, and they rely on
the independent external anditors to assist in making the necessary adjustments to the financial statements.

Effect: Proposed andit adjustments are reviewed and approved by the appropriate staff and are reflected in the
financial statements. Balances are correctly reported as of December 31 each vear. However, independent external
anditors cannot be considersd part of the government’s internal control.

Cause: The previous City Administrator/ClerkTreasurer did not consistently post transactions mto the correct
funds, and the City does not have an internal control system designed to detect these errors.

Recommendation: We recommend the City establish internal control procedures for analysis and review of
receipt and expenditure classifications to ensure these transactions are reported in accordance with GAAP in the
City’s annual financial statement

City Administrator/ClerkTreasurer Response: The City confinues fo make improvemenis to their financial
FEPOITING SVSTem.

T, MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE
PREVIOUSLY REPORTED ITEM NOT RESOLVED

Finding Number: 2024-003

Prior Finding Number: 2023-002
Repeat Finding Since: 2008

Finding Title: Deficit Cash Balances

Criteria: Each fund of the City should maintain a positive cash balance. Minnesota Statute, § 471.75 permits
payment of expenditures provided there is money in the fond for that purpose.

Condition: At December 31, 2024, the following funds had deficit cash balances:

Event Center Enterprize Fund $ 51,744
Lake Street Debt Service Fund % T.067
Cemetery Special Revenue Fund $ 4280
Wannagan Park Special Revenue Fund $ 044
2016 Improvements and Refunding Debt Service Fund $ 197253
Southeast Area Streets and Utilities Debt Service Fund % 165,518

Context: City officials are confident that collection of deferred special assessments will be adeguate to meet fioture
debt service requirements, and in the event of a shortage they will transfer the cash from the General Fund.
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CITY OF FRAZEE
FRAZEE, MINNESOTA

Effect: Allowing a fond to maintain a deficit cash balance, in effect. constitutes an interest-free loan from other
funds of the City and is in noncompliance with Minnesota law. These deficits are reported in the financial
statements as amounts due to other funds.

Canse: Special assessments are levied over a period of time to provide for debt service payments, and when
taxpayers are delinguent there is not enowgh cash flow to cover annual debt payments.

Fecommendation: We recommend the City eliminate the cash balance deficits by transferring from another find,
or budgeting for the debt payments when determining the annual levy.

City Administrator/ClerkTreasurer Response: The City is aware af the deficit in certain accounts. The City

has made progress by closing the inaciive capital prajects funds with dgficit balances and will coniinue to strive for
resolution af this issue.
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—. City Of
Frazee

MINMESOTA PO, Box 387, 222 Main fve. W., Frazee, MN 56544

5

City Phone: 218-334-4991 | City Fax: 218-334-4902

COREECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOP. THE YEAF. ENDED DECEMBEER 31, 2024

Finding Number: 2024-001
Finding Title: Segregation of Duties and Internal Controls

Name of Contact Person Responsible for Corrective Action: City Council and management.

Corrective Action Planned: The City of Frazee is aware of the segregation of duties and internal
control over financial reporting 1ssue. Dhoe to limited staffing. segregation of duties 1s not always
possible. Management will implement oversight procedures where and whenever possible.

Anticipated Completion Date: December 31, 2025, The City Council is aware of the inability fo

segregate duties due fo the lack of resources and the need for internal contrel and they continue fo be
diligent in management oversight of financial information.

Finding Number: 2024-002
Finding Title: Aundit Adjustments

Name of Contact Person Responsible for Corrective Action: City Council and management.
Corrective Action Planned: The City will establish internal control procedures for analysis and
review of receipt and expenditure classifications to ensure these transactions are reported in
accordance with GAAP and GAAS in the City’s anmual financial statement.

Anticipated Completion Date: December 31, 2023,

Finding Number: 1024-002
Finding Title: Deficit Cash Balances

Name of Contact Person Responsible for Corrective Action: City Council and management.
Corrective Action Planned: The City will eliminate the temporary cash balance deficits by
transferring from another fund to maintain a positive cash balance in compliance with Minnesota

Statute § 471.75.

Anticipated Completion Date: December 31, 2023,
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City Of

_
Frazee

MINMNESOTA PO, Box 387, 222 Main Ave. W., Frazee, MM 56544

City Phome: 218--334-4991 | City Fax: 218-334-4902

SCHEDULE OF PRIOE. AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR. THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER. 31, 2024

Finding Number: 2023-001
Repeat Finding Since: 2006
Finding Title: Segregation of Duties and Internal Controls

Summary of Condition: Due to the limited number of personnel within the City, segregation of the
accounting functions necessary to ensure adequate internal accounting control 1s not possible.

Summary of Corrective Action: Management is continuvally aware that segregation of duties is not
adequate from an internal control point of view. The City Council continmes to implement oversite
procedures and monitor those procedures to determine if they are still effective.

Status: Mot corrected.

Finding Number: 2023-002
Repeat Finding Since: 2008
Finding Title: Audit Adjustments

Summary of Condition: Each Fund of the City is required to have a self-balancing set of accounts
to reflect activity of the fund throughout the year in accordance with GAAP in the City’'s annual
financial statement. During 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022, and 2023 audits and
adjustments were identified, resulting in reclassification of amounts originally reported in the City's
financial statements.

Summary of Corrective Action: Management 15 aware the City should establish mternal control
procedures for analysis and review of receipt and expenditure classifications and journal entries to
ensure these transactions are reported in accordance with GAAP in the City's annwal financial
statement.

Status: Mot corrected.

Finding Number: 20232-003
Repeat Finding Since: 2008
Finding Title: Deficit Cash Balances

Summary of Condition: Each find of the City should maintain a positive cash balance. Minnesota
Statute § 471.75 permits payment of expendimires provided there is money in the fund for that
purpose. Allowing a fund to maintain a deficit cash balance. in effect. constimutes an interest-free
loan from other fands of the City and is noncompliance with Minnesota law.

At December 31, 2023, the following funds had deficit cash balances:

Cemetery Special Revenue Fund £ 891
Wannagan Park Special Revemme Fund b 62
Page 87
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2016 Improvements and Refonding Debt Service Fund $140_ 568
Spruce Avenue Improvement Debt Service Fund £143276

Summary of Corrective Action: The City eliminated the cash balance deficits by transferning from
another fund for reperting purposes, however, four funds had cash balance deficits at December 31,
2023

Status: Not corrected.

Page 88
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Consent Agenda

MINUTES — AUGUST 27/, 2025

1. Call the Meeting to Order
a. Meeting called to order by Mayor Mike Sharp at 5:00 pm at the Frazee Event Center

2. Roll Call

a. Members Present: Andrew Daggett, Andrea Froeber, Mark Kemper, James Rader,
Mike Sharp

b. Members Absent: None

c. Staff: Amanda Blanchard, Amanda Feldt, Tina Hansmeier, Matt Johnson, Larry
Stephenson, Tyler Trieglaff, Adam Walker

d. Contracted Services: Chris Thorson — Ulteig Engineering; Patrick Hollister —
PartnerSHIP 4 Health; Patrick Bakken — Ramstad, Skoyles & Bakken P.A.

e. Guests: Phil Hansen, Bob Williams, Lisa Clarey

3. Pledge of Allegiance
4. Open Forum - None

5. Approve Agenda
a. Addition of 9.c. Liquor Store Hiring
b. Addition of 9.d. Rezoning Request
M/S/CU: Froeber/Kemper to approve agenda with changes

6. Consent Agenda

a. Meeting Minutes — August 13, 2025
Approval of Claims
Resolution 0827-2025A — Rescue Donations
Resolution 0827-2025B — Fire Donations
Resolution 0827-2025C — Fireworks Donations

f.  LG220 Application for Exempt Permit — Kaotics Robotics Booster Club

M/S/CU: Rader/Daggett to approve consent agenda as presented

®oogo

7. Staff Reports
a. Fire Department
i. Written report reviewed
b. Rescue
i. Written report reviewed
c. EventCenter
i. Noreport
d. Liquor Store
i. Written report reviewed
e. Police Department
i. Written report reviewed
ii. Daggett asked if there is a policy on demolition derby cars; Trieglaff stated
that they fall under public nuisance, it is something Planning & Zoning could
discuss
f.  Public Works
i. Written report reviewed
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ii. Stephenson shared that there is a loss of water somewhere; he is working
with Minnesota Rural Water to find out where it is going
iii. Discussion on cleaning the water tower
g. Administration
i. Written report reviewed
M/S/CU: Rader/Froeber to approve staff reports

8. 0ld Business
a. Purchase Agreement Extension
M/S/CU: Rader/Kemper to approve the purchase agreement extension to 12/31/2025 for the Eagle Lake
property

9. New Business
a. Road Closure Request
M/S/CU: Rader/Froeber to approve the road closure request (including temporary liquor license)
b. Fire Department Hires
M/S/CU: Daggett/Froeber to approve hiring of Kristopher Morris
c. Liquor Store Hiring
M/S/CU: Kemper/Rader to approve hiring Daniel Otto as a Liquor Store Bartender/Retail Clerk at grade
1 step 1 effective September 5, 2025
d. Rezoning Request
M/S/CU: Kemper/Froeber to approve the rezoning request of 702 Main Ave West from R-1 Residential
to C-2 Service Commercial

10. Council Member Comments - None

11. Addendum
a. Construction Agreement with Dennis Drewes Inc.
M/S/CU: Froeber/Daggett to approve construction agreement with Dennis Drewes Inc.
b. Records Retention Destruction
M/S/CU: Rader/Kemper to approve the records retention destruction as presented

12. Adjournment
M/S/CU: Froeber/Daggett to adjourn at 5:39 pm

Respectfully submitted,
Glephanie Peegel

Frazee City Administrator

Consent Agenda
APPROVAL OF CLAIMS

Committee Reports

PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE — AUGUST 27, 2025
14. Call the Meeting to Order - Roll Call
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a. Meeting called to order by Erik Anderson at 3:34 pm at the Frazee Event Center
b. Present were Erik Anderson, Andrea Froeber, Mark Kemper, Mackenzie Hamm, Tom
Watson

15. Review of Minutes — July 23, 2025
M/S/CU: Froeber/Hamm to approve minutes as presented

16. Open Forum
a. Hamm stated there will be a beach day at Town Lake on Thursday, August 28.

17. Parks
a. Wannigan Regional Park
i. Pre-Construction Minutes reviewed
ii. Shelter by Troll will have mulch under it; Shelter at start of trail will
have concrete
iii. Rotary and Construction Trades Class will be installing the shelter
iv. lkes event yesterday
v. Ashley & Tom are talking with Amy Sterns regarding an art project
vi. Utilities are located
b. Eagle Lake Park Update
i. Purchase agreement extension for 12/31/2025 at Council
c. Hank Ludtke/Riverside Park
i. Map in the kiosk needs to be updated — Watson to look into
Lions Park - no updates
Corner Park - no updates
JoAnn Niemann Memorial Park - no updates
Little Turkey Park
i. Turkey had a facelift thanks to the Artists on Main program

@™ o a

5. Recreation
a. Heartland Trail Update Reviewed
i. No advertising can be placed on the fence, trail or parking lot
b. Town Lake Beach Update Reviewed
i. Concern on the seeding where regrading was done
c. Splash Pad — No update
d. Walking Path/Unidentified Parcel — No update
e. Bicycle Friendly Community
i. Rally
1. Watson and Froeber to organize an event in September
ii. Safe Routes to School
f.  Basketball Court — Waiting for info from Backcourt Club
i. Potentially take off agenda
ii. Pickleball Courts in the area have basketball courts also

6. Annual Shindig — Parks & Trails Councils of MN
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7. Comp Plan Task Updates
a. Add Splash Pad and Basketball Court to the Comp Plan Task list
b. ldeas discussed regarding events at Turkey Days, volunteer engagement,
community activities

8. Adjournment
M/S/CU: Froeber/Watson to adjourn at 4:12 pm

Respectfully submitted,

Glephanie Peegel

Frazee City Administrator

WANNIGAN REGIONAL PARK COMMITTEE — NO MEETING

PLANNING & ZONING — AUGUST 26, 2025
1. Call the Meeting to Order - Roll Call
a. Meeting opened at 5:00 pm at the Frazee Fire Hall
b. Present were: Erik Anderson, Ken Miosek, Mike Sharp, Tyler Trieglaff, Tina
Hansmeier, David Weisgerber, Matt Weisgerber

2. Review Minutes —July 22, 2025
M/S/CU: Trieglaff/Miosek to approve minutes as presented

3. Public Hearing — Rezoning Request of 702 Main Ave W
a. Open Public Hearing at 5:01 pm
b. Public Comments
i. No public comments
c. Close Public Hearing at 5:03 pm

4. Open Forum - None

5. Old Business
a. Comprehensive Plan Task Updates Reviewed
b. Front Yard Setback — No updates yet

6. New Business
a. Rezoning Request
M/S/CU: Miosek/Anderson to recommend Council approve the Rezoning Request for 702 Main
Ave West

7. Adjournment
M/S/CU: Anderson/Trieglaff to adjourn at 5:05 pm

Respectfully submitted,

Slephanie Peegel

Frazee City Administrator
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PERSONNEL COMMITTEE —AUGUST 5, 2025
1. Call the Meeting to Order - Roll Call
a. Meeting opened at 5:00 pm
b. Present: James Rader, Mike Sharp, Stephanie Poegel, Tyler Trieglaff, Amanda
Young, Matt Johnson

2. Minutes —June 23, 2025
a. Minutes reviewed with no changes

3. Old Business
a. Amendment to Personnel Policy
i. Make changes to ensure consistency, remove last line before Section
14.04, and change to ensure everything is “Respectful Workplace”

4. New Business
a. Rescue Standards
i. Proposed minimum standards reviewed
b. Gaming Attendant Job Description
i. Will be a Grade 1 non-exempt position
ii. Add “Non-Profit Organizations” prior to Gaming Manager; add
“winnings” after pull-tab
iii. Consensus to send to Council for approval with stated changes
c. Code Enforcement
i. Discussion on repeat offenders and if we are making progress
ii. Poegel to check with attorney on:
1. Ordinance 4-2-4 — can “or verbal” be added to the type of
notice
2. Immediately fining repeat offender properties
d. City Hall Hours
i. Discussion on potential new City Hall hours

5. Adjournment
a. Meeting adjourned at 6:08 pm

Respectfully submitted,
Glephanie C. Peegel

Frazee City Administrator
FINANCE COMMITTEE — NO MEETING

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY — AUGUST 19, 2025

1. Call the Meeting to Order
a. Meeting called to order by Vice President Ashley Renollet at 9:39 am at the
Frazee Fire Hall

2. Roll Call
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a. Members Present: Andrew Daggett, Andrea Froeber, John Olson, Ashley
Renollet, Heath Peterson
b. Members Absent: Bill Daggett, Hank Ludtke
c. Staff: Stephanie Poegel
d. Contracted Services: Rachel Johnson — Creating Community Consulting
Guests: Bob Williams

3. Approval of Agenda
M/S/CU: Froeber/Olson to approve with addition of 7.a. Chamber of Commerce Membership

4. Open Forum — None

5. Meeting Minutes — July 22, 2025
M/S/CU: Froeber/Olson to approve minutes as presented

6. Old Business
a. DTI
i. Construction Updates
1. Suite Cis open!
a. Waiting for barn doors, and need additional keys
2. Suite A
a. Soft opening on Thursday with grand opening set for
Friday, August 29 at 11:30 am
Back lock is being fixed
Renter owned equipment is blowing the breakers; she
is working with electrician to fix issue
3. Public Restrooms
a. Toilet paper holders, paper towel holders, soap
dispensers, mirrors and cabinets were not in the
design — items have been ordered to be installed by
City staff
4, SuiteB
a. Request for insulation to go to roof — change order
included in agenda
b. Flooring will not cost anything additional for carpet vs
laminate; We will store laminate until can be utilized in
the Fuller House
ii. Change Order #6
M/S/CU: Olson/Daggett to approve Change Order #6 at a cost of $1,314.45 for additional
insulation
iii. Change Order #7
M/S/CU: Froeber/Olson to approve Change Order #7 at a cost of $585 for new vinyl baseboard
b. Hwy 10 Sign Updating
i. CCCto see if they have wrapping bid
c. EDA Goals
i. Goals for the next month include:
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Current Developer
TV3 & Frazee Forward
Ribbon Cuttings
4. Small Cities Loans Research (if time allows)
ii. Peterson and Johnson to meet with Community Club regarding the
FACC/EDA collaboration
d. Community Development Coordinator
i. Worried there is enough time available for staff, but consensus the
job description is good to move forward

wN e

7. New Business

a. Chamber of Commerce Membership
M/S/C (4-1; Daggett) Peterson/Olson to approve EDA to pay for Event Center having a
Chamber membership

b. SCDP Loan Application

i. $25,000 application from Stephanie Grindall for a 10 year deferred
loan

M/S/CU: Peterson/Olson to approve loan pending income verification

8. EDA Financials — Not available

9. Consultant Report

a. BC EDA Strategic Planning being completed
b. Discussion on TIF and going forward; Tom Kleve, Cody Piper and City
meeting to discuss TIF — Peterson, Froeber and Poegel will represent EDA

10. Commissioner Comments
a. Suite B Sign — recommend smaller version
b. Funky Junk leaving town — Staff to connect with landlord regarding main
level usage
c. Jay Estenson may have a space available
d. Shred Day at UCB is 9/9/2025 — FREE to the public 10Am-1PM — NO LIMIT

11. Adjournment
M/S/CU: Froeber/Daggett to adjourn at 10:53 am

Respectfully submitted,

Glephanie C. Peegel

Frazee City Administrator
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Consent Agenda

APPROVAL OF CLAIMS
CITY OF FRAZEE

£ E il E Payments
Frazee

MINNESOTA Current Period: September 2025
Payments Batch 09102025GEN1 5168,052. 61
Riefer 0 _ANDERSON PUMPING AND PORTA _

Cash Payment E 202-45000-300 Professional Sres (GEM  Wannigna Park Services
Invoice 45707 /172025

Transaction Date BE2025 Main Checking 10100
Refier 0 _ARWIG ENTERFRISES ING _

Cash Payment E 100-42110-500 Capita Outlay (3ENER  Security System Installation
Invoice 4367318 BI28/2025

Transaction Date BR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 _AUTO WALUE - DETROIT LAKES

Cash Payment E 100-45200-404 Repairs/Maint Machinery Battery

Imeoice 53622412 TI28/2025

Cash Payment E 100-43100-210 Operating Supplies (GE Prime Guard Extreme
Imeoice 53625035 Br2G2025

Transaction Date BR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refier 0 AUTO WALLUE - DETROIT LAKES

Cash Payment E 10043100407 Repairs/Maint Equipmen Air Filkers

Imeoice 53626502 Br2872025

Transaction Date BR2025 Main Checking 10100
PRlefer 0 BLAGK DG PROFERTY SERVIGE  _

Cash Payment E 100~48010-311 Contracts/Professional 5 Mowing BI/25, &/10V25, B8/27/25, B/31/25
Imeoice 4543 812025

Transaction Date BR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refier 0 B & D TRANSPORT ING

Cash Payment E 100-43100-407 Repairs/Maint Equipmen Hub Cap, Seal, Gear Lube
Imvoice 27146 B202025

Transaction Date BR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 BRISTLIN CONSTRUGTION ING. _

Cash Payment E 421-48500-502 Construction - New'Repl DTl Construction - Draw #5 FINAL
Imepice B202025

Tranzaction Date BE2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 BECKER GO AUDITOR TREASURE _

Cash Payment E 100-33100-433 Dues and Subscriptions Property Taxes - 2nd Half 2025

Imvoice

Cash Payment E 100-45200-433 Dues and Subscriptions Property Tases - 2nd Half 2025

Imeoice

Cash Payment E 201-42300-433 Dues and Subscriptions  Property Taxes - 2nd Half 2025

Invoice

Cash Payment E 651-48500-433 Dues and Subscriptions Property Taxes - 2nd Half 2025

Imuoice

Cash Payment E 654-48500-321 Telephone Property Taxes - 2nd Half 2025
Imvoice

Transaction Date BE2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 CREATING COMMUNITY CONSULT _
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Total
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Total
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Total
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F564.01

50401

511,580.00

$11,580.00

35298

550.90

$103.20

$367.25

$367.25

$025.00

$028.00

Fr42.e0

Fr42.60

534,835.82

$34.835.82

$141.00

$1,260.00

$141.00

$1,118.00

$1,238.00

$3,857.00



ESEk
Frazee

MINMNESOTA

CITY OF FRAZEE

Payments

Current Period: September 2025

Cash Payment E 851-28500-300 Professional Sres (GEN  EDA Consultant Services

Imvoice 824 B2025
Transaction Date BIR2025
Refer 0 UNITED COMMUNITY BANK

Cash Payment R 200-34202 Fire Contract Revenus
Imeoice

Tran=action Date QE2025
Fefier 0 UNITED COMMUNTY BANK

Cash Payment R 200-34202 Fire Contract Rlevenus
Invoice

Transaction Date Bn2025

Rlefer 0 UNITED CORMMUNITY BANK

Cash Payment R 200-34202 Fire Contract Rlevenus
Imoice
Transaction Date Oer2025

Refier 0 UNITED COMMUNTY BANK

Cash Payment R 200-34202 Fire Contract Revenus
Imvoice
Transaction Date BIR2025

Main Checking 10100

Lt QO0IGIE Q32005
CIP Funds deposited info general in emor

Main Checking 10100

Che# DODIGIE 932025
CIP Funds deposited into general in emor

Maimn Checking 10100

Che# DO0IB4E 932025
CIP Funds deposited into general in emor

Main Checking 10100

Chgt DONIGSE 9132005
CIP Funds deposited into general in emor

Maimn Checking 10100

Refier 0 COLONMAL LIFE & ACCIDENT INS © _

Cash Payment G E01-21708 Aflac/Colonial Life
Imeoice

Employee Withholding

Transaction Date Bn2025 Main Checking 10100
Rlefer 0 DAGGETT TRUGK LINE, ING

Cash Payment E801-28400-212 Maotor Fuels DEF

Imenice EF251335 BM22025

Transaction Date Bn2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 EWAMKAS UNLIMITED REPAIR LL  _

Cash Payment E 10043100407 Repairs/Maint Equipmen Gowermor

Imeoice 12324 Br21°2025

Transaction Date BR2025 Main Checking 10100
Rlefer 0 FRAZEE ELECTRIG, ING _

Cash Payment E 202-45000-300 Professional Sres (GEN  Locating Underground Wiring at Wamnnigan
Irvoice 13008 Br2872025

Transaction Date Bn2025 Main Checking 10100
Rlefer 0 HANSONS PLUMBING & HEATING | _

Cash Payment E 601484004 Repairs/Maint Machinery Galvanize Mipple

Inwoice 7187810 8/572025

Transaction Date Bn2025 Main Checking 10100
Rlefer 0 HAWHING, ING.

Cash Payment E601-428400-2168 Chemicals and Chem Pr Azone & Sodum Permanganate
Imenice 7171425 8182025

Transaction Date An2025 Main Checking 10100
Rlefer 0 Hoffman, Phillipp, & Marfell, PLLG
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$3,000.00

$3,000.00

F12.600.22

31260022

F3.753.18

$3,753.18

$3.343.21

.43

$8.413.00

$6.413.00

50224

50224

S16.ET

S16.87

53120

53120

s42.00

4380

s31.82

S31E2

$1.435.84

3143584



CITY OF FRAZEE

e E il E Payments
Frazee

MINNEZOQOTA Current Period: September 2025

Cash Payment E 100-81110-301 Awditing amd Acct g Serv 2024 Audit Work
Imvoice

Transaction Date BrR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refier 0 HAMMERS CONSTRUCTION INC.

Cash Payment E 404-45200-502 Construction - Mew'Repl TLB Partial Pt #3

Imeoice 130516 TI2472025

Transaction Date BE2025 Main Checking 10100
Refier 0 LONGWEEKEND SPORTSWEAR  _

Cash Payment E 201-42300-218 Uniforms Embroidery & Polos
Invoice 2519 /52025

Transaction Date BrE2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 L&MALEET SUPPLY

Cash Payment E G02-48450-404 Repairs/Maint Machinery Check ValveNipple/Pump
Invoice DET-01-10032583 a/ar202s

Transaction Date Aaf2025 Main Chiecking 10100
Refer 0 MENARDS _

Cash Payment E201-42300-500 Capital Cutlay (3EMER  Cabinet

Invoice 4004 BM1DN2025

Transaction Date BrR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 MENARDS _

Cash Payment E 200-22200-401 Repairs’Maint Buildings FPaint Supplies

Imeoice 917 THE2025

Transaction Date AR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 MN ENERGY RESOURCES

Cash Payment E G56-26500-383 Gas Utilities Matural Gas Services
Imegice

Cash Payment E 100-423100-383 Gas Utilities Matural Gas Services
Imvoice

Transaction Date AR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refer 0 MNDEPT OF HEALTH

Cash Payment E S01-48400-433 Dues and Subscriptions Quarterdy Water Dues
Invoice

Transaction Date AR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refier 0 MN ENERGY RESOURCES _

Cash Payment E 421-28500-383 Gas Utilities Matural Gas - Suite © Construction
Irepice

Cash Payment E421-26500-383 Gas Utilities Matural Gas - Suite B Construction
Ireoice

Transaction Date AE2025 Main Checking 1000
Refier 0 MNANGY KAY KIEHL

Cash Payment E 658-48500-311 Contracts/Professional 5 August Cleaning Services
Imvoice

Transaction Date AR2025 Main Checking 10100
Refier 0 NORTHLAND TRUST SERVICES
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$11,000.00

$11,800.00

$43.824 30

343.824.30

$200.00

$200.00

12713

$127.13

F2I0TH

22578

7807

sre.or

52835

4

S72.50

$1,1568.00

$1.156.00

55445

H28.35

58280

$360.00

$380.00



ESER
Frazee

MINMESQTA

Cash Payment E321-48500-820 Fiscal Agent s Fees
Imeoice FRAZEEZSA 61172025

Transaction Date BR2025

Fefer

0 OTTER TAIL POWER

Cash Payment  E 421-20500-381 Electric Utilities

Imeoice

Transaction Date

Fefer

Q2025

0 OTTER TAIL POWER

Cash Payment E 658-48500-281 Electnic UWilities

Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imeoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imeoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Irmemice
Cash Payment
Irmemice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Irmemice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imeoice
Cash Payment
Imeoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice
Cash Payment
Imvoice

E 654-48500-381

E 100-21400-381

E 200-42200-381

E 100-42110-381

E 100-42110-381

E 100-25200-381

E 100-23160-381

E 100-43160-381

E 100-23160-381

E 100-23160-381

E 100-43160-381

E 100-43160-381

E 601-438400-381

E 802-484:50-381

E 602-48450-281

E 602-40450-281

E 602-48450-381

E 100-45200-281

E 100-45200-281

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Uiilities

Electric Utilities

Electric Utilities

CITY OF FRAZEE

Payments

Cumrent Period: September 2025

Agent Fees
Main Checking 10100
Electricity Suite B Construction
Main Checking 10100

Electric Sarvices 71825 to 818125

Electric Services 718125 to 818725

Electric Services 71825 to 818725

Electric Services 71825 to 818725

Electric Services 718125 to 818725

Electric Services 718125 to 818725

Electric Services 71825 to 818725

Electric Services 71825 to 818725

Electric Services 71825 to 818725

Electric Services 71825 to 8168725

Electric Services 71825 to 8168725

Electric Services 71825 to 818725

Electric Services 71825 to 818725

Electric Services 71825 to 8168725

Electric Services 71825 to 8168725

Electric Services 718125 to 81825

Electric Services 71825 to 81825

Electric Services T/1825 to 818725

Electric Sarvices 71825 to 818125

Electric Services 71825 to 81825
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Total
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$750.00

Fr50.00

b ]

520

s00.20

560342

F106.00

F106.00

51266

F12343

1383

L1108

Fi0ac4

52510

53626

53734

s3aTr

83440

F201.51

7515

53520

53in

2732

534.02



CITY OF FRAZEE

B E il E Payments
Frazee

MINMESOTA Cumrent Period: September 2025

Cash Payment E 100-45200-381 Electric Liilities Electric Services 7/18/25 to B/18/25

Imvoice

Cash Payment E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities Eleciric Services T/110/25 to 818725

Irepice

Cash Payment E 404-45200-381 Electric Liilities Electric Services 7T/189/25 to B/18/25

Imepice

Cash Payment E 100-45200-381 Electric Liilities Electric Services 7/18/25 to B/18/25

Imvoice

Cash Payment E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities Eleciric Services T/110/25 to 818725

Irepice

Cash Payment E 100-43100-381 Electric Liilities Electric Services T/189/25 to B/18/25

Imvoice

Cash Payment E 100-42010-381 Electric Utilities Electric Services 7/18/25 to B/18/25

Irepice

Transaction Date AE2025 Main Checking 10100 Total

Refer 0 LAKES COUNTRY SERVICE COOP  _

Cash Payment E 100-41110-324 TechnologyComputer E Technology Services for JubyAugust'September
2025

Imvoice

Cash Payment E 100-21400-324 TechnologyComputer E Technology Services for JulylAugustSeptember
2025

Imvoice

Cash Payment E 10042110-324 TechnologyComputer E Technology Services for JulylAugustSeptember
2025

Imvoice

Cash Payment E 100-23100-324 TechnologyComputer E Technology Services for JulylAugustSeptember
2025

Irepice

Cash Payment E 20042200-324 TechnologyComputer E Technology Services for JulylAugustSeptembear
2025

Irepice

Transaction Date Q2025 Main Checking 10100 Total

Refer 0 RMEB ENVIRONMENTAL LABORAT

Cash Payment  E 601-28400-313 SamplesTesting Diata Management

Imvoice DOTESTE 8025

Cash Payment Diata Management

Imvoice DOTESTE 8025

Transaction Date QI52025 Main Checking 10100 Total

Refer 0 RAMETAD, SKOYLES, WINTERS & _

Cash Payment  E 100-31110-304 Legal Fees Eagle Lake Sale

Imvoice 15659 2025

Transaction Date AE2025 Main Checking 10100 Total

Refer 0 RAMSTAD, SKOYLES, WINTERS &

Cash Payment E 100-42110-304 Legal Fees Prosecution Fees

Imvoice 1508684 2025

Transaction Date AE2025 Main Checking 10100 Total

i 0 STEVES SANITATION

Cash Payment E 10048500-312 Cont'Pro Serv - Refuse! Residential Garbage Services - August 2025
Imvoice
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53044
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52184

5381485
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F362ET
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$362.66

F1.813.32

55748

$0.00

55748
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$1,783.88

$500.00

F500.00
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CITY OF FRAZEE 0208125 12:35 M

g = Fage g
% 5 E| E Payments

Frazee

MINNESOTA Current Period: September 2025
Transaction Date BrB2025 Main Checking 10100 Total 51470157
Refer 0 SUNDHEM WINDOW CLEANING LL _
Cash Payment E 100-41400-311 Conftracts/Professional 5 City Hall Window Cleaning 520,00
Imvoice
Transaction Date AR 2025 Main Checking 104100 Total 530,00
Refer 0 STEVEES SANITATION -
Cash Payment E 100-43100-384 RefusefGarbage Dispos City Garbage & Recycling 13482
Imvoice
Cash Payment E 100-45200-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos City Garbage & Recycling 13482
Imvoice
Cash Payment E 654-48500-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos City Garbage & Recycling §7.00
Imvoice
Cash Payment E 656-48500-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos City Garbage & Recyeling $182.35
Imvoice
Cash Payment E 100-41400-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos City Garbage & Recyeling 5323
Imvoice
Cash Payment E 200-42200-384 RefusefGarbage Dispos City Garbage & Recycling 4385
Imvoice
Transaction Date BrB2025 Main Checking 10100 Total 54485

Fund Summary
10100 Maim Checking

30.00
100 GEMERAL FUMD #48,360.50
200 FIRE FUMD $28,880.38
201 RESCLUE FUMD 3556.78
202 WANMNIGAN REGIONAL PARK $507.91
321 DS BOND #2 (Downtown Infill) $750.00
404 CAP PRCU - TOWM LAKE BEACH $43,886.47
421 CAP PRCU - DT §34 T66.81
801 WATER FUND F3.505.84
802 SEWER FUMND 47220
851 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY #.116.00
854 EDA - BUSINESS CENTER $1,300.42
855 EDA - Doamtown Infill $650.50
§168,052.81

Pre-Writen Checks $28,199.61

Checks to be Generated by the Computer $135,853.00

Total $168,052 61
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New Business
SAFEASSURE 2026 SERVICE AGREEMENT

. ‘; ’ ﬂ‘
- safeA ssure

\v

WHAT SAFEASSURE
WILL DO FOR:
THE CITY OF FRAZEE

SERVICE AGREEMENT
October 2025

Page | O
September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 116 of 147



INTRODUCTION/GENERAL INFORMATION

This agreement is effective on this first day of October, 2025 for The City of Frazee, Frazee,
Minnesota, herein referred to as The City of Frazee and SafeAssure 7505 93@ Ave NE,
Spicer, Minnesota, herein referred to as SafeAssure.

This proposal includes full service as described throughout this document to
departments/employees stated within the schedule.

SafeAssure is a safety and OSHA compliance consulting company established on
January 1, 1998, specializing primarily in Municipal, Construction, Manufacturing, and
Medical operations.

SafeAssure has an A+ rating with the Better Business Bureau (BBB). A complaint has
never been filed against SafeAssure.

SafeAssure currently provides full services to over 130 municipalities in Minnesota, any or
all of which may be contacted for reference (a full list will be provided upon request).

Our employees are our largest asset. All SafeAssure on-site client services employees
are individually trained through OSHA certification programs and by SafeAssure
Education Systems prior to conducting classroom or consultation services. The
SafeAssure training management system continually reviews OSHA
Regulations/Statutes/Interpretations and confers with OSHA representatives on any new
or revised regulations or statutes. Employees are continually evaluated on O5HA subject
matter proficiencies.

SafeAssure employs 8 to 10 committed employees (depending on time of year). Although
there are other staff, key team members most directly servicing municipalities and your
organization will include:

o Chadwick Peterson (President/Owner/Consultant/Instructor) - Overall
Operations/Client Services/Quality Control

Melanie Bauman (Office Manager) - Scheduling/Coordinating/Client Services
Jonathon Beale (Consultant/Instructor) - Client Services

Tom Morgel (Consultant/Instructor) - Client Services

Tom Paull (Consultant/Instructor) - Client Services

Tom Guntzburger (Consultant/Instructor) - Client Services

Seth Schueller (Consultant/Instructor) - Client Services

Cathy Hockert (Consultant/Instructor) - Client Services

Jim Clemensen (Consultant/Instructor) - Client Services

Page | 1
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CONSULTING SERVICES

(See also Training Schedule)

« All written programs/services that are produced by SafeAssure are guaranteed to meet
the requirements set forth by MNOSHA/OSHA. SafeAssure will reimburse The City of
Frazee should MNOSHA/OSHA assess a fine for a deficient or inadequate written
program that was produced by SafeAssure. SafeAssure does not take responsibility for
financial loss due to MNOSHA/OSHA fines that are not directly related to improperly
written programs.

o SafeAssure will continuously monitor OSHA Standards and modify all safety related
programs as needed to ensure updates meet OSHA regulations and statutes. These
changes or additions, when made during an agreement year, will be made at no
additional cost to the City of Frazee.

o SafeAssure will conduct simulated OSHA audits of facilities (buildings), record
deficiencies and make comrective recommendations. Audits will include pictures of
noted deficiencies and recommendations. Al city owned buildings where city
employees work will be inspected upon request and at no additional costs.

« SafeAssure will provide answers to all, and any OSHA questions submitted by
department Supervisors (or other persons as allowed by management). Unlimited
Consulting.

« |n the event of an actual OSHA inspection, a SafeAssure employee will directly assist
during the inspection process. SafeAssure will be with you all the way, including a
presence at the OSHA closing conference and/or citation contesting heanngs when
requested.

« SafeAssure will assist you in the event of a senous work-related employee injury or
death including OSHA comrespondence and negotiations.

* SafeAssure will provide an "ALERT” system that allows SafeAssure to quickly inform
clients (through email) of any information that is pertinent to the safety of employees
and/or OSHA compliance.

« SafeAssure will provide access to an SDS database specific to the City of Frazee
through msdsonline. The SDS database related services provided (amount of SDS and
use) will be unlimited.

Page | 2
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TRAINING SERVICES

(See also Training Schedule)

* SafeAssure clients may utilize multiple training formats and techniques including but
not limited to:
o On-site training (preferred) with Power Point presentations, workbooks, videos,
and topical employee participation games (see schedule).
o Online ZOOM
o Online training through video/question-answer as well as client-specific OSHA
safety information.

* SafeAssure provides online safety training and complete documentation of individual
employee training on most subjects (see schedule) for employees directed by
management to do online training (such as during shutdowns, new employees, or
employees who missed on-site training).

+ All classroom training produced by SafeAssure for The City of Frazee are for the sole
and express use of The City of Frazee and its employees and not to be filmed, digitized
or shared.

+« Data Practices Act. All government data collected, created, received, maintained or
disseminated for any purpose by the Parties pursuant to this Agreement shall be
govermned by the provisions of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn.
Stat. §§ 13.01 et seq. (“the Data Practices Act”). SafeAssure agrees to comply with the
Data Practices Act as it applies to any data provided to it by the City or third parties and
further agrees to cooperate and assist City staff in complying with any data practices
requests arising out of, or related to, information generated or submitted pursuant to the
contract.

* All programs, policies, training, and procedures referenced on the following page do
not include the cost of hardware such as labels and signs. It will be the responsibility of
The City of Frazee to obtain this hardware as required to comply with OSHA standards.

« All time spent consulting, answernng questions, and assisting with OSHA inspections
both on and off-site are part of the agreement services and are included (see also
schedule).

* Any additional classroom subjects/hours separate from the agreement and schedule
will be billed and eligible for all “current client” discounts offered by SafeAssure not to
exceed $610 per 2-hour training session. These hours (if any) will only be allowed
upon approval of the City of Frazee management representative and SafeAssure.

+ Training subject matter will include all subjects listed within the provided annual
schedule (see within).

Page | 3
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In the interest of Quality Safety Management, it may be recommended that written procedures and
documented employee training also be provided for the following Subparts when or if applicable
during the agreement year. (Subparts represent mulfiple standards)

1910 Subparts

Subpart D - Walking - Working Surfaces

Subpart E - Means of Egress

Subpart F - Powered Platforms, Man-lifts, and Vehicle-Mounted Work Platforms
Subpart G - Occupational Health and Environmental Contral
Subpart H - Hazardous Materials

Subpart I - Personal Protective Equipment

Subpart 1 - General Environmental Controls

Subpart K - Medical and First Aid

Subpart L - Fire Protection

Subpart M - Compressed Gas and Compressed Air Equipment
Subpart N - Materials Handling and Storage

Subpart O - Machinery and Machine Guarding

Subpart P - Hand and Portable Powered Tools and Other Hand-Held Equipment.
Subpart () - Welding, Cutting, and Brazing.

Subpart S - Electrical

Subpart Z - Toxic and Hazardous Substances

1926 Subparts

Subpart C - General Safety and Health Provisions

Subpart D - Occupational Health and Environmental Controls
Subpart E - Personal Protective and Life Saving Equipment
Subpart F - Fire Protection and Prevention

Subpart G - Signs, Signals, and Barricades

Subpart H - Materials Handling, Storage, Use, and Disposal
Subpart I - Tools - Hand and Power

Subpart 1 - Welding and Cutting

Subpart K - Electrical

Subpart L - Scaffolds

Subpart M - Fall Protection

Subpart N - Cranes, Derricks, Hoists, Elevators, and Conveyors
Subpart O - Motor Vehicles, Mechanized Equipment, and Marine Operations
Subpart P - Excavations

Subpart V - Power Transmission and Distribution

Subpart W - Rollover Protective Structures; Overhead Protection
Subpart X - Stairways and Ladders

Subpart Z - Toxic and Hazardous Substances

Applicable MM OSHA 5205 Rules

Applicable MN OSHA 5207 Rules

Applicable MN OSHA 5206 Rules (Employee Right to Know)

All training on the programs written by SafeAssure Consultants, Inc. will meet or exceed
State and/or Federal OSHA requirements.

Page | 4
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SAFEASSURE INSURANCE SPECIFICS

COMMERCIAL GENERAL EACH OCCURANCE 1,000,000
LIABILITY
DAMAGE TO RENTED 300,000
PREMISIS
(EA OCCURANCE)

MED EXP (ANY ONE PERSON) 10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY 1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGSTE 2,000,000
PRODUCTS-COMP/OP AGG 2,000,000

AUTOMORBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE UNIT 1,000,000
(EA ACCIDENT)

UMBRELLA LIABILITY/EXCESS EACH OCCURANCE 1,000,000
LIABILITY

AGGREGATE 2,000,000

WORKERS COMPENSATION EACH ACCIDENT 500,000

DISEASE-EACH EMPLOYEE 500,000

DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT 500,000

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY 1,000,000

SafeAssure will provide and maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement
such insurance coverages as indicated herein naming the City of Frazee as an
additional insured. Such policy or policies must apply to the extent of, but not as a
limitation upon or in satisfaction of, the indemnity provisions of this agreement.

Page | 5
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Service Agreement-Signature Page

SafeAssure agrees to abide by all applicable federal and state laws including, but not limited to, OSHA
regulations and local/state/national building codes. Additionally, SafeAssure will practice all reasonable
and appropriate safety and loss control practices.

SafeAssure agrees that The City of Frazee will not be held liable for any claims, injuries, or damages
of whatever nature due to acts or omissions of SafeAssure. SafeAssure expressly and in perpetuity
releases and discharges The City of Frazee and its agents, members, officers, employees, heirs, and
assigns from any such claims, injuries, or damages. SafeAssure will also agree to defend, indemnify,
and hold harmless The City of Frazee, its agents, members, and heirs from any and all claims, injuries,
or damages of whatever nature pursuant to the provisions of this agreement.

SafeAssure is an independent contractor of The City of Frazee, and nothing in this agreement shall be
considered to constitute the relationship of an employer/employee.

In consideration of this signed agreement, for the period of 12 months from October 1, 2025,
SafeAssure agrees to provide The City of Frazee with the aforementioned features and services. These
features and services include but are not limited to OSHA compliance recommendations and
consultations, scheduled classroom-training sessions (see aftached 12-month schedule), unlimited
online training, an online 505 management program, and the production and maintenance of
mandatory OSHA programs. These features and services will be prepared to meet the specific needs
of The City of Frazee.

If SafeAssure fails to perform any of the provisions of this agreement or fails to administer the work to
endanger the performance of the agreement, such failure may constitute default. Unless the default
is excused by the city, the city may, upon written notice to SafeAssure, cancel this agreement in
partial or entirety. Either party can terminate the agreement at will upon written notice and refund of
monies will be issued based on remaining time/services (prorated).

The following is the agreement fee calculated by aforementioned services and schedule to be paid in
full by the agreement start date of October 1, 2025 (or at a later date approved by SafeAssure or due
date stated within the produced invoice).

TOTAL COST $5,521.99

SDS SERVICES (SDS ON-LINE) (included)

SMALL ENTITY DISCOUNT (10%) -$552.20
TOTAL ANNUAL $4,969.79

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, we agree to the day, and year first mentioned above written and, if
representing an organization or similar entity, further certify the undersigned are a duly authorized agent
of said entity and authorized to sign on behalf of identified entity.

X
The City of Frazee Date
X
The City of Frazee Date
President-SafeAssure Date
Page | 6
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New Business
AET MATERIAL TESTING PROPOSAL

Geotechnical . Materials
Forensic « Environmental
Building Technology
Petrography/Chemistry

AMERICAN

EMGINEERING TESTING

Cost Proposal
Wannigan Park Trail
Frazee, MN

Date:
August 12, 2025

Prepared for:

City of Frazee
PO Box 387
Frazee, MN 56544

American Engineering Testing
3940 Minnkota Ave NW

Bemidji, MN 56601

TeamAET.com « 218-209-2977
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August 12, 2025

City of Frazee
PO Box 387 AMERICAN
Frazee, MN 56544 ENGINEERING TESTING

ATTN: C/O Nick Koos

Subject: Fee Proposal — Construction Material Testing Services
Wannigan Park Trail
Frazee, MN

Greetings Mick,

American Engineering Testing (AET) is pleased to submit this proposal and preliminary fee
estimate to provide construction material testing services during the Wannigan Park Trail project
in Frazee, MN. Our proposal is based on the digital plans and specifications provided by Widseth.
In this proposal, we present our understanding of the project, an outline of the scope of services
we are to provide, and the fee estimate for our services.

PROJECT INFORMATION

We understand the project, located in Frazee, Minnesota, consists of bituminous trail construction
and additional park shelter.

We have not received a copy of the construction schedule and have had to make some
assumptions as to the anticipated number of visits, duration of each visit, and the anticipated
amount of testing. We believe these assumptions are consistent with current construction
practices and the project goals. We will coordinate our services with your project representative
to provide an efficient application of our services while meeting the requirements of the project
plans and specifications.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

AET's Project Manager, Jake Voigt, will provide supervision and technical oversight of our
services. Mr. Voigt is responsible for interacting with your designated project representative to
coordinate our field observation and laboratory testing services. Staff assignment will be
dependent on the nature of the testing required.

Scope of Work

We understand activities on this project will require general construction material testing as well
as special inspection services as defined within the current 2024 MNDOT State Aid Schedule of
Materials Control and MNDOT Standards and Specifications. We present below a generalized
“scope of services™ associated with our involvement on this project.

« Perform sampling and aggradation testing of trail aggregate base.

3940 Minnkota Ave NW | Bemidji, MN 56601
Phone Office: 218-209-2977| teamAET.com | AA'EED
This document shall not be reproduced, except in full, without written approval from Amencan Engineering Testing, Inc.
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Cost Proposal — CMT Services
Wannigan Park Trail, Frazee, MN
BM22025 AMERICAN

AW DR W TEETI S

+ Perform plastic and compressive strength testing of concrete. Such services may include
observation to document completed work conforms to appropriate criteria.

« Perform bituminous plant monitoring, mixture verifications and companion core density testing,
assumes two days of paving.

Technical Management & Reports

Our Project Manager reviews the daily field reports generated by our field staff during
construction. ltems found in non-compliance with the project requirements are brought to the
immediate attention of the construction superintendent for correction.

We have assumed that our standard invoicing format issued on a monthly basis with no supporting
documentation will be acceptable for this project. If supporting documentation or specialized
invoicing is required, additional administrative time may be required to accommodate your
request.

ESTIMATED FEES

Our services will be provided on a unit cost basis according to the unit rates provided in the
attached AET Fee Estimate tabulation. These rates will remain in effect through the duration of
the project. Our monthly invoices will be determined by multiplying the number of personnel hours
or tests by their respective unit rates. We have also estimated a total cost we anticipate will be
required to complete the previously described observations and testing services. This estimated
total cost is based on our experience with similar projects and construction schedule.

We caution that this is only an estimated cost. Often, variations in the overall cost of the services
occur due to reasons beyond our control, such as construction change orders, weather delays,
changes in the contractor's schedule, unforeseen conditions or retesting of services. These
variations will affect the actual invoice totals, either increasing or decreasing our total costs for
the project from those estimated in this proposal. If more time or tests are required, additional fees
may be needed to complete the project testing services. If less time or tests are needed, a cost
savings will be realized. We will not, however, exceed the estimated total cost for the project
without first obtaining your authorization.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

All AET Services are provided subject to the Terms and Conditions set forth in the enclosed
Construction Service Agreement—Terms and Conditions, which, upon acceptance of this
proposal, are binding upon you as the Client requesting Services, and your sucCcessors,
assignees, joint venturers, and third-party beneficiaries. Please be advised that additional insured
status is granted only upon written acceptance of the proposal.

ACCEPTANCE

AET requests written acceptance of this proposal in the Proposal Acceptance box below, but the
following actions shall constitute your acceptance of this proposal together with the Terms and
Conditions: 1) issuing an authorizing purchase order for any of the Services described in this
proposal, 2) authorizing AET's presence on site, or 3) written or electronic notification for AET to
proceed with any of the Services described in this proposal. Please indicate your acceptance of
this proposal by signing below and retuming a copy to us. When you accept this proposal, you

Page 2 of 3
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Cost Proposal — CMT Services
Wannigan Park Trail, Frazee, MN
BM2/2025

AMERICAMN

EHGIEEERING TEETI oS

represent that you are authorized to accept on behalf of the Client.

GENERAL REMARKS
AET appreciates the opportunity to provide this service for you and looks forward to working with
you on this project. If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact us.

Sincerely,
American Engineering Testing, Inc.

5“)*"“ @% St Miziat—

Jake Voigt, PE Seth Misialek
Engineer llI Field Engineer

ACCEPTANCE AND AUTHORIZATION: AET Proposal # P-0046247
SIGNATURE:
PRINTED MAME:
COMPANY:
ADDRESS:
PHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL:
DATE:

INVOICING INFORMATION (Provide Company AP Department Information, if
present.)

AP CONTACT NAME:

BILLING/MAILING ADDRESS:

AP PHONE NUMBER AND INVOICE EMAIL:

P.O. NO.JPROJECT NO.:

Attachments: AET Fee Estimate
Construction Service Agreement — Terms and Conditions

Certificate of Insurance
W9
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PROJECT TESTING SERVICES FEE SCHEDULE

Wannigan Park Trail
Frazee, MM
AET PROPOSAL Mo. P-0046247

AMERICAN

EMGINEERING TESTING

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 127 of 147

PROJECT BUDGET
SERVICE DESCRIPTION
ESTIMATED UNIT BUDGET
UNITS RATE AMOUNT
Aggregate Base Sampling/Testing
|Aggregate Base Testing - Technician, Level Il 2 Houwr $110.00
[Trip Charge 2 Each 40000
[ASTM C136 Sieve Analysis of Aggregate (Coarse and Fine) 4 Test $142.00
Section Subtotal:
Concrete Testing
JConcrete Testing - Technician, Lewel I 2 Houwr $110.00
[Trip Charge 3 Each 40000
JASTM C38 Concrete Compressive Sirength 4x8 Cylinder 10 Test $25.00
Section Subtotal:
I
Bituminous Observations & Testing
IMnDOT Technician Sampling - Technician, Level II 16 Hour 5110000
Trip Charge 3 Each 540000
[ASTM D2726 Specific Gravity and Density of Non-Absorptive Asphalt 4 Cors $50.00
IMnDOT Gyratory Mix Properties 2 Test $650.00
- Section Subtotal:
Project Management & Coordination
Project Management - Engineer, Level [liProject Manager 3 $165.00 $555.00
Project Administrator 2 Hour $85.00 $170.00
[Travel 32 Hour $0.00 $0.00
Section Subtotal: $725.00
ESTIMATED SALES BUDGET $8.591.00
Page 1 of 1



CONSTRUCTION SERVICE AGREEMENT - TERMS AND COMNDHTIONS Page lofd

SECTION 1 - RESPONSIBILITIES

1.1 — This Service Agreament — Terms and Conditions [“terms and conditions”) is applicable to all services ["Services"] provided by American Engineering
Testing, Inc. {AET]. As used herein “Services” refer to the scope of Services described in the propasal submitted by AET to Client. The proposal, these
terms and conditions and any appendices attached hereto shall comprise the agreement ["Agreement”) between AET and Client for Services described in
the proposal and are binding upon the Client, its successors, assignees, joint ventures and third-party beneficiaries. AET requests written acceptance of
the Agreement, but the following actions shall also constitute Client's acceptance of the Agreement: 1) issuing an authorizi urchase order, task

order, service order, or any other documentation for any of the Services, 2) authorizing AET's presence on site, or 3] written or electronic notification
for AET to proceed with any of the Services. Issuance of a purchase order, task order or service order by Client which contains separate terms and
conditions will not take precedence or modify the terms and conditions contained in this Service Agreement AND THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF
THIS SERVICE AGREEMENT AND ANY CORRESPONDING PROPOSAL ISSUED BY AET SHALL GOVERMN UNLESS AUTHORIZED IN WRITING IN
ADVANCE BY AET.

1.2 - Prior to AET performing Services, Client will provide AET with all information that may affect the cost, progress, safety and performance of the
Services. This includes, but is not limited to, information on proposed and existing construction, all pertinent sections of contracts between Client and
their client and/or Owner which contain flow-down provisions to AET, if they are included, site safety plans or other documents which may control or
affect AET's Services. If new information becomes available or changes are made during AET's Services, Client will provide such information to AETina
timely manner. Failure of Client to timely notify AET of changes to the project including, but not limited to, location, elevation, loading, or configuration
of the structure or improvement will constitute a release of any liability of AET. Client will provide a representative for timely answers to project-related
questions by AET.

1.3 - AET observes and tests earthwork and other construction operations and materials, and may provide opinions, conclusions and recommendations
regarding the same. However, AET's Services do not relieve the contractors of their contractual responsibility to perform their work in accordance with
approved plans, specifications and building code requirements.

1.4 - AET personnel do not have authority to accept, reject, direct or otherwise approve the work of the contractor. AET cannot stop work or waive or
alter the requirements of the project documents. Any authority given to AET by Client must be in writing prior to the start of Services.

1.5 - AET does not perform construction management, genaral contracting or surveying services and our involvemnent with the project does not constitute
any assumption of those responsibilities.

1.6 - Services performad by AET often include sampling at specific locations. Client acknowledges the limitations inherent in sampling. Variations in
conditions occur between and beyond sampled/tested locations. The passage of time, natural occurrences and direct or indirect human activities at the
site or distant from it may alter the actual conditions. client assumes all risks associated with such variations.

1.7 - AET is not responsible for interpretations or modifications of AET's recommendations by other persons.

1.8 - should change in conditions be alleged, Client agrees to notify AET before evidence of alleged change is no longer accessible for evaluation.

1.9 - Test borings and/or cone pensatration test soundings to a proper depth below foundation grade and the base of suitable bearing soils are
recommendead to explore the deeper unseen soil and ground water conditions. Judgments made by AET personnel regarding the suitability of materials
and ground water conditions below the bottom of an excavation are limited if sufficiently deep test borings/soundings are not provided by the Client
prior to our observations and judzments. AET's opinions, conclusions and recommendations are qualified to that extent.

1.10 — Pricing in the proposal assumes use of these terms and conditions. AET reserves the right to amend pricing if Client requests modifications to the
Agresment or use of Client’s alternate contract format. Any contract amendments made after Client has authorized the Services shall be applicable only
to Services performed after the effective date of such amendment. The proposal and these terms and conditions, including terms of payment, shall apply
to all Services performed prior to the effective date of such amendment.

1.11 — The AET proposal accompanying these terms and conditions is valid for thirty (30) days after the proposal issuance date to the Client. Any attempt
to authorize Services after the expiration date is subject to AET"s right to revise the proposal as necessary.

SECTIOM 2 — ON CALL SERVICES

2.1 - If AET's Services are performed on an on-call basis at the direction of the Client or its authorized representatives, Client acknowledges the inherent
limitations associated with performing engineering judgments and testing Services on an on-call basis, including without limitation, the inability to
completely evaluate, document or judze work and conditions not directly observed or tested by AET. AET's opinions, conclusions, and recommendations
are qualified to the extent of those limitations.

2.2 - Density tests of fill soils represent conditions only at the locations and elevations tested and do not necessarily represent conditions laterally, abowve
or below. AET can only provide judgments regarding the engineered fill system to adequately support the design construction loadings by monitoring the
filling process on a continugus basis for consistency of soil type, moisture content, lift thickness, and compaction effort.

2.3 — AET requires a minimum of 24 hours' notice of the need for Services. AET will not be liable for claims, damages, or delays related to failure of Client
to provide adequate advance notice to AET.

SECTION 3 - SITE ACCESS, UNDERGROUND FACILITIES AND COMSTRUCTION STAKING

3.1 - Client will furnish AET safe and legal site access.

3.2 — with the exception of public utilities which AET will contact state “call before you dig” notification centers (e g. Gopher State One call in Minnesota),
Client will mark or cause to be marked the location of all other underground utilities and structures (Facilities) that service or are located on the site. 2ET
shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy of all location information supplied by any source.

3.3 - client shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend AET from all claims, damages, losses, fines, penalties and expenses (including attorney’s fees)
arising out of or related to the following: a) Facilities that are not shown or vary from the locations shown on any plans or drawings, b) Facilities that are
niot located by or vary from the locations marked by Client, governmental or quasi-governmental locator programs, or private utility locating services, or
c] any other Facilities that are not disclosed or vary from locations provided by the client. The chligation to defend AET shall be independent of the
obligation to indemnify and hold harmless AET and shall be with independent counsel acceptable to AET.

3.4 - The location and elevation of a proposed structure or facility shall be staked [with offsets) and controlled by surveying or GPS equipment by others.
AET's measurements are made in relation to that information. The reliability of any opiniens, conclusions, and recommendations based on those
measurements is strictly dependent on the accuracy of the staking or GPS information provided by others.

ACS 403C (01/25) AMERICAN ENGIMEERING TESTING, IMNC.
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3.5 - During construction, observations and testing Services are based on the positioning of the formwork by the contractor or its subcontractor. AET will
not be responsible for any errors or damages resulting from improper location or positioning of the formwaork.

SECTION 4 - SAFFTY

4.1 - client shall inform AET of any known or suspected hazardous materials or unsafe conditions at the site. Client or its authorized representative(s) is
responsible for the safety of the jobsite. If, during the course of AET's Services, such materials or conditions are discovered, AET reserves the right to take
measwres to protect AET personnel and equipment or to immediately terminate Services. Client shall be responsible for payment of such additional
protection costs.

4.2 - AET shall only be responsible for safety of AET employees at the site; the safety of all others shall be Client's or other persons' responsibility.

SECTION 5 - SAMPLES

5.1 - client shall inform AET of any known or suspected hazardous materials prior to submittal to AET. all samples obtained by or submitted to AET remain
the property of the Client during and after the Services. Any known or suspected hazardous material samples will be returned to the Client at AET's
discretion.

5.2 - Mon-hazardous samples will be held for thirty (30] days and then discarded unless, within thirty (30) days of the report date, the client requests in
writing that AET store or ship the samples. Storage and shipping costs shall be borne solely by Client.

SECTION & - PROJECT RECORDS

The original project records prepared by AET will remain the property of AET. AET shall retain these original records for a minimum of three years following
submission of the report, during which period the project records can be made available to Client at AET's office at reasonable times.

SECTION 7 - STANDARD OF CARE
AET parforms its Services consistent with the level of care and skill nermally performed by other firms in the profession at the time of this service and in
this geographic area, under similar budgetary constraints.

SECTION B - INSURAMCE
AET maintains insurance with coverage and minimum limits shown below. AET will furnish certificates of insurance to Client upon request.
E1-

‘Workers' Compensation Statutory Limits

Employer's Liability 5100,000 each accident
5500,000 disease policy limit
5100,000 disease each employee

Commercial General Liability 51, 000,000 each oocurrence
51, 0060, 60 agEregate
Automaobile Liability 51,000,000 each accident
Professional /Pollution Liability Insurance .
fpo Iy 51, 0060, 0060 per claimn
51, 0060, 60 agEregate

8.2 - Commercial General Liability insurance will include coverage for Products/Completed Operations extending one (1) year after completion
of AET's Services as outlined in our proposal, Property Damage, Personal Injury, and Contractual Liability coverage applicable to AET's indemnity
obligations under this Agreement.

8.3 - Automobile Liability imsurance shall include coverage for all owned, hired and non-owned automobiles.

84 - Professional/Follution Liability Insurance is written on a claims-made basis and coverage will be maintained for one (1) year after
completion of AET's Services as outlined in our proposal. Renewal policies during this period shall maintain the same retroactive date.

8.5 - To the extent permitted by applicable state law, and upon Client's signing of the proposal, which includes these Terms and Conditions,
and return of the same to AET, or Client provided forms of acceptance as defined in Section 1.1; Client and Owmner shall be named an
“additional insured™ on AET"s Commercial General Liability Policy [Form CG D4 14, which includes blanket coverage for the Additional Insured
on a Primary and Mon-Contributory basis). Client and Owner shall also be named an "additional insured” on a Primary and Mon-contributory
basis on AET's Automobile Liability Policy (Form CA T4 74). Any other endorsement, coverage or policy requirement may result in additional
charges.

B.6 - AET will maintain insurance coverage reguired by this Agreement at its sole expense, provided such insurance is reasonably available, with
insurance carriers licensed to do business in the state in which the project is located and having a current A.M. Best rating of no less than A minus
{&-). Such insurance shall provide for thirty {30} days prior written notice to Client for notice of cancellation or material limitations for the policy
or ten (10) days' notice for non-payment of premium.

B.7 - AET reserves the right to charge Client for AET's costs for additional coverage requirements unknown on the date of the proposal, e g,
coverage limits or policy medification including waiver of subrogation, additional insured endorsements and other project specific requirements.
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SECTION 9 - DELAYS
If delays to AET's Services are caused by Client or Owner, other parties, strikes, natural causes, pandemic, weather, or other items beyond AET's control,
a reasonable time extension for performance of the Services shall be granted, and AET shall receive an equitable fee adjustment.

SECTION 10 - PAYMENT, INTEREST AND BREACH

10.1 - Invaices are due net thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of an undisputed invoice. Invoices will be paid without reductions for bond or
retention. Client will inform AET of invoice questions or disagreements within fifteen (15) days of inveice date; unless so informed, invoices are deemed
Correct.

10,2 — invoices remaining unpaid for sixty (60) days shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, permitting AET, in its sole discretion and without
limiting any other legal or equitable remeadies for such breach, to terminate performance of this Agreement and be relieved of any associated duties to
the Client or other persons. Further, AET may withhold from cClient data and reports in AET's possession. If Client fails to cure such breach, all reports
associated with the unpaid invoices shall immediately upon demand be returned to AET and Client may neither use nor rely upon such reports or the
Senvices.

10,3 — AET reserves the right to pursue any unpaid invoice utilizing available remedies at law. AET explicitly reserves its Mechanic Lien or Bond Claim rights
for nonpayment of an undisputed invaice. Client is responsible for paying AET expenses and attomey fees related to collection of past due invoices.
10,4 — AET reserves the right to charge a 2.5% fee on any payment made using a credit card or debit card.

SECTION 11 - CHANGE ORDERS

AET's proposal associated with this project may provide an estimated cost for the work. if the proposal amount is a time and material estimate, or if
changes ocour affecting the project scope, estimated guantities, project schedule or other unforeseen conditions, AET will communicate with Client and
request a change order. However, nothing in this agreement shall be construed in any way as a waiver of payment by Client to AET for Services authorized
under this agreement. Approval of a change order may be in writing, by electronic communication, or any directive for additional Services.

SECTION 12 - MEDLATION

12.1 - Except for enforcement of AET's rights to payment for Services rendered or to assert and/or enforce its lien rights, including without limitation
assertion and enforcement of mechanic's lien rights and foreclosure of the same, Client and AET agree that any claim, dispute or other matter in question
arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to arbitration or the institution of legal or equitable
proceedings by either party; provided however that if either party fails to respond to a request for mediation within sixty (60} days, the party requesting
mediation may without further notice, proceed to arbitration or the institution of legal or equitable proceedings.

12.2 - Mediation shall be in accordance with the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American arbitration Association. Request for mediation
shall be in writing and the parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally and each party shall pay their own legal fees. The mediator
shall be acceptable to both parties and shall have experience in commercial construction matters.

SECTION 13 - LITIGATION REIMEBURSEMENT

Except for matters relating to non-payment of fees, which is governed by Section 10 hereof, payment of attorney’s fees and costs associated with lawsuits
or arbitration of disputes between AET and client, which are dismissed or are judged substantially in either party's favar, shall be paid by the non-prevailing
party. Applicable costs indude, but are not limited to, attorney and expert witness fees, court costs, and other direct costs.

SECTION 14 - MUTUAL INDEMMIFICATION

14.1 - subject to the limitations contained in Sections 14 and 17, AET agrees to indemnify Client from and against damages and costs to the extent caused
by AET's negligent performance of the Services.

14.2 - Client agrees to indemnify AET from and against damages and costs to the extent caused by the intenticnal acts or negligence of the Client, Owner,
client's contractors and subcontractors or other third parties.

14.3 - If client has an indemnity agreement with other persons or entities relating to the project for which AET's Services are performed, the client shall
include AET as an Additional Insured.

14.4 - AET's indemnification to the Client, including any indemnity required or implied by law, is limited solely to losses or damages caused by its failure
to meet the standard of care and only to the extent of its neglizenca.

SECTION 15 - NON-SOLICITATION

Each party to this Agreement (a "Party”) agrees that it will not encourage, induce, or actively solicit any employee of the other party to leave their
employment for any reason, provided that neither Party is precluded from (a) hiring any such employee who has been terminated by a Party or its
subsidiaries prior to commencement of employment discussions between a Party and such employee, or (b) soliciting any such employee by means of a
general advertisement or through an employment agency that does not specifically pursue the employee, or (] hiring employees or former employees
of the other Party who contact the Party on its own accord. This Mon-Solicitation provision shall be effective and enforceable for six [6) months following
termination of this Agreemeant.

SECTION 16- MUTUAL WANER OF CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES

Except as specifically set forth herein and to the extent permitted by applicable law, Client and AET waive against each other, and each other's officers,
directors, members, subcontractor, agents, assigns, successors, partners, and employees any and all claims for or entitiement to special, incidental, indirect,
punitive, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to the Services provided by AET under this Agreement. This mutual
waiver of consequential damages includes, but is not limited to, the following: loss of profits; loss of revenue; rental costs/expenses incurred; loss of income;
loss of use of property, equipment, materials or services; loss of opportunity; loss of rent; loss of good will; loss of financing; loss of credit; diminution of value;
loss of business and reputation; loss of management or employee productivity or the services of such persons; increased financing costs; cost of substitute
fadilities; cost of substitute goods/property/equipment; cost of substitute serices; and/or cost of capital. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation,
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to all consequential damages due to either party’'s termination of this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and related documents
and shall survive any such termination.

SECTION 17 - LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

To the fullest extent permitted by appliable law, the total aggregate liability of AET and its officers, directors, partners, employees, subcontractors,
agents, and sub-consultants, to Client and/or Client’s employees, officers, directors, members, agents, assigns, successors, or partners, or anyone claiming
through client, for any and all injuries, damages, claims, losses, or expenses (including attorney’s fees and costs) arising out of, resulting from or in any
way related to Services provided by AET from any cause or causes, including, but not limited to, its negligence, professional errors and omissions, strict
liability, breach of contract, or breach of warranty shall not exceed the total compensation in excess of costs received by AET for Services or 550,000,
whichever is less. The limitation of liability set forth herein does not apply to claims arising solely out of or related to the willful or intentional acts of AET.

SECTION 18 - POSTING OF MOTICES ON EMPLOYEE RIGHTS

Effective Jume 21, 2010, prime contracts with a value of 5100,000 or more and signed by federal contractors on projects with any agency of the United
States government must comply with 29 CFR Part 471, which requires physical posting of a notice to employees of their rights under Federal labor laws.
The required notice may be found at 29 Code of Federal Reguiations Part 471 Appendix A to Subpart A. The regulation also has a "flow-down” requirement
for subcontractors under the prime agreement for subcontracts with a value of 510,000 or more. AET requires strict compliance of its subcontractors
working on federal contracts subject to this regulation. The regulation has specific requirements for location of posting and language(s) for the poster.

SECTION 19 - TERMIMNATION
after 7 days' written notice, either party may elect to terminate work for justifiable reasons. In this event, the Client shall pay AET for all Services
perfermed, induding demobilization and reporting costs to complete the Services.

SECTION 20 - SEVERABILITY

any provisions of this Agreement later held to violate a law or regulation shall be deemed void, and all remaining provisions shall continue in force.
Howewer, Client and AET will in good faith attempt to replace an invalid or unenforceable provision with one that is valid and enforceable, and which
comes as dose as possible to expressing the intent of the original provision.

SECTION 21 - GOVERNING LAW
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the Laws of the State of Minnesota without regard to its conflicts of law provisions.

SECTION 22 - ENTIRE AGREEMEMNT

This Agreement, including these terms and conditions and attached proposal and appendices, is the entire agreement between AET and Client. Regardless
of method of acceptance of this Azreement by the Client, this Agreement supersedes any written or oral agreements, including purchase/work orders or
other Client agreements submitted to AET after the start of our Services. Any modifications to this Agreement must be mutually acceptable to both parties
and accepted in writing. No considerations will be given to revisions to AET's terms and conditions or alternate contract format submitted by the client
as a condition for payment of AET's accrued Services.
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New Business

GAMING ATTENDANT JOB DESCRIPTION

= _ City of
‘}:3 Frazee

Gaming Attendant

Job Description

JOB TITLE
SUPERVISOR
DEPARTMENT HEAD
DEPARTMENT

I. IDENTIFYING INFORMATION

Gaming Attendant WORK LOCATION On f OFf Sale Liqguor Store
Liquor Store Manager FLSA STATUS Non-Exempt

Liquor Store Manager PAY GRADE 1

Liquor Store EFFECTIVE DATE

. POSITION SUMMARY

Manage gaming operations which include meat raffles, horse races, and pull tabs.

. ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBLITIES

Ensure a friendly and welcoming atmosphere for all guests.

Good public relation skills including ability to deal effectively with all varieties of customers, including
wulgar and possibly intoxicated patrons.

Provide prompt service to patrons participating in gaming activities.

Maintain a safe and secure gaming environment by monitoring activity and reporting any suspicious
behaviour.

Managing cash transactions accurately and efficiently.

Payout pull tab winnings according to 5tate regulations.

Participate in maintaining a clean and crganized gaming areals).

Replenish stock and supplies as needed.

Report any equipment malfunctions or safety hazards.

Gather gaming prizes in coordination with the Non-Profit Organizations Gaming Manager.

VI MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS

Must be at least 21 years of age.

VIll. DESIRABLE QUALIFICATIONS

Gaming operation experience is highly regarded.

This job description is intended to provide a general overview of the position. it is not an exhoustive list of responsibilities, skills or
qualifications associoted with the role.

Frazee is an Equal Opportunity Employer.
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New Business
JANITOR JOB DESCRIPTION

Janitor
Job Description
|. IDENTIFYING INFORMATION
JOB TITLE Janitor WORK LOCATION Fire Hall § City Hall
SUPERVISOR City Adminstrator FLSA STATUS Non-Exempt
DEPARTMENT HEAD City Administrator FAY GRADE 1
DEPARTMENT Administration EFFECTIVE DATE

IIl. POSITION SUMMARY

Responsible for maintaining overall cleanliness and sanitation of municipal buildings sketreHaHand-
Ly Halbcommen-areas by completing a variety of cleaning tasks. General duties include mopping
and vacuuming floors, cleaning surfaces with disinfectant and emptying trash cans and recycling bins.

Ill.  ESSENTIAL DUTIES AMD RESPONSIBLITIES
Sanitize light switches and door handles.
Sweep, mop, and vacuum floors.
Vacuum rugs and carpets.

Collect and take garbage and recycling to outside bins.
Clean, steck, and service restreoms including wiping down all bathroom fixtures including mirrors.

Organize cleaning supply doset.

Deep clean kitchen appliances monthly.

Dust all surfaces monthly.

Sanitize tables and chairs monthly.

Clean interior windows monthly.

Replace light bulbs as needed.

Maintain inventory of all deaning products, supplies and equipment.

Notify Administrative Assistant sepessser by email) when cleaning supplies are low and need to be
ordered.

Make sure all doors, windows, entrances and exits are securely closed and locked prior to exiting the
buildings.

Report needed repairs, safety hazards, or conditions requiring attention.

Any other duties as assigned by the City Administrator.

V. DESIRABLE KNOWLEDGES, ABILITIES AND SKILLS
Ability to lift and mowve over 50 pounds.
Exceptional time management skills and the competenance to prioritize duties.
Ability to stand for extended periods.
Perform physically demanding actions including bending, turning and lifting.
Ability to work with minimal supervision.
Attention to detail and good organizational skills.
Knowledge of different cleaning products and tools.

Ability to express oneself, clearly and concisely.

V. MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS
High school diploma or general education degree [GED) required.

Ability to cbserve safety and security procedures and to comply with City policies.

This job description is intended to provide o general overview of the position. It is not an exhaustive list of responsibilities, skills or
gqualifications associated with the rale.

| The City of Frazee is an Equal Opportunity Employer.
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Addendum
APPROVAL OF ADDITIONAL CLAIMS

CITY OF FRAZEE DRV1025 242 M
= o Page 1
E (o G Payments
£ Bl =
F
M";aﬂ.gﬂeTg Current Period: September 2025

Payments Batch (9102025GEN2 545,107.28
Refer 0 SAFEASSURE -
Cash Payment E 100-31400-331 TravelTraining Expense 2026 Safety Training Froe.gr
Imvoice 3668 922025
Cash Payment E 100-33100-331 TravelTraining Expense 2026 Safety Training Froeer
Irvcice 3668 822025
Cash Payment E 601-38400-331 TravelTraining Expense 2026 Safety Training FT0e.87
Imepice 3668 922025
Cash Payment E 602-38450-331 TravelTraining Expense 2026 Safety Training Froegr
Irvoice 3668 Q22025
Transaction Date AB2025 Main Chacking 10100 Total $2,835.88
Refer 0 LEIGHTON BROADCASTING-DETR _
Cash Payment E 651-48500-300 Professional Sres (GEM  TW3 Com Sponsor wProfile $135.00
Irepice 245807 8312025
Transaction Date B/B/2025 Main Checking 10100 Total $135.00
Refer 0 Owt Front Power Bquipment _
Cash Payment E 10045200404 RepairsMaint Machinery Flat Free Tire item #8278 $138.85
Imepice 8235 a/302025
Transaction Date B/B/2025 Main Checking 10100 Total F138.85
Refar 0 OTTERTAIL POWER _
Cach Payment E 656-48500-381 Electric Litilities 109 MAIN AVE STE A Fa65.50
Imvoice 20127405 BI25/2025
Cash Payment E 556-48500-381 Electric Ltilities 109 MAIN AVE STE A F320.11
Invoice 20127405 82025
Transaction Date QB2025 Main Checking 10100 Total $685.70
Refer 0 SIMPLE WEBSITE CREATIONS, IN
Cash Payment E 100-41400-324 Technology'Computer E Web Hosting & 3351 33487
Irvpice 2468 8/5/2025
Transaction Date A/B2025 Main Checking 10100 Total F334.87
Refer 0 SWANSONS REFPAIR ING -
Cash Payment E 10045200404 Repairs/Maint Machinery Sccag Blade $69.00
Irvpice 2348 Bf25/2025
Cash Payment E 20042200408 Repairs/Maint Vehicles Truck Senvice 41528
Imepice 40809 TI31/2025
Cash Payment E 200422004068 Repairs/Maint Vehicles Water Leak $1,884.51
Imvcice 40626 TI31/2025
Transaction Date AB2025 Main Chacking 10100 Total $3,168.80
Refar 0 VERIZON -
Cash Payment E 100-32110-324 Technology/Computer E PD Tech Expense F105.05
Irvoice 6121750453 8312025
Cash Payment E 100-42110-321 Telephone FD Phane 346,53
Imeoice 6121815781 B/23/2025
Cash Payment E 100-43100-321 Telephone FW Phane F46.53
Invoice 6121815781 Br232025
Cash Payment E 502-48450-321 Telephone Sewer Phone F46.53
Irecice 6121815781 B/23/2025
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— Page2
E < 5 R Payments
= .
Fraz
MI":”aN.E E'gr? Current Period: September 2025

Transaction Date QrB2025 Main Checking 10100 Total 24464
Refer 0 VERGAS AUTO REPAIR _
Cash Payment E 100-42110-408 Repairs/Maint Vehicles Remove/Replace Altemator $1,288.75
Invoice 31172 B/18/2025
Transaction Date QIBI2025 Main Checking 10100 Total $1,288.75
Refer 0 WIDSETH _
Cash Payment  E 404-45200-303 Engineering Fees Professional Senvices through 8/8/25 F1,037.80
Invoice 230821 B/21/2025
Transaction Date QIBI2025 Main Checking 1000 Total F1.037.80
Refer 0 FARGO FREIGHTLINER -
Cash Payment E 10043100408 Repairs/Maint WVehicles MUF - DM#N SIDE OUT F0807.13
Imvoice X101188136:01 B/21/2025
Transaction Date Q2025 Main Checking 10100 Total FO07.13
Refer 0 RAMSTAD, SKOYLES, WINTERS & _
Cash Payment E 100-41110-304 Legal Fees Legal Fees - Trailer Couwrt Camer Questions F175.00
Invoice 15658 8/3/2025
Cash Payment E G01-22400-34 Legal Fees Lagal Fees - Uiility Subposna 166
Invoice 15658 832025
Cash Payment E G02-48450-304 Legal Fees Legal Fees - Utility Subposna 541.65
Invoice 15858 8/3/2025
Cash Payment  E 100-48500-304 Legal Fees Lagal Fees - Lty Subposna 41.68
Invoice 15658 8/3/2025
Cash Payment E 100-41110-304 Legal Fees Legal Fees - Annex School F375.00
Invoice 15658 932025
Cash Payment E 100-41110-304 Legal Fees Legal Fees - Reg Meeting Attendance $114.00
Invoice 15858 G026
Transaction Date Q2025 Main Checking 10100 Total Froe.oo
Refer 0 ALL NALL INC _
Cash Payment E 100-42110-408 Repairs/Maint Vehicles  August Fuel Charges - PD Carwash 3800
Imvoice 922025
Cash Payment E 100-42110-212 Maotor Fuels August Fuel Charges - PD $813.30
Imvoice 822025
Cash Payment E 100-43100-212 Maotor Fuels August Fuel Charges - Strests 368114
Imvoice 922025
Cash Payment E 100-452D0-212 Maotor Fuels August Fuel Charges - Parks 337333
Imvoice 922025
Cach Payment E G02-48450-212 Maotor Fuels August Fuel Charges - Sewer $250.74
Invoice /22025
Cash Payment E 603-43150-212 Maotor Fuels August Fuel Charges - Stomn 55340
Imvoice 822025
Cash Payment E 201-42300-212 Maotor Fuels August Fuel Charges - Rescus F104.00
Imvoice 822025
Transaction Date BR2025 Main Checking 10100 Total $2.200.00
Refer 0 HEALTHPARTNERS ING _
Cash Payment G 100-21708 Insurance Payable August 2025 Emp Health Ins Premium 310,404 26
Invoice SGITZE0424E60 832025
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Cash Payment G E0M-21708 Insurance Payable
Imenice 583728642460 BIa2025
Cash Payment G G602-21708 Insuramce Payable
Imepice 563728842460 282025
Cash Payment G 100-21708 Insuramce Payable
Imenice 563721220812 GIB2025
Cash Payment G E0M1-21708 Insurance Payable
Imenice 583721220812 SE202E
Cash Payment G E02-21708 Insurance Payable
Imenice 583721220812 SE202E

Transaction Date BMR2025

CITY OF FRAZEE

Payments

Current Period: September 2025

August 2025 Emp Health Ins Premium
August 2025 Emp Health Ins Premium
September 2025 Emp Health Ins Premium
Septemnber 2025 Emp Heaalth Ins Premium

Septemnber 2025 Emp Health Ins Premium

Main Checking 10100

Refer 0 INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS, _

Cash Payment E 100-81110-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xerox Paper
Invoice SO - 4760448 52025
Cash Payment  E 100-41400-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xenox Paper
Invoice SO - 4760448 52025
Cash Payment E 100-42110-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xerox Paper
Invoice SO - 4TE0448 WE2025
Cash Payment E 100-49500-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xerox Paper
Invoice SO - 4TED448 52025
Cash Payment  E 200-42200-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xerox Paper
Invoice SO - 4760448 52025
Cash Payment  E 201-42300-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xerox Paper
Invoice S0 - 4760448 WE2025
Cash Payment E 601-48400-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xerox Paper
Invoice SO - 4TE0448 WE2025
Cash Payment E 602-48450-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xerox Paper
Invoice SO - 4760448 WE2025
Cash Payment  E 651-48500-200 Office Supplies (GENER Xerox Paper
Invoice SO - 4760448 52025

Transaction Date BrR2025 Main Checking 10100

Refer 0 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC -

Cash Payment  E 10041 110-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Services
Irenice 563435790 2 BI2G2025

Cash Payment E 100-41400-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Senvices
Imenice 563436728 2 BI28/2025

Cash Payment E 651-48500-200 Office Supplies (GENER August Senvices
Imeoice 53436759 2 BI29/2025

Cash Payment E 100-42110-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Sendices
Irenice 563435780 2 BI2G2025

Cash Payment  E 100-49500-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Services
Irenice 563435720 2 BI282025

Cash Payment E 601-48400-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Services
Imenice 563436728 2 BI28/2025

Cash Payment E G02-48450-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Senvices
Imeoice 53436759 2 BI29/2025

Cash Payment E 200-42200-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Senvices
Irenice 563435780 2 BI2G2025
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CITY OF FRAZEE

B E E] E Payments
Frazee

MINNESOQTA Cument Period: September 2025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Senvices

Imvoice 563436700_2 Br2G2025

Transaction Date Q02025 Main Checking 10100 Total
Refer 0 MET LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY  _

Cash Payment G 100-21708 Insurance Payable September 2025 Statement

Imvoice 812025

Cash Payment G E601-21708 Insurance Payable September 2025 Statement

Imvoice 81/2025

Cash Payment G ED2-21708 Insurance Payable September 2025 Statemeant

Imvoice 912025

Transaction Date Q102025 Main Checking 10100 Total
Refer 0 ELAN FINANCIAL SERVICES

Cash Payment E G01-428400-313 SamplesTesting September 2025 Statement - USPS

Imvoice 4404 2 02025

Cash Payment E 20042200-324 Technology'Computer E September 2025 Statement - Toner Cartridge
Imvoice 4404 2 932025
Cash Payment E 656-48500-500 Capital Outlay (GEMER CREDIT - September 2025 Statement -

Wastebasket! Toilet Paper Holder

Imvoice 4404 2 92025

Cash Payment E 100-45200-268 Misc for Resale CREDIT - September 2025 Statement - TLB
Swim Diapsrs

Imvoice 4404 2 02025

Cash Payment E 10031400433 Dues and Subscriptions September 2025 Statement - QR Code Creator
Subscription

Imvoice 4404 2 92025

Cash Payment E421-428500-500 Capital Outlay (SEMER  September 2025 Statement - Misc Amazon
Imvoice 4404 2 92025
Cash Payment E 100-21400-211 Cleaning Supplies September 2025 Statement - Misc Amazon
Imvoice 4404 2 02025
Cash Payment E 856-48500-210 Operating Supplies (GE  September 2025 Statement - Misc Amazon
Imeoice 4404 2 02025
Cash Payment  E 10042110-210 Operating Supplies (GE  September 2025 Statement - Misc Amazon
Imvoice 4404 2 02025
Cash Payment E 100-31400-210 Operating Supplies (GE  September 2025 Statement - Misc Amazon
Imvoice 4404 2 92025

Cash Payment E 100-41400-200 Office Supplies (GEMER September 2025 Statement - Printable Business
Cards

Imvoice 4404 2 89/3/2025

Cash Payment E 856-498500-210 Operating Supplies (GE  September 2025 Statement - Paper Towels
Imvoice 4404 2 8132025

Cash Payment E 421-48500-500 Capital Outlay (GEMER September 2025 Statement - enbiCtion

Dispenser

Imvoice 4404 2 92025

Cash Payment  E 100-31400-324 TechnologyComputer E September 2025 Statement - Annual
Subscription

Imeoice 4404 2 02025

Cash Payment  E 100-31400-324 Technology'Computer E September 2025 Statement - August Service
Imvoice 4404 2 02025
Cash Payment E 100-21400-324 TechnologyComputer E September 2025 Statement - August Service
Imvoice 4404 2 92025
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ESEk
Frazee

MINMESOQTA

CITY OF FRAZEE

Payments

Current Period: September 2025

Cash Payment E 201-22300-218 Unifoms September 2025 Statement - Badges

Imvnice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-234 Medical Supplies September 2025 Statement - Medical Supplies

Imvnice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-235 Medical Equipment September 2025 Statement - Medical Equipment

Imvoice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment E 20142300433 Dues and Subscriptions September 2025 Statement - Subscription Dues

Imvpice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-235 Medical Equipment September 2025 Statement - Medical Equipment

Imvoice 4404 2 932025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-234 Medical Supplies September 2025 Statement - Medical Supplies

Imvoice 4404 2 932025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-407 Repairs/Maint Equipmen September 2025 Statement - Batteries

Imvoice 4404 2 932025

Cash Payment E 201-423D0-550 Motor Vehicles September 2025 Statement - Diash Cam

Imenice 4404 2 832025

Cash Payment  E 201-42300-234 Medical Supplies Septemnber 2025 Statement - Lighting

Imenice 4404 2 832025

Cash Payment  E 201-42300-850 Motor Vehicles September 2025 Statement - USPS

Imvpice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-235 Medical Equipment September 2025 Statement - Medical Equip

Imvoice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-234 Medical Supplies September 2025 Statement - Medical Supplies

Imvoice 4404 2 932025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-235 Medical Equipment September 2025 Statement - Medical Equip

Imvpice 4404 2 Gr32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-234 Medical Supplies September 2025 Statement - Medical Supplies

Invoice 4404 2 Gr32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-235 Medical Equipment September 2025 Statement - Medical Equip

Imenice 4404 2 832025

Cash Payment  E 201-42300-234 Medical Supplies Septemnber 2025 Statement - Medical Supplies

Imenice 4404 2 832025

Cash Payment E 20142300407 Repairs/Maint Equipmen September 2025 Statement - Batteries

Imvpice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-235 Medical Equipment September 2025 Statement - Rescue Choking
Devics

Imvpice 4404 2 32025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-337 Training Supplies September 2025 Statement - Training Book

Imenice 4404 2 832025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-235 Medical Equipment September 2025 Statement - Medical Equipment

Imenice 4404 2 832025

Cash Payment E 201-42300-200 Office Supplies (GEMER September 2025 Statement - Office Supplies

Imvnice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment E 20142300407 Repairs/Maint Equipmen September 2025 Statement - Batteries

Imvnice 4404 2 G32025

Cash Payment  E 201-42300-234 Medical Supplies September 2025 Statement - Medical Supplies

Imeoice G32025

Transaction Date 2102025 Main Checking 10100 Total

Refer 0 LAKE REGION ELECTRIC COOPER _
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g5uk
Frazee

MINNMESOTA

Cash Payment EB02-48450-381 Electric Liilities

Imvoice 358000 WE2025
Cash Payment E 100-23160-381 Electric Lkilities
Imenice 2003281314 OIE2025
Cash Payment E 100-25200-381 Electric Utilities
Imvoice 2005030600 SE2025
Cash Payment E 100-25200-381 Electric Uitilities
Imenice 200500500 2025
Cash Payment E851-20500-381 Electnic Utilities
Imenice 616802 OE2025

Cash Payment E 202-45000-381 Electric Utilities
Imegice
Transaction Date r0/2025

Fund Summary

CITY OF FRAZEE D25 242 PM

Payments

Current Period: September 2025

August Statement -

August Statement -

August Statement -

August Statement -

August Statement -

August Statement

Main Checking

10100 Main Checking

FPage @

51534 CNTY HWY 10 $844.36
Red Willow Heights $106.20
Eagle Lake $23.60
CNTY HWY 28 Lighting 52534
US HWY 10 $53.26
$45.75

10100 Total 3100851

100 GEMERAL FUMD 525,504.24
200 FIRE FUND $3.188.15
201 RESCUE FUND 52703458
202 WANNIGAM REGIONAL PARK 575
4 CAP PROJ - TOWM LAKE BEACH $1,037.20
421 CAP PROJ - DTI 330454
801 WATER FUND 4.084.31
802 SEWWER. FUND 37, 206.05
803 STORM WATER FUND 55340
851 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 321235
855 EDA - Dosambonam Infill PEOT.O4
34510728

Pre-Written Checks $0.00

Checks to be Generated by the Computer 345107 28

Total 5,107 .28
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CITY OF FRAZEE

@ E ﬂ E Payments
Frazee

MINNESOTA Cumrent Period: September 2025

Payments Batch 0081020250162 53377810

Refer 0 BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE
Cash Payment E 6089-49750-251 Liguor For Resale
Imvoice 123013274

Cash Payment E G08-408750-40 FuelDelivery Surcharge Sernvice Fes
Imenice 123013274

Cash Payment E G09-49750-251 Liguor For Resale
Imeoice 366070053

Cash Payment E G08-40750-251 Liguor For Resae
Imenice 413000825

Liquaor for Resale

Liquar for Resale

Transaction Date 02025 Liquor Store 10101
Refer 0 LINCOLN NATIONAL LIFE INS GO

Cash Payment G 608-21705 Short-Long Term-Ace-Cth-0 Coverage 0BM012025-00/30/2025
Imeoice

Tranzaction Date 02025 Liguor Store 10101
Refer 0 BEVERAGE WHOLESALERS, NG _

Cash Payment  E G089-49750-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resale

Irrenice 306714 BI142025

Cash Payment  E G09-49750-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resale

Irenice 3E77ED BIr21.2025

Cash Payment E G08-48750-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resale

Irenice 308842 Br282025

Transaction Date 02025 Liquor Store 10101
Refer 0 BUCKS MILL BREWING _

Cash Payment  E G09-49750-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resale

Imenice 828254 Br282025

Transaction Date 102025 Liquor Store 10101
Refer 0 BERGSETH BROS -

Cash Payment E G089-49750-252 Beer For Resale CREDIT - Besr For Resale
Irmepice 4856318 BI132025

Cash Payment  E G089-49750-252 Beer For Resale CREDIT - Besr For Resale
Irenice 4580834 BrA02025

Cash Payment  E G09-49750-252 Beer For Resale Besr For Resale

Imeoice 466770 Br212025

Cash Payment  E G09-49750-252 Beer For Resale Besr For Resale

Imenice 488185 BI282025

Cash Payment  E G089-49750-252 Beer For Resale Besr For Resale

Imeoice 480572 042025

Cash Payment E 610-48752-252 Beer For Resale Beer For Riezale

Irenice 469570 42028

Tranzaction Date Q02025 Liquor Store 10101
Refer 0 CASH-WA DISTRIBUTING

Cash Payment  E G089-459751-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Food for Resale
Imvoice 4518425 BIr212025
Cash Payment E G09-40751-260 Food for Resals
Irenice 4518425 BIr212025

Food for Resale
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CITY OF FRAZEE
&EE]E Payments
Frazee

MINMESOTA

Current Period: September 2025

Cash Payment E G09-49751-250 Food for Resale Food for Resale

Invoice 4518425 Bf21/2025

Cash Payment E G08-48751-440 FuelDelivery Surcharge Fuel Surcharge

Invoice 4518425 BI21/2025

Cash Payment E G09-48751-258 Food for Resale CREDIT - Chix Trdrim Raw Brd
Invoice 4512020 an2025

Cash Payment E G09-49751-250 Food for Resale Food for Resale

Invoice 4523008 8/4/2025

Transaction Date ar10/2025 Liquor Store 10101

Refer 0 DACOTAH PAFPER GO _

Cash Payment E §10-48752-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Operating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice TEET3 242025

Cash Payment E 608-48750-211 Cleaning Supplies Oiperating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice TEET2 242025

Cash Payment E G08-29751-211 Cleaning Supplies Oiperating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice TGATZ 242025

Cash Payment E 608-48751-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Operating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice TEET2 242025

Cash Payment E 608-48750-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Operating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice TEET2 242025

Cash Payment E G09-38751-211 Cleaning Supplies Operating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice TEET2 242025

Cash Payment E G02-28750-40 FuelDelivery Surcharge Full Dedivery Fee

Invoice TEET2 81472025

Cash Payment E 608-48751-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Operating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice TEET3 242025

Cash Payment E 608-48751-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Operating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice 15488 S2025

Cash Payment E G089-49750-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Operating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice 15408 G025

Cash Payment  E 608-48751-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Operating/Cleaning Supplies
Imenice 15488 S2025

Cash Payment E G08-28751-40 FuelDelivery Surcharge Taxes

Imenice 15408 G025

Cash Payment E G089-48750-440 FuelDelivery Surcharge Taxes

Imenice 15488 S2025

Transaction Date B/B2025 Liquor Store 10101
Refer 0 [O-5 BEVERAGES, INC _

Cash Payment E 608-49750-256 THC/CBD For Resale  THC Dininks

Ienice SO2G06 BI132025

Cash Payment E G08-98750-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resale

Imenice SO2806 BI132025

Cacsh Payment E G08-48750-251 Liguor For Resale Liquor for Resale

Irrenice SM534 BrR20N2025

Cash Payment E 610-48752-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resale

Imenice B04384 BI20M2025

Cash Payment E G02-48750-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resals

Irrenice SIM18T BrR20N2025

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 141 of 147

D91V25 2:30 PM
Page 2

$380.72

10,70

-F126.70

F2ras4

Total Fr40.43

SOG.ET

51385

51356

53220

3228

11202

51565

30.00

520.83

52083

52375

3278

3278

Total $308.80

$146.80

126745

S00.00

$483.00

F1.420.25



CITY OF FRAZEE DU1V2s 230 FM

e Page 2
E < il & Payments
] .
Fraz
MI'.:-’aN.E EC’ETEI Current Period: September 2025

Cazh Payment E G08-49750-252 Beer For Resale CREDIT - Besr -32,681.60
Imvoice 1582-01284 Bi28/2025
CZash Payment E G089-40750-254 Soft Drinks/Mix For Res Soda 1184
Imoice Q06203 B28/2025
Cash Payment E G08-49750-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resale 35,385.75
Imvoice 08203 BI28/2025
Cash Payment E G09-49750-252 Beer For Resale CREDIT - Besr -PE39.80
Imvoice 1582-01280 Br2025
Cazh Payment E G08-49750-252 Beer For Resale Besr for Resale 31, 704.42
Imeoice BO7FTST 8132025
Cash Payment EG08-49751-252 Beer For Resale Besr for Resale S086.00
Imeoice B08860 SE/2025
Cash Payment E 610-49752-252 Beer For Resale Beer for Resale $3TATE
Imeoice BO77SE 8132025
Transaction Date a10/2025 Liquer Store 10101 Total F7.067.76
Refer 0 GLACIER SALT, INC _
Cash Payment E 808-49751-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Solar Salt F108.24
Imvoice 154035 BI25/2025
CZash Payment E G08-40750-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Solar Salt F108.23
Imvoice 154035 BI2572025
Transaction Date Q02025 Liquor Store 10101 Total F21647
Refer 0 GIOVANNIS FROZEN PIZZA _
Zash Payment E G08-49751-260 Pizza for Resale Food for Resale F104.00
Imvoice 308032502 8132025
Transaction Date AR2025 Liquor Store 10101 Total F184.00
Refer 0 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQLIOR CO _
Cash Payment EG08-49751-251 Liguor For Resale Misc Liquor for Resale 22272
Imvoice 2B58844 BIMG2025
Cash Payment EG08-49750-251 Liguor For Resale Misc Liquor for Resale 85257
Imvoice 2053344 B/192025
Cash Payment E G08-40750-440 FuelDelivery Surcharge Fuel Delivery Fee S16.00
Imvoice 2R58844 BMS2025
Cash Payment E G08-49750-253 Wine For Resale Wine fior Resale 7410
Imvoice 2853804 BI26/2025
Zash Payment E G08-40750-M0 FuelDelivery Surcharge Fuel Delivery Fes 4T
Imeoice 2853804 BI26/2025
Cash Payment EG08-49750-251 Liguor For Resale Misc Liquor for Resale F007.10
Imeoice 2853804 BI26/2025
Cash Payment E G08-49750-253 Wine For Resale Misc Wine fior Resale 568400
Imvoice 2886883 8132025
Cash Payment EG09-499750-251 Liguor For Resale Misc Liquor for Resale 520450
Imvoice 2BG0883 8132025
Zash Payment E G08-40750-M0 FuelDelivery Surcharge Fuel Delivery Fes F6.00
Imeoice 2858883 8132025
Cash Payment EG10-48752-253 Wine For Resale Wine for Resala F119.50
Imeoice 2858882 8132025
Transaction Date BB2025 Liquer Store 10101 Total F2.010.85
Refer 0 PHILLIPS WINE & SPIRITS
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CITY OF FRAZEE

E E il E Payments
Frazee

MINMESQOTA

Cash Payment E G08-48750-251 Liguor For Resale Liguor for Resale

Imvoice 5033730 BI268/2025

Cash Payment  E 60840750440 FuelDelivery Surcharge Fuel Delivery Charge
Imvoice 5033730 BI268/2025

Cash Payment E 609-48750-M0 FuelDelivery Surcharge Fuel Delivery Charge
Imvoice 5038077 /2025

Cash Payment E G08-40750-251 Liguor For Resale Mise Liquor for Sale
Imvoice 5038077 G225

Transaction Date B/R2025 Liquor Store 10101
Refier 0 S¥S5C0 NORTH DAKOTA_ INC -

Cash Payment E 609-48751-213 Operating Supplies - Fo  Buttermilk

Invoice 205883165 BMS2025

Cash Payment E 608-48751-258 Food for Resale Food for Resales

Invoice 2B5883165 BMS2025

Cash Payment E S08-48750-254 Soft Drinks/Mix For Res  Clamato Juice

Invoice Z2B5883165 BMS2025

Cash Payment E S08-48751-210 Operating Supplies (GE  Cancla'shortening

Invoice Z2B5883165 BMS2025

Cash Payment E 609-408751-258 Food for Resale Food For Resale

Invoice 2B5883165 BMS2025

Cash Payment E G08-428751-210 Operating Supplies (GE Foam Containers

Imvoice Z2R58531685 BMG2025

Cash Payment E 609-408751-258 Food for Resale Lethuce

Invoice 205883165 BM192025

Cash Payment E G08-28751-440 FuelDelivery Surcharge Fuel Delivery Fesftaxes
Imvoice Z2R58531685 BMG2025

Cash Payment E G09-48751-258 Food for Resale CREDIT - Potato salad wi=gg
Imvoice 205027585 BI2272025

Transaction Date BrRf2025 Ligquor Store 10101
Refier 0 MW ENERGY RESOURCES

Cash Payment E 610-48752-381 Electric Ltilities EVENT CENTER

Invoice S085706845-00001 BI262025

Tranzaction Date BiR2025 Liquor Store 10101
Refier 0 SOUTHERN GLAFERS OF MN _

Cash Payment E G08-48750-40 FuelDelivery Surcharge Fuel Delivery Fee

Invoice 2663068 BI2GM2025

Cash Payment E G08-48750-253 Wine For Resale Franzia & Kim Crawford
Invoice 2663068 BI2GM2025

Cash Payment E 608-48750-251 Liguor For Resale Admiral Melson & Ckil Cranbamy
Invoice 2663068 BI2GM2025

Transaction Date B/R2025 Liquor Store 10101
Refier 0 VIKING COCA COLA BOTTLING CO _

Cash Payment E §10-48752-254 Soft Drnks/Mix For Res  Misc Drinks for Resale
Imeoice 36006468 BM132025

Cash Payment E G08-48750-254 Soft Drnks/Mix For Res  Misc Drinks for Resale
Invoice 3G0AG45 B/132025

Tranzaction Date BiR2025 Liquor Store 10101
Refier 0 VESTIS

September 10, 2025 Council Meeting Agenda Page 143 of 147

Current Pericd: September 2025

0erilv2s 2:30 PM
Fag=4

$1.404.34
540.00
200
F603.290

Total 3205624

3847
§653.12
324
Froed
F32.55
52220
38.95

047

Total §730.55

$228.87
Total  s22887
57.40

$121.02

$162.00

Total  $35042
$874.00

$171.40

Total  $84540



CITY OF FRAZEE

= E il E Payments
Frazee

MINMNESQTA Current Period: September 2025

Cash Payment E G09-498750-211 Cleaning Supplies Misc Cleaning Supplies
Imvoice 2500638152 B472025
Cash Payment E G08-48751-211 Cleaning Supglies Misc Cleaning Supgplies

Invoice 2500636152 BI14/2025
Cash Payment E 808-49751-210 Cperating Supplies (GE
Invoice 2500636152 BI14/2025

Cash Payment E 809-48750-210 Operating Supplies (GE

Mylon Rubber Mat

Mylon Rubber Mat

Imvoice 2600636152 BI142025

Cash Payment E 61049752410 Rentals (GEMERAL) Misc Rentals

Imvnice 262010182 2025

Cash Payment EG1048752-211 Cleaning Supplies Misc Cleaning Supplies
Imvoice 2520635153 BM142025

Cash Payment E S08-49750-211 Cleaning Supplies Misc Cleaning Supgplies
Imeoice 2600638152 BI142025

Cash Payment E G08-48751-211 Cleaning Supplies Misc Cleaning Supplies
Imvnice 2H206434654 BI28/2025

Transaction Date Q/B2025 Liquor Store 10101

Refer 0 DETROIT LAKES REGIONAL GHAM _
Cash Payment E 61048752433 Dues and Subscriptions  Membership Investrnent 7/1/2 - 630026
Imeoice TOG9E THr2025

Transaction Date AB2025

Liquor Store 1010

Refer 0 STEVES SANITATION _

Cash Payment E 608-49750-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos 81725 - BE31/25 8YD Weskly
Imvoice 10063 BI31/2025

Cash Payment E G08-49751-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos 81725 - 831725 YD Weskly
Imenice 10063 BI31/2025

Cash Payment E610-48752-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos 81725 - B31/25 8YD Weskly
Imeoice 10063 BI31/2025

Transaction Date BiB2025 Liquor Store 10101
Refer 0 FRAFEE FAMILY FOODS _

Cash Payment E G09-498751-213 Operating Supplies - Fo Lemons/Limes

Imeoice 41532 ar2ra02s

Cash Payment E G09-498751-258 Food for Resale Romain Lethuce

Imenice 43038 B 22025

Cash Payment E G02-48751-2584 Soft Drnks/Mix For Res  CreametieZour Cream
Imenice 21784 B/18/2025

Transaction Date Q/B2025 Liquor Store 10101
Refer 0 SAFEASSURE _

Cash Payment E G09-498750-331 TravelTraining Expense 2026 Safety Training

Imenice 3868 G205

Cash Payment E G08-499751-331 TrawelTraining Expense 2026 Safety Training

Imvnice 3868 22025

Cash Payment E §1048752-331 TravelTraining Expense 2026 Safety Training

Imvoice 3853 22025

Transaction Date Q/B2025 Liquor Store 10101

Refar 0 MATT BACHMANN _
Cash Payment E 602-48751-314 ContPro Serv - Entertai  8/18/2025 Karacke
Imeoice
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CITY OF FRAZEE

0ervas 230 PM

= .. Page &
5 s IR Payments
1 .
Fraz
MEaN-E EOET? Current Period: September 2025

Transaction Date B/B/2025 Liquor Store 10401 Total $350.00

Refer 0 HEALTHPARTNERS INC _

Cash Payment GG08-21708 Imsurance Payable August 2025 Emp Health Ins Premium F1,107.54

Irrenice 583728642450 2 /82025

Cash Payment GO08-21708 Insurance Payable September 2025 Ermp Health Ins Premium F1,107.54

Imvoice 5E3721220812_2 /812025

Transaction Date Q2025 Liquer Store 10101 Total $2,215.08

Refer 0 ELAN FINANGIAL SERVICES _

Cash Payment E 610-48752-210 Operating Supplies (GE  September 2025 Statement - Solo Clear Cups Fa5.42

Irrenice 4404 8132025

Cash Payment E §08-48750-200 Office Supplies (GEMER CREDIT - September 2025 Statement - Ball -34.80
Point Pen

Irrepice 4404 8132025

Cash Payment E §08-48751-200 Office Supplies (GEMER CREDIT - September 2025 Statement - Ball -34.80
Point Pen

Irrepice 4404 8132025

Cash Payment E 808-48751-211 Cleaning Supplies September 2025 Statement - Toilet Cleaner 510

Irepice 4404 /32025

Cash Payment E §08-48750-211 Cleaning Supplies September 2025 Statement - Toilet Cleaner 510

Irrepice 4404 8132025

Cash Payment E G08-48751-2584 Soft Drinks/Mix For Res  September 2025 Statement - Drinks §19.65

Irepice 4404 /32025

Cash Payment E G08-48751-213 Operating Supplies - Fo  September 2025 Statement - Lemons/Limes 3422

Irepice 4404 /32025

Cash Payment E S08-28751-258 Food for Resale September 2025 Statement - Food for Resale $23.73

Imvoice 4404 8132025

Cash Payment E S08-28751-258 Food for Resale September 2025 Statement - Food for Resale 35,38

Irepice 4404 /32025

Cash Payment E S09-48751-258 Food for Resale Septermber 2025 Statement - Food for Resale $45.55

Irepice 4404 /32025

Cash Payment E §08-28751-213 Operating Supplies - Fo  September 2025 Statement - Ops Supp - Food 54113

Imenice 4404 8132025

Cash Payment E §08-28750-210 Operating Supplies (GE mw 2025 Statement - Ops Supp - 35.08

Irenice 4404 8132025

Cash Payment E §08-48751-210 Operating Supplies (GE  September 2025 Statement - Ops Supp - §15.98
General

Irrepice 4404 8132025

Cash Payment E §08-48751-254 Soft Drinks/Mix For Res  September 2025 Statement - Crinks §3a72

Imvoice 4404 Gar2025

CZash Payment E §08-48750-200 Office Supplies (GEMER September 2025 Statement - Office Supp - 34
Gensral

Irepice 4404 /32025

Cash Payment E §08-28751-200 Office Supplies (GEMER September 2025 Statement - Office Supp - 3104
Gensral

Imvoice 4404 Sr32025

Transaction Date /82025 Liquor Store 10101 Total 28585

Rlefer 0 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC

Cash Payment E §08-48750-200 Office Supplies (GEMER 3027

Imvoice Project O
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CITY OF FRAZEE

E E-:; i E Payments
Frazee

MINNESQTA Current Period: September 2025

Cash Payment E G089-48751-200 Office Supplies (GEMER August Sendices

Imenice 563436700 Br202025

Cash Payment E §10-48752-200 Office Supplies (GENER August Senvices

Imeoice 563436700 Br20/2025

Transaction Date aMnf2025 Liquor Store 10101
Refer 0 MET LIFE INSURANGE COMPANY

Cash Payment G808-21708 Insurance Payable September 2025 Statement
Imenics 8112025

Transaction Date anMnf2025 Liquor Store 101
Refer 0 ECOLAB PEST ELIM Div -

Cash Payment E G09-48750-401 Repairs/Maint Buildings Large Fly Program

Imepice BBRAQAT BI1G2025

Cash Payment E 609458751401 Repairs/Maint Buildings Large Fly Program

Imenice BBRAQIT BI18/2025

Cash Payment E 61048752401 Repairs/Maint Buildings Large Fly Program

Imepice SBHEE3T BI192025

Transaction Date are2025 Liquor Store 1001
Refer 0 BECKER GO ENVIRONMENTAL _

Cash Payment E B08-20751-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos Lig Store Recycling

Imepice S22025

Cash Payment E G029-48750-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos Lig Store Recycling
Imepice 22025

Cash Payment E §10-48752-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos Lig Store Recycling
Imenics S22025

Transaction Date anMnf2025 Liquor Store 101

Fund Summary
10101 Liguor Store

0a1v25 2-30 PM
Fage 7

053

Total %107

52063

Total  s2063

$50.80
§50.80

$50.81
Total  s15241
5833
3833
$8.33

Total 52440

G808 MUMICIPAL LIQUOR FLIMD $20.886.77
810 EVENT CENTER FUND $3.801.23
F33,778.10
Pre-\Written Checks $0.00
Checks to be Generated by the Computer $33,778.10
Total 53377810
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Addendum
RESCUE ATV PURCHASE

Dlaardar bam AL B iene (BE4) M4 DARN - [AOR) AOS AARE
= BEMIDJI SPORTS CENTRE @ YAMAHA
e 1826 ANNE ST NW s 1] ]
P PoLARIS BEMIDJI, MN 56601 €02
(FETTHEITE)  PHONE: (218) 751-3477 FAX: (218) 444-4577 ski-dop

swck . H102025 bae:09/05/2025 Salesparsor:_ JUSTIN VANCE
Buyer Mame: (Lasy C1TY OF FRAZEE P (Micclia) N
Co-Buyer Name: [Last) _ {First) [Middia)
addess: 222 MAIN AVE W _ oy FPRAZER siaie: MN coyny; BECKER zip:_ 56544
Home Bhone 4 18- 639-9673 Bus Fhene: Bujer DOB: _ Co-Buyer BOB: z
Bayar DL #: Co-Suyer DL #

Buyarg Incuranca Ca.:

FLEASE EWTER MY ORDER FOR:  New B Used (1 Oemo ] Lienhaicer iwl Addrens
EEI“_JH&E |% |%20!M |w=:w ATy T lmmu&mnu Dc.lﬁusnn FTERR
%mnmmnmzs |ucr . |-'Ah:lcrul:TE TATE I'ull.]mc: %&Enﬁgxms,‘nsfji
Buyer Emai. PRAZER .RESCUEB@FRAZRECTTY . COM CASH PRICE OF VEHICLE 9,999 00
Co-Buyer Ermnail: FREIGHT 155.00
mm ALL DEALER INSTALLED OFTIONS Handling o.loo
' PROMOTIONAL CREDITS UNLESS | . Delivery | 0 |oo
NOTED ON THIS CONTRACT
CUSTOMER RESPONSIBLE FOR |
BREAK IN MAINTENANCE
Total Accessories 0.00
. VS Deputy 0.00 tora| 10,194.00
1 REGISTRATION TAX 000 AELOWANGE | 0.oo |
PLATE FEE Q.00 TRADE DIFFERENGE 0./00
TRADE-IN DATA LT e 0.0 Admin Fee 0.00
[ : jone e ooy : TRANSFER TAX 0./oo sl 0.00
il TITLE/TRANSFER FEE o.Joo
e e 0.00 | SEAVIGE CONTRACT 0.00 |
ADBRESS ) LIEN RECORCING FEE o_oo e ~ 0.00
Woense Hr e WHEELAGE TAX 000 |, ooy SHHERSTIE 0.00
oW ity TRANSITTAX 0.00 | costomer Rebate 0.po
TITLE OB BESURANCE Sac AL THSTam? vesld wol Tech Burcharge 0.00 W,H.W%H#EEE: 135.00
okt e TGP oy Y50 w00 Late Transfer o oo [FEIWASECTRONC Ll o
~ Dealer's Disclaimar of Warrsnty TOTAL LICENSE & FEE? : - a. nq
lar i i a sk conirec i £ Eurs e v ) SUBTOTAL| 10,318.00
R R e e e O oo b i _9=hd
:r[;ﬁﬂf:f; - h'L:: :‘m"'-‘ riak of the quality and performance PLUS BALANCE OWING TO LEINHOLDER ON TRADE IN (+) 0.0
Important: A manufacturer warranty may apply. TOTAL AMOUNT DUE ON DELIVERY | 10,315.00

The front and back of this CONTRACT comgrise the entire CONTRACT afleciing this purchase. The DEALER will not recognize ary verbal agrosmant, or any olhes agresment or
undarstanding of any rature. You certly that you ane 18 years of age or older and acknowlndge recaiving a copy of this conracl,

The terms of this CONTRACT were agresd upon and the CONTRACT signed in ihe IMPORTANT: THIS MAY BE A BINDING CONTRACT
BRSNS T el maria L ot IS AND YOU MAY LOSE ANY DEPOSITS IF YOU DO NOT
PERFORM ACCORDING TO ITS TERMS,

NOTICE OF SALESPERGON'S LIMITED AUTHORITY. This contract is nea valid uniess signad
and ascepted by Sales Managar ar Officer of Dealership

Accaplad X _ . : il

" Buper's B sluru Accveng Terme ol Conimd
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